adii

OREGON CASCADES WEST

Council of
| Governments |

Board of Directors
Meeting Packet

July 17, 2025
2:00 pm - 4:00 pm
Attend In Person at

Albany Cascades West Center
1400 Queen Ave SE, Albany, OR 97322

Or Attend Virtually:

Click to Join Teams Meeting

Next Board of Directors
Meeting: September 18,
2025 at 2:00 pm

OCWCOG strives to host inclusive, accessible events that enable all individuals,
including individuals with disabilities, to engage fully. To request an accommodation
or for inquiries about accessibility please contact Oregon Cascades West Council of

Governments at 541-936-9006 or adminGA@ocwcog.org, forty-eight (48) hours

prior to the meeting.

1


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmU0YzRkMjEtODAyMS00ZWEyLWIzZjgtNGE3NmJiOTA4M2U2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b12a7d09-4842-4d79-ab2b-cde0828bc369%22%7d

To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . .
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.

OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AGENDA
July 17, 2025
2:00 — 4:00 pm
1400 Queen Ave SE, Albany, OR 93722

Join Teams Meeting

An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 192.660.

NOTE: Please contact Angelykah Light at 541.936.9006 or alight@ocwcog.org no later than
noon on Wednesday, July 16, 2025, to confirm your attendance.

1. Welcome and Introductions (Chair Pat Malone)
(2:00 pm — 2:05 pm)

2. Public Comment (Chair Pat Malone)

(2:05 pm — 2:10 pm)

The floor will be open to the public for comment.
3. Consent Calendar (Chair Pat Malone)

(2:10 pm - 2:15 pm)

a. Approve meeting minutes from May 15, 2025 (Page 6)
Financial Report YTD (Page 12)

=3

ACTION: Motion to approve Consent Calendar items.


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmU0YzRkMjEtODAyMS00ZWEyLWIzZjgtNGE3NmJiOTA4M2U2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b12a7d09-4842-4d79-ab2b-cde0828bc369%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmU0YzRkMjEtODAyMS00ZWEyLWIzZjgtNGE3NmJiOTA4M2U2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b12a7d09-4842-4d79-ab2b-cde0828bc369%22%7d
mailto:alight@ocwcog.org

4. SSAC & DSAC Membership Renewal Approval and New Membership Approval (Senior
and Disability Services Director Randi Moore)
(2:15 pm — 2:20 pm)

a) SSAC & DSAC Membership renewal memo (Page 16)
b) DSAC Membership application — Naomi Hirsch (Page 17)

ACTION: Motion to approve SSAC and DSAC membership renewals.

ACTION: Motion to approve DSAC membership of Naomi Hirsch.

5. FEinancial Policy Updates (Finance Director Marit Nelson)
(2:20 pm — 2:30 pm)

Finance policy memo (Page 19)

Updated finance policy document (Page 20)

ACTION: Motion to approve the updates to the Finance policies.

6. Contracts Policy Updates (Finance Director Marit Nelson)
(2:30 pm — 2:40 pm)

Contracts policy Memo (Page 62)
Updated Contracts policy document (Page 63)

ACTION: Motion to approve the updates to the Contracts policies.

7. Cascades West Business Lending Programmatic Update (Loan Officer Didi Aho)
(2:40 pm — 2:55 pm)

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.



8.

10.

11.

Area Plan (Senior and Disability Services Director Randi Moore)
(2:55 pm — 3:15)

2025-2029 Area Plan (Page 85)

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.

Budget/program Updates CWACT and Bylaws Updates (Agency Director Paul Egbert)
(3:15 pm — 3:30 pm)

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.

OCWCOG Program Updates
(3:30 pm — 3:35 pm)

Community and Economic Development Agency Director Paul Egbert (Page 265)
Chief Information Officer Jason Sele (Page 268)

Human Resources Director Ryan Schulze (Page 269)

Senior, Disability, and Community Services Program Director Randi Moore (Page 270)

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.

Subcommittee Reports
(3:35 pm — 3:40 pm)

Cascades West Area Commission on Transportation (CWACT) (Page 273)

Transportation Brokerage Advisory Committee (TBAC)- No update

Cascades West Economic Development District (CWEDD) (Page 274)

Loan Program Advisory Committee (LPAC)- No update

Senior Services Advisory Council (SSAC)& Disability Services Advisory Council (DSAC)(Page 276)

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.



12. Agency Director Update (Agency Director Paul Egbert)
(3:40 pm — 3:50 pm)

e Corvallis House Update
o Staff BBQ August 20th

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.

13. Other Business
(3:50 pm — 3:55 pm)

14. Adjournment
(3:55 pm)



- ‘ ‘ VISION To prom.oFe a thr|Y|ng reglon through service,
connectivity, and innovation.

Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.

OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING MINUTES

May 15, 2025
2:00 — 4:00 pm

An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 192.660.

Attendees:  Chair Commissioner Pat Malone, Benton County; Vice Chair Commissioner
Claire Hall, Lincoln County; Treasurer Commissioner Sherrie Sprenger, Linn County; Mayor
Alex Johnson Il, Albany; Mayor Christopher McMorran, Philomath; Mayor Rod Cross, Toledo;
Councilor Debbie Poland, Depoe Bay; Councilor Rick Booth, Waldport; and Member lan Keene,
Confederated Tribe of Siletz Indians.

Absent: Mayor Charles Maughn, Corvallis; Mayor Scott Cowan, Millersburg; Councilor
Mike Caughey, Harrisburg; Councilor Kevin Hohnbaum, Lincoln City; Mayor Jan Kaplin,
Newport; Councilor Joseph Parsons, Sodaville; Councilor Ken Bronson, Sweet Home; Councilor
Carol Korn, Tangent; Councilor Jeanni Cuthbertson, Monroe; Commissioner Gil Sylvia, Port of
Newport.

Staff: Executive Director Ryan Vogt; Agency Director Paul Egbert; Finance Director
Marit Nelson; Chief Information Officer (CIO) Jason Sele; Human Resources (HR) Director
Ryan Schulze; Community and Economic Development (CED) Director Jaclyn Disney; Senior
and Disability Services (SDS) Director Randi Moore; Community Services Programs (CSP)
Manager Alicia Lucke; Planning and Transportation Program Manager Matt Lehman,
Transportation Brokerage Manager Britny Chandler, Communications Officer Karla Brouhard;
Project Manager Nick Andrews, and Executive Assistant Angelykah Light.

Public: Senior Services Advisory Council SSAC Chair, Mitzi Naucler.

Welcome and Introductions

The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG) Board of Directors Meeting
was called to order by Chair Malone on March 20, 2025, at 2:03 pm Via Teams Video and
Audio Conferencing, and in-person attendees.

Public Comment
No Comments from the Public.



Consent Calendar

Mayor Cross moved to approve the consent calendar including the March 16, 2025, meeting
minutes, and the Year-to-Date Financial Report for May 2025. Mayor Cross seconded the
motion. Chair Malone, Vice Chair Hall, Treasure Sprenger, Mayor Johnson, Mayor McMorran,
Mayor Cross, Councilor Poland, Councilor Booth, voted in favor. Member Keene abstained.
With no opposition, the consent calendar items were approved.

May Month Proclamations

Project Manager Andrews read the Military Appreciation Month proclamation.

Mayor Crossed moved to approve the Military Appreciation Month Proclamation. Treasurer
Sprenger Seconded the motion. Chair Malone, Vice Chair Hall, Treasure Sprenger, Mayor
Johnson, Mayor McMorran, Mayor Cross, Councilor Poland, Councilor Booth voted in favor.
Member Keene abstained. With no opposition, the Military Appreciation Month Proclamation
was approved.

SSAC Chair Naucler read the Older Americans Month proclamation.

Mayor Crossed moved to approve the Older Americans Month Proclamation. Treasurer
Sprenger Seconded the motion. Chair Malone, Vice Chair Hall, Treasure Sprenger, Mayor
Johnson, Mayor McMorran, Mayor Cross, Councilor Poland, Councilor Booth voted in favor.
Member Keene abstained. With no opposition, the Older Americans Month Proclamation was
approved.

Membership Dues

Finance Director Nelson the annual dues calculations. The values are calculated based on the
population report as of December from Portland State University (PSU) and the Consumer
Price Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U) from Seattle. The estimated regional population
totals 277,649 and CPI-U for the years is 2.7%. Based on the values OCWCOG is asking for a
total dues calculation for the year of $391,815.79. Finances Director Nelson stated the dues
calculation is about a 2% increase from last year.

Mayor Johnson moved to approve the membership dues document adoption as written. Mayor
Cross seconded the motion. Chair Malone, Vice Chair Hall, Treasure Sprenger, Mayor
Johnson, Mayor McMorran, Mayor Cross, Councilor Poland, Councilor Booth voted in favor.
Member Keene abstained. With no opposition, the membership dues were approved.



Fiscal Year Annual Work Program Budget Adoption

Finance Director Nelson provided an overview of the proposed budget document approved by
the Budget Committee. Finance Director Nelson stated there are some changes to note. There
will be a slight decrease in revenue due to the conclusion of one-time funding pilot projects.
This decrease is expected and prepared for. Personal Services will see an overall increase of
5% to support 210 FTE. A PERS increase for the biennium starts July 1 and will last for two
years. OCWCOG has been recommended by auditors to use PERS reserve funds to offset a
portion of the increase. OCWCOG will use about 1% of the total budgeted personnel costs a
month so it will not deplete the reserves. Health insurance is expected to increase by about
3%. OCWCOG has a total budgeted expenditure for fiscal year 2025-2026 of $60,635,378.

Mayor McMorran moved to adopt the FY 2025-26 OCWCOG budget as reviewed and
approved by the Budget Committee with total appropriations of $60,635,378 beginning July 1,
2025. Mayor Johsnon seconded the motion. Chair Malone, Vice Chair Hall, Treasure
Sprenger, Mayor Johnson, Mayor McMorran, Mayor Cross, Councilor Poland, Councilor Booth
voted in favor. Member Keene abstained. With no opposition, the FY 2025-26 Budget was
approved.

Agency Director Update & Introduction
Executive Director Vogt introduced the new OCWCOG Agency Director, Paul Egbert.

Agency Director Egbert provided some of his professional history and his prior experience
providing leadership development work to the OCWCOG Senior Leadership Team.

Executive Director Vogt stated he, Agency Director Egbert, and Community Services
Consortium (CSC) Agency Director Kayla Hatley have begun meeting regularly to more
formally envision and implement the partnership of OCWCOG and CSC.

Chair Malone welcomed Agency Director Egbert and requested a motion to approve the
banking resolution granting access to Agency Director Egbert.

Executive Director Vogt stated that with the addition of the Agency Director Position and the
seat change of board members in January, it is time to recodify access with the bank signature
authority.

Mayor Cross moved to approve the banking resolution. Councilor Booth seconded the
motion. Chair Malone, Vice Chair Hall, Treasure Sprenger, Mayor Johnson, Mayor McMorran,
Mayor Cross, Councilor Poland, Councilor Booth voted in favor. Member Keene abstained.
With no opposition, the FY 2025-26 Budget was approved.



Regional Annual Report

Communications Officer Brouhard presented the 2024 Regional Impact Report document.
The Regional Report provides information on all of the OCWCOG programs and the level of
impact these programs have had on consumers and the region. Communications Officer
Brouhard stated there are some challenges when collecting data for the reports. Data can be
pulled but there are more nuances when working to collect the long term impact the agency
and its programs have on consumers. This year, Communications Officer Brouhard added
some stories of the services and client testimonials as a way to incorporate the human aspect
of the work.

Communications Officer Brouhard asked the Board of Directors for any input that would make
the reports more useful or impactful for their use.

Chair Malone and Communications Officer Brouhard discussed when the reports will be
available. Usually, reports are available for use within the first quarter of the calendar year.
However, Due to the workload of CSC and OCWCOG annual reports being developed at the
same time, reports are later than expected. Reports are now available for distribution.

Chair Malone stated the design is user friendly and the use of individual stories is helpful.

Communications Officer Brouhard stated County and City reports will be ready for distribution
soon and at that time, cities will receive a copy.

Mayor Johnson stated OCWCOG staff are extremely professional when at community events

and he enjoys watching the staff provide information and interact with the public. Councilor
Booth shared the sentiment.

Changes in Community and Economic Development

CED Director Disney shared that she will soon be departing from OCWCOG and her position of
CED Director as of June 12", CED Director Disney stated she is proud of the work her team
has accomplished and wanted to share some of the successes they have had in her tenure.
CED Director Disney provided an overview of the work the CED team has done.

Mayor Johnson and Councilor Booth thanked CED Director Disney for her time with OCWCOG
and the great work she has done.

Executive Director Vogt stated his appreciation for CED Director Disney’s contributions to the
agency and the Senior Leadership Team.

OCWCOG Program Updates

CIO Sele provided a verbal update to accompany the written IT update. ClIO Sele stated the file
migration to Teams is complete and the IT team will now shift to building the intranet site for
OCWCOG employees.



HR Director Schulze provided a verbal HR update to accompany the written HR update. HR
Director Schulze stated the HR team has officially hired an organizational development and
training specialist position. There has been an intention to develop leadership and
management in the agency, this position could critically help with these efforts. The HR
performance module will also assist in staff development. HR will be submitting a proposal to
provide some HR work to the City of Toledo.

Chair Malone asked HR Director Schulze to provide some examples of what the new HR
position would do for OCWCOG.

HR Director Schulze stated the position would provide delivery of training, develop
management cohorts, and use data to gauge areas for improvement or strategies to address
the results.

SDS Director Moore provided a verbal update to accompany the written SDS update. SDS
Director Moore stated she was happy to hear the feedback on staff’s public interactions. In the
month of May, the team will spend some time in the communities to celebrate Older Americans
Month. The 4-year strategic plan know as ‘the Area Plan’ should be complete. The plan will
begin in July 2025. SDS Director Moore would like to present the plan to the Board of Directors
once it is complete. The eligibility services just completed a program evaluation and scored
higher than average ratings around the state.

Subcommittee Reports

Chair Malone provided a TBAC update. TBAC discussed the current legislation and then took a
tour of the Philomath streetscape project that began in 2008 and completed in 2024. TBAC has
recently decided to change meetings times. The new times will be reflected in the upcoming
meetings.

Transportation Brokerage Manager Chandler provided an update on the onboarding of Uber
and Lyft. Ride Line Manager Chandler stated the transition has been successful. Ride Line has
some audit findings around grievances and analysis. Consistent and standardized training has
been applied to the staff.

Executive Director Update

Executive Director Vogt stated now that the annual reports are complete, he will be attending
various City Councils in the region that would like him to present them. Executive Director Vogt
stated he wanted to take some time to discuss the federal landscape. It is unclear which
programs will be targeted for decreases to federal spending. Agency Directors have been given
a dollar amount as a target to meet by decreasing funding. There are some current OCWCOG
programs that would see funding changes based on the President’s current purposed budget.
Medicaid funds come of OCWCOGs larges programs. There is a current 880 billion dollars of
purposed cuts to Medicaid and Medicare. 1 in 3 Oregon residents receive the Oregon Health
Plan (OHP). Executive Director Vogt stated the impacts are unknow but anticipated. To be as
prepared as possible, the Senior Leadership Team will begin a series of contingency planning
exercises based on the current purposed budget, information from Federal partners, and what
programs could continue in the face of financial change.

10



Executive Director Vogt stated he is grateful for the Board of Directors decision to implement a
conservative reserve policy that could assist in smoothing a transition for staff if layoffs or other
employment decisions need to be made.

Chair Malone stated the Oregon Attorney General has joined on the lawsuits against the

Federal Government. There may be significant changes in the future. Chair Malone stated it is
important to pay attention to the real.

Executive Session

It was determined by Chair Malone that the executive session was not needed. Chair Malone
stated the findings are that Executive Director Vogt is doing a good job and there is no serious
criticism.

Other Business
Mayor Johnson stated he has received natification from six insurance companies that they will
be pulling out of Oregon. Some are leaving the Medicare market all together.

Adjournment

Chair Malone adjourned the meeting at 4:02 pm.

Meeting minutes taken by Angelykah Light.

11



[orzGoNcascapesiesT |

Council of
Governments

Quarterly Actuals v Annual Budget
Total Department
Total Fund
Generated on: July 10, 2025 7:25 AM

FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Agzg;: FY 2024-25
Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan Feb Mar Q4 Apr May Jun YearTotal YearTotal Balance
Net Income/(Loss) -640,809 -481,850 4,286,587 1,649,526 249,989 2,387,072 19,684,667 21,787,783 -592,653 -1,510,462 22,848,595 14,449,308 -8,399,286
Total Revenues 10,902,664 11,933,076 15,591,384 5,393,589 4,171,455 6,026,340 32,956,907 25,633,777 4,477,264 2,845,866 71,384,030 79,619,438 8,235,407
Revenues 10,902,664 11,933,076 15,491,384 5,393,589 4,171,455 5,926,340 32,956,907 25,633,777 4,477,264 2,845,866 71,284,030 79,304,438 8,020,407
40000 - Beginning Balance - - - - - - 23,543,272 23,543,272 - - 23,543,272 21,542,484 -2,000,788
Total 42000 - Fees & Dues 2,215,453 1,823,201 3,923,487 2,362,462 662,763 898,262 1,731,521 677,463 564,781 489,277 9,693,661 7,248,214 -2,445,447
42000 - Fees & Dues - - - - - - - - - - - 8,000 8,000
42100 - Dues 383,162 1,538 855 - - 855 -2,174 - -2,174 - 383,381 385,763 2,383
42200 - Program revenue (including Fees) 750,695 743,869 2,836,571 2,001,704 294,799 540,068 665,204 319,424 207,221 138,559 4,996,339 2,635,000 -2,361,339
42800 - Internal service charges revenue 1,081,596 1,077,794 1,086,061 360,758 367,964 357,339 1,068,490 358,039 359,734 350,717 4,313,942 4,219,451 -94,491
Total 43000 - Intergovernmental 8,282,232 9,721,980 11,181,739 2,915,753 3,396,540 4,869,446 7,382,926 1,288,277 3,802,884 2,291,765 36,568,877 49,255,522 12,686,645
43000 - Intergovernmental - - - - - - - - - - - 231,562 231,562
43100 - Contracts 2,843,591 3,200,879 4,381,493 1,074,186 2,094,246 1,213,061 2,329,230 83,567 1,132,843 1,112,820 12,755,193 13,186,466 431,273
43200 - FedDir 199,435 35,329 101,400 - 62,821 38,578 18,750 - 18,750 - 354,914 1,349,971 995,057
43300 - FedInd 4,630 9,616 8,071 3,969 4,102 - 5,680 - 5,680 - 27,997 115,838 87,841
43400 - State 4,954,394 6,185,826 6,120,456 1,807,688 1,189,024 3,123,744 4,830,395 1,199,393 2,507,623 1,123,378 22,091,071 30,508,330 8,417,259
43500 - Local 280,182 290,330 570,320 29,911 46,346 494,062 198,871 5,316 137,988 55,567 1,339,702 3,863,355 2,523,653
44100 - Rents 25,102 29,190 28,072 4,700 13,944 9,428 23,661 9,612 4,622 9,428 106,026 110,417 4,391
Total 46000 - Interest & Misc & Donations 379,877 358,705 358,086 110,674 98,207 149,204 275,527 115,154 104,977 55,396 1,372,195 1,147,800 -224,395
46100 - Interest Revenue 246,745 256,258 248,487 84,098 77,412 86,977 167,684 85,073 82,611 - 919,174 740,000 179,174
46110 - Lending Program Interest revenue 30,630 29,889 30,978 11,068 10,025 9,884 20,914 11,362 9,552 - 112,409 100,000 -12,409
46210 - Donations Received: Money 61,558 24,421 42,344 22,540 10,161 9,642 82,772 18,719 11,323 52,729 211,095 170,500 -40,595
46240 - Donations Received: Private Grants - - - - - - - - - - - 90,300 90,300
46700 - Matching Contributions 25,573 26,823 42,920 - 469 42,450 332 - 332 - 95,648 45,000 -50,648
46900 - Misc Revenue 15,373 22,500 -6,643 -7,032 139 250 3,826 - 1,159 2,667 35,056 2,000 -33,056
46910 - Over/short - -1,187 - - - - - - - - -1,187 - 1,187
Other Income - - 100,000 - - 100,000 - - - - 100,000 315,000 215,000
Total 48000 - Transfers In - - 100,000 - - 100,000 - - - - 100,000 315,000 215,000
48000 - Transfers In - - - - - - - - - - - 315,000 315,000
48113 - Transfer from fund 1013 - - 100,000 - - 100,000 - - - - 100,000 - -100,000
Total Expenses -11,543,473 -12,414,926 -11,304,797 -3,744,063 -3,921,466 -3,639,268 -13,272,240 -3,845,994 -5,069,917 -4,356,328 -48,535,436 -65,170,130 -16,634,694
Expense 11,483,405 12,351,416 11,071,583 3,740,891 3,873,541 3,457,151 13,016,819 3,701,526 4,966,094 4,349,199 47,923,223 62,700,679 14,777,456
Personnel 5,801,006 6,205,872 5,987,776 2,079,641 2,077,942 1,830,192 5,862,032 1,902,878 1,936,443 2,022,711 23,856,686 28,674,333 4,817,646
51000 - Wages 3,451,208 3,654,061 3,432,852 1,230,339 1,329,076 873,437 3,665,231 1,179,542 1,209,362 1,276,328 14,203,352 17,625,528 3,422,176
52000 - Benefits 2,349,798 2,551,811 2,554,924 849,302 748,866 956,756 2,196,801 723,336 727,081 746,384 9,653,334 11,048,805 1,395,470
Supplies & Services 5,428,334 5,929,031 4,776,991 1,545,277 1,693,304 1,538,409 6,788,533 1,677,370 2,887,238 2,223,925 22,922,888 32,770,362 9,847,474
Total 61100 - Supplies 29,596 29,411 90,050 20,021 8,834 61,195 73,529 19,493 26,857 27,179 222,585 188,317 -34,268
61100 - Supplies 27,018 23,231 71,014 7,684 6,878 56,452 79,358 28,328 24,886 26,143 200,621 156,523 -44,098
61200 - Supplies: Volunteer recognition 2,542 5,966 7,315 837 1,844 4,635 6,080 2,442 2,616 1,022 21,902 31,794 9,892
61250 - Supplies: Food MOW 36 214 11,721 11,500 112 108 -11,908 -11,278 -645 15 62 - -62
Total 61300 - Equi (non-capitalized) 29,051 113,694 84,142 5,264 2,812 76,066 20,106 1,364 6 18,736 246,993 252,680 5,687
61300 - Equipment (non-capitalized) 29,051 113,694 84,142 5,264 2,812 76,066 20,106 1,364 6 18,736 246,993 252,680 5,687
61400 - Furniture - - 8,407 - 4,032 4,375 248 - - 248 8,654 44,500 35,846

12



Quarterly Actuals v Annual Budget
m Total Department
[orzGoNcascapesiesT |

Total Fund
Council of Generated on: July 10, 2025 7:25 AM
Governments
FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Agz‘;;‘: FY 2024-25
Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan Feb Mar Q4 Apr May Jun YearTotal YearTotal Balance
Total 62000 - Services 5,369,687 5,785,927 4,594,392 1,519,993 1,677,626 1,396,773 6,694,650 1,656,513 2,860,376 2,177,762 22,444,655 32,279,665 9,835,010
62000 - Services - - - - - - - - - - - 5,000 5,000
62100 - Professional Services 3,909,188 4,296,375 3,157,471 1,089,206 1,215,060 853,206 4,660,408 1,187,756 1,734,370 1,738,283 16,023,442 21,097,715 5,074,273
62110 - Legal services 5,469 2,415 1,828 1,613 215 - 844 - 844 - 10,555 90,700 80,145
62120 - Marketing services 14,477 26,336 3,928 569 2,965 394 2,638 958 1,010 670 47,380 38,300 -9,080
62130 - Insurance services 27,615 33,918 45,224 - - 45,224 22,612 - 22,612 - 129,369 137,850 8,481
62140 - Banking services 3,045 3,312 3,252 1,345 1,220 687 1,284 713 571 - 10,893 16,600 5,707
62150 - Grants to subrecipients 86,000 3,400 29,520 - - 29,520 680,149 - 680,149 - 799,068 5,122,359 4,323,291
62210 - Printing/copying 19,943 28,089 30,205 11,456 14,277 4,472 17,514 7,205 6,900 3,410 95,751 109,200 13,449
62220 - Postage 8,583 14,534 12,458 3,296 4,816 4,346 11,310 2,826 6,322 2,162 46,886 38,500 -8,386
62300 - Software 12,363 67,177 19,759 2,901 3,663 13,195 47,366 438 1,112 45,816 146,665 351,401 204,736
62400 - Telephone/internet 17,148 22,521 13,389 5,894 6,070 1,425 16,159 9,001 7,158 - 69,218 126,663 57,445
62500 - Memberships/Dues 10,851 53,735 350 200 - 150 2,304 379 - 1,925 67,240 79,000 11,760
62600 - Travel and training 26,419 23,724 19,426 5,600 6,812 7,014 28,193 18,879 1,772 7,542 97,762 206,245 108,483
62610 - Trainers 5,986 2,012 4,240 - 2,100 2,140 8,699 75 6,656 1,968 20,936 67,700 46,764
62621 - Employee mileage 45,878 46,960 44,521 12,435 11,819 20,268 48,809 18,977 18,168 11,664 186,168 146,263 -39,905
62622 - Company automobile 1,507 1,095 1,555 275 413 867 1,089 939 150 - 5,246 15,500 10,254
62623 - Other employee travel 456 5 145 - - 145 10 10 - - 616 - -616
62630 - Volunteer travel 13,484 13,569 11,480 3,605 3,770 4,105 12,490 3,562 4,488 4,440 51,023 34,000 -17,023
62640 - Employee travel meals 956 1,258 314 - 91 223 20 20 - - 2,548 2,000 -548
62650 - Employee lodging 2,380 2,873 1,283 437 171 675 - - - - 6,537 3,000 -3,537
62700 - Facility and Utilities 32,118 34,475 43,767 10,707 14,813 18,247 24,673 9,767 8,710 6,196 135,033 74,000 -61,033
62710 - Rent expense 222,018 217,852 220,097 73,366 73,617 73,115 245,789 99,733 72,691 73,366 905,757 925,873 20,116
62720 - Facility maintenance svcs 37,775 29,147 733 2,428 17,244 -18,938 5,205 4,443 47 716 72,861 62,150 -10,711
62721 - Janitorial Service 1,343 1,787 68,705 8,487 6,805 53,413 17,087 7,753 1,896 7,438 88,922 71,100 -17,822
62731 - Electricity 13,173 11,694 11,781 3,966 4,041 3,774 7,158 3,591 3,568 - 43,806 45,000 1,194
62800 - Internal service charges expenditure 851,513 847,662 848,959 282,208 287,646 279,105 832,839 279,488 281,184 272,167 3,380,973 3,413,546 32,573
62900 - Miscellaneous Expenses - - - - - - - - - - - 5,200 5,200
Total 64000 - Client Assistance 182,532 177,676 270,399 97,779 84,683 87,937 345,029 100,053 142,413 102,563 975,636 849,984 -125,652
64000 - Client Assistance - - - - - - - - - - - 2,000 2,000
64200 - Client Assist: Lending programs - 0 0 -453 453 - 0 0 - - 0 - 0
64300 - Client Assist: Program wages 84,175 128,526 218,173 72,091 69,822 76,259 308,781 85,091 121,977 101,713 739,655 541,984 -197,671
64400 - Client Assist: Support services 98,356 49,150 52,226 26,141 14,407 11,678 36,248 14,962 20,436 850 235,981 306,000 70,019
67000 - Resource Reserves - 12,008 12,680 12,680 - - 21,225 21,225 - - 45,914 - -45,914
70000 - Capital 71,533 26,828 23,737 5,513 17,613 612 - - - - 122,098 406,000 283,902
Other Expense 60,069 63,510 233,214 3,172 47,924 182,117 255,421 144,469 103,823 7,129 612,213 2,469,451 1,857,238
71000 - Equipment 31,225 34,182 61,894 - 1,546 60,348 97,900 21,500 76,400 - 225,201 60,000 -165,201
74000 - Capital Improvements - - - - - - - - - - - 50,000 50,000
77000 - Software (multi-year) 25,973 29,328 71,320 3,172 46,378 21,770 153,604 120,302 26,172 7,129 280,225 191,506 -88,719
Debt, Transfers & Contingency 2,871 - 100,000 - - 100,000 3,917 2,666 1,250 - 106,787 2,167,945 2,061,158
92000 - Debt Interest 2,871 - - - - - 3,917 2,666 1,250 - 6,787 - -6,787
95000 - Contingency - - - - - - - - - - - 1,852,945 1,852,945
Total 98000 - Transfers Out - - 100,000 - - 100,000 - - - - 100,000 315,000 215,000

13



Quarterly Actuals v Annual Budget
m Total Department
[orzGoNcascapesiesT |

Total Fund
Council of Generated on: July 10, 2025 7:25 AM
Governments

FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25 FY25

Adopted
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget FY 2024-25
Q1 Q2 Q3 Jan Feb Mar Q4 Apr May Jun YearTotal YearTotal Balance
98000 - Transfers Out - - - - - - - - - - - 315,000 315,000
98111 - Transfer to fund 1011 - - 100,000 - - 100,000 - - - - 100,000 - -100,000

14



Quarterly Actuals v Annual Budget
Total Department
Total Fund

Council of Generated on: July 10, 2025 7:25 AM
Governments

ORE

Year to Date Total Actuals

B Total Revenues
B Total Expenses

59.5%

Year to Date Actuals to Total Budget

100,000,...
79,619,438
80,000,000 71,384,030
65,170,130
60,000,000
48,535,436 B Actual
40,000,000 M Budget
20,000,000
0

FY25, YearTotal, Total Revenues FY25, YearTotal, Total Expenses

15



To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.

Senior, Disability, and
Community Services Programs

July 17, 2025

In June 2025, the Senior Services Advisory Council (SSAC) met and
elected the following individuals to leadership positions for the 2025-27
term:

e Mitzi Naucler, SSAC Chair; and

e Terri Fackrell, SSAC Vice Chair.

The SSAC subsequently approved the recommendation of renewal of
membership for the following individuals:

e Mitzi Naucler, Linn County; and

¢ Holly Bollman, Benton County.

In June 2025, the Disability Services Advisory Council (DSAC) met and
elected the following individuals to leadership positions for the 2025-27
term.

e Michelle Giammona; and

e Gena Sellers.

The DSAC subsequently approved the recommendation of renewal of
membership for:
e Jan Molnar-Fitzgerald, Lincoln County.

The DSAC also approved the recommendation of membership for Naomi
Hirsch.

The SSAC and DSAC request the approval of renewal of membership by
the OCWCOG Board of Directors for the aforementioned individuals.

Senior and Disability Services Advisory Council members take an active role
in advocating for the needs of seniors and people with disabilities, and provide
advice regarding policies, quality of services, and other important issues.
SSAC and DSAC currently are seeking members who reside or are
employed in Linn, Benton, or Lincoln Counties.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9t Steet 203 North Main Steet
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
16



[ ) Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments
m Senior and Disability Services
1400 Queen Avenue SE Albany, Oregon
Council of (541) 926-8630 tsharpe@ocwcog.org
| Governments https://www.ocwcog.org/connect/volunteer/
Advisory Council

Membership Application

Contact information

Name: Naomi Hirsch

Mailing address:

ZIP:-

State:.

Cell

phone:

Work address:

State:.

ZIP:-

All applicants must fill out 1 -4 below.
1. Are you a person with a disability?

2. Are you age 60 or older?

3. Do you receive services from the Department of Human Services Aging and
People with Disabilities (or an Area Agency on Aging which contracts with the
State of Oregon to provide this service)?

4. Put an X by which council you are applying for:

Senior Services Advisory Council

v

Disability Services Advisory Council

Page 1 of 2

17



Experiences
List any of the following experiences you have working with seniors or people with

disabilities: case Manager for Lumina Transitions Program and Oversea Caregiver Support and Lumina Volunteers

e Educational Facilitator for Powerful Tool for Caregivers, Caregiver Support Groups, and monthly Death Cafe

e \Work/Volunteer Going on 10 years working with Lumina Hospice, volunteer in community
e Personal End of Life Doula Certificate, Helping to create a Heart of the Valley EOL community network.

Describe how your life experiences, including those above, have had an impact or
influence on your life.

Working with Lumina Hospice has been very rewarding and humbling. In 2020 when the pandemic hit,
| went deeper into my work, launching the Death Cafe and getting my EOL Doula certificate. | fill an
important need of bringing older adults together for meaningful conversations and end of life planning. |
learn so much from our clients and families, and continue to grow. | want to continue to support
individuals and support programs that have a positive impact on our local communities.

Describe why you want to be a Council member.

At this point in my career, | feel | have much to give, and | want to stay connected and educated on
what is happening, so | can always be building and incorporating new ideas for growth and
improvement. | also like the networking aspect of bring a council member.

Please list two references (personal or professional):

Molly Gage, Social Services Manager at Lumina Hospice: 541-757-9616
molly.gage@luminahospice.org

Carla Gabrielson, Bereavement Coordinator at Lumina Hospice: 541-757-9616
cgabrielsen@luminahospice.org

What skills would you bring to the Advisory Council?

From my work experience and projects, | will bring a perspective that supports family caregivers, and
those needing support due to chronic and terminal iliness. My passion is to find unique ways in
partnership with other groups to support the non-medical needs of my patients and clients. | utilize
the gifts of volunteers and advocate for volunteers. Having a robust and engaging volunteer
program is a win win, and will be important as the older population grows and funding may decline.

What do you expect to gain from volunteering with the Advisory Council?

Greater knowledge of programs and activities under the Council of Governments.
Ways to support and advocate for older Americans during this difficult time.
New and strengthened relationships with others working to support older adults.

Page 2 of 2

18




m VISION To prom.o.te a thrlylng region through service,
connectivity, and innovation.

Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.
DATE: July 17, 2025
TO: OCWCOG Finance Committee
FROM: Marit Nelson, Finance Director
RE: OCWCOG Finance Policy Update

Please find attached the updated Financial Management Policies and Procedures for
your review and approval.

The last update to this manual took place in 2022. Since that time we have had
software changes, leadership changes and department structure changes. Based on
these factors we have updated the manual to reflect more accurately how we do and
would like to conduct business.

Many of the changes you will see are “housekeeping” in that we have replaced “Deputy
Director” with “Agency Director” and updated our contract limits based on the updated
regulations established by the State of Oregon procurement policies. Additionally, an
update to a more electronic process for creating the annual budget is proposed.

We have added the Corvallis building as a satellite office and updated the payroll
process to reflect the change adopted in October 2024.

Additionally, we are updating our travel policy to include per diem payments in lieu of
detailed receipt tracking. This is a very common practice among other local government
entities and will save time and resources lost to tracking down receipts, collecting
reimbursements and the potential burden on employees to front travel costs for training
opportunities.

It is my request and recommendation that the Finance Committee approve the updates
and recommend adoption to the Board of Directors at their meeting on July 17.

Please let me know if you have any questions or comments.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9" Steet 203 North Main Steet
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
19



OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES
and PROCEDURES

ad

OREGON CASCADES WEST

Council of
overnments

September 20, 2018
Revised July 2022
Revised May-June 2025

20



TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS ...ttt 2
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES ..........ccccciiiiieiiiiciieeee 5
GENEIAl PUIPOSE ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e et ereaeaaaaeeeeaan 5
AUTNOTIEY . ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e annnnees 5
FINANCE and ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES..........cccoiiiiiiieeiee e 6
0 g T 1 7SS 6

[ o Yot Yo [ P UEPUURRTRN 6
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ...ttt 9
POLICY e e e e e e e e e e e e e naaneee 9
AUTNOTIEY et e e e e e e e e e e r e e e e e e e e e e e e e raaeeeeeas 9
PrOCEAUNE ... e 9
CheCK SIGNING ... .eeeiiiii ittt e rar e eb e e 10
ISSUING CRECKS ...t e 10
Special CheCk REQUESES ..........uuuiiiiiiiiiieec e e e 10
Monthly Payments.........cooiiiiiiii e 11
Loan Fund Disbursements (Lending Department) ..........cocoeeiiiiiiiniiniiiece e, 11
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (BilliNg) .eeetvveeaiiieaiiie ettt 12
POLICY ettt e e e e e aaaaaa e e e e e e e aaaaaraa 12
U T 1 SRR 12
PrOCEAUIE ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e nenneees 12
ANNUAL BUDGET AND WORK PROGRAM .......ociiiiiiiiieeiite et 13
POLICY e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnaneaee 13
AULNOTIEY .ttt e e e e e e 13
PrOCEAUIE ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnnnees 13
7 ] PR PR TPPPPRTPRN 16
POLICY .t e e e e e e e eaneeas 16
AUditor SEIECHION PrOCESS ......c.ueiiiiiiiiiiieiiee ettt 16
BANK ACCOUNTS ... ettt ettt ettt e et e e et e e snee e e snbeeeanbeeeanneeas 17
o] oSS 17
AULNOTIEY ..t e e e e 17
PrOCEAUIES ...ttt e e 17
2|Page

21



POLICY .t 19
AULNOTIEY ..t e sttt e e e e e e 19
PrOCEAUIES......coeiieeeeee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e s e nnnnnees 19
CASH RECEIPTS ...ttt e e e e e s enbaeeaeean 21
0] o SRR 21
AUTNOFIEY © et s e e 21
PrOCEAUNE ...ttt e e s 21
BUILDING. . .....ceceeeeiiee ettt e e e e s st e e e e et e e e e emnne e e e s ennneeeeeeanneeeeesannes 23
POLICY e 23
AUTNOTIEY et e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeaens 23
PrOCEAUIE ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnnneee 23
CONTRACTS ittt sttt st e e e e e st bt e e e s e nb e e e e s anbbeeeeeaanbaeeeeean 25
POLICY .t 25
AUTNOTIEY « et e e 25
g o Te7 =0 LU PSR 25
COPY MACHINES. ...ttt ettt e e 27
POLICY . e e e e e et aaaaaaeaeeaeaannnnnaes 27
AUTNOTIEY .ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnnnees 27
PrOCEAUIE ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e anennnees 27
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ... .ttt et e e e e e e e e 28
POLICY .t 28
AULNOTIEY .ttt e e 28
o= o LU S 28
INDIRECT COST PLAN ...ttt snae et e st e nneee s 30
o] 1o PUUEPPPRRRIN 30
AUTNOTIEY .ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnneees 30
PrOCEAUNE ... ettt 30

L1 ST N P 31
POLICY e 31
U g T 1 Y/ OSSPSR 31
PrOCEAUIE ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e nennneee 31
INVENTORY/ASSETS ...ttt 32
o] 1o P UUURPPTRSRIN 32
3|Page

22



0 g T 1 Y/ SRS 32

PrOCEAUIE ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e nnannees 32
PAYROLL ...ttt e e e e et e e e et e e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e atreeaeaaans 33
POLICY et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e naaneeee 33
AUTNOTIEY et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e aa e aeeaaens 33
PrOCEAUIE ...ttt e e e e e e e e ennneeas 33
POSTAGE ...ttt et e e ettt e e e e et e e e e e nsaeeaeesnaeeaeeaanteeeaeaannes 35
POLICY .t e e e e e enneeas 35
U {3 T 1 Y/ OSSR 35
PrOCEAUIE ...ttt e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e s e e annnnnees 35
PURGCHASING ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e s ennneeeeeesnneeeeeeannes 36
o] 1o P EUERRPTSSIN 36
AUTNOTIEY et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e ——rraaaaaaas 36
PrOCEAUIE ...ttt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e annnnnees 36
TRAVEL EXPENSE .......ooi ittt e et ee e e s e e e e s ennaeeaeean 38
0] oS 38
AULNOTIEY .t e ettt e e e e e e e 38
PrOCEAUIE ...t e e e e e e e e eeeaaaae e e e s e s snnnnnees 38
VENDOR CHARGE ACCOUNTS ..ottt et e e emeeee e enaeeeeean 39
POLICY e e 39
AUTNOTIEY ..ot e et e e e ettt e e e s s e e e e e snbeeeeeenanes 39
PrOCEAUIE ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e annnneees 39
AGENCY CREDIT CARD ACCOUNTS ....oiiiiiiiiiie ettt 40
o] oS 40
AULNOTIEY .ttt e e e e 40
PrOCEAUIE ...t e e e e e nanne s 40
4|Page

23



FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES

General Purpose

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG), also referred to as the
Agency throughout this document will maintain a current financial management policy
and procedures manual (Manual).

The purpose of this Manual is to establish guidelines for developing financial goals and

objectives, making financial decisions, reporting the financial status of the Agency, and
managing and monitoring Agency funds.

Authority

The Executive Director, Beputy-Agency Director and Finance Director are responsible
for the development and implementation of financial management policies and
procedures and updating this Manual.

It is the responsibility of the Agency’s governing Board to adopt Agency policies and
review Agency operations and activities on a periodic basis.

The Agency Finance Committee is responsible for reviewing the Manual and
recommending changes and/or additions to the Agency’s governing Board for adoption.

5|Page

24



FINANCE and ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES

Authority

Financial reporting and accounting for the Agency shall be carried out by the Finance

Department of the Agency. The Finance Director is designated as the Fiscal Officer of
the Agency.

Procedure

In order to ensure effective internal controls and manage risk to the Agency, accounting
tasks are assigned to staff in the Finance Department.

6|Page

25



EXPENDITURE LIMITS

Policy

In order to deliver efficient, cost-effective service to the public, and meet state and
federal regulations, Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments must operate
within acceptable fiscal standards. The following procedure facilitates the efficient
expenditure of funds approved in the current budget, as well as provide a means to deal
with unknown contingencies.

Authority

Program Directors/Managers, or designated staff, approve expenditures and authorize
payments as determined by the Agency Adopted Budget. The OCWCOG Contracts
Coordinator(s) serves as the Local Contract Review Officer(s) in accordance with ORS
279A.075. All purchasing shall conform to regulations contained in the Oregon Cascade
West Councils of Government Public Contracting Rules Manual adopted by the Board
of Directors in May 2020 and may have been modified by the Board since.

Procedure

Quotes will be obtained and recorded on all major purchases unless otherwise
specified.

A. $1,000 or less--Shall have the approval of the individual program
manager/supervisor responsible for that area of the budget, or his/her
designee.

B. $1,001 to $4,9999,999--Shall have the approval of the Department Director
responsible for control of that area of the budget or his/her designee.

C. $5,00010,000 to $40;00024,999--Shall have the approval of Executive
Director. Requests for approval shall follow the small procurement method as
outlined in the OCWCOG Purchasing Policy. A minimum of three quotes
shall be recorded on the appropriate form before expenditure is made. If three
quotes are not obtainable, a purchaser shall document the steps taken to
obtain three price quotes.

D. $10,00125,000 to $150,000249,999--Shall follow the intermediate
procurement method as outlined in the OCWCOG Purchasing Policy. All
requests for approval shall have a minimum of three quotes, bids or proposals
recorded on the appropriate form before the expenditure is made. If three
quotes are not obtainable, the purchaser shall document these steps taken to
obtain three price quotes.

E. $450,000250,000 and above--Shall require sealed competitive proposals as
outlined in the OCWCOG Purchasing Policy.

7|Page

26



Any deviation from the adopted budget document shall have the approval of the Board
of Directors as per Oregon budget law requirements.

The Executive Director will establish internal fiscal controls to ensure close monitoring
of all financial operations addressed in this policy.

8|Page

27



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Policy

Accounts payable (expenditures) are paid by check, credit card, and direct bank
account withdrawal through an automated clearing house (ACH).

Authority

Program Directors/Managers or designated staff approve expenditures and authorize
payments as determined by the Agency adopted budget and expenditure limits policy.

Procedure

Program Directors/Managers or designated staff will review all bills/invoices for payment
and approve for payment. Program Directors/Managers or designated staff identify the
budgetary line item to be charged, and project management code if needed, to track
expense for contract purposes. Finance staff will provide a current Chart of Accounts
and a Project Management list to all Program Directors/Managers or designated staff,
annually or any time there has been a significant change, to ensure proper coding of all
accounts payable.

Finance staff may consult with Program Directors/Managers or designated staff to
assign line items as determined by appropriate accounting procedures, budget and the
cost allocation plan.

Finance staff processes the bills/invoices for payment on a regular basis. All
bills/invoices properly coded and authorized for payment, will be paid on a schedule
approved by the Finance Director after schedule is reviewed with the Executive

Director. All accounts payable dates are pested-en-the-intranet-onthe Finanece
Depa;tmentpagecommunlcated Wlth OCWCOG staff as chanqes occurALtheFeLisra

extemaLehents%nehiyLeHhe#npenmﬂguehang& The I|ne |tem expensed authorlzatlon

and any |nformat|on requwed for payment are—afetaehed—tracked in the Aqencv flnan0|a|

batches will be reviewed by a designated finance staff prlor to upload in the bank
software.

Preference is for Schecks are-to be reviewed and signed by the Finance Director or
Executive Director and the authorized Program Director/Manager or designated staff. In
the instance that the Finance Director and Executive Director are both out of the office

9|Page

28



or unavailable the Finanee-BirestorAccounting Specialist will coordinate with a Program
Director or authorized signer to review and sign. If a Program Director/Manager is not
avallable to sign checks, flnance staff will follow the list of designated approved signers

per Board resolution. Designated program
staff prepare the checks with the required documentation to be mailed. No checks will
be left in outgoing mail at the end of the work day. If the daily mail has been picked up,
designated program staff will secure check for mail the next business day. Finance staff
files-maintains all documentation in the vendor files for audit purposes.

All ACH batches processed are reviewed and transmitted by the Finance Director,
Firanee-ManagerAccounting Supervisor or other designated finance staff.- The Finance
Director and Finance-ManagerAccounting Supervisor will authorize the majority of the
ACH batches.

Check Signing

All Agency checks require two signatures. Preference is for theThe Executive Director,
Finance Director or Beputy-Agency Director wil-to review and sign all checks as the first
signature. Program Directors/Managers and authorized signers on the Agency bank
account will co-sign. - This excludes costs and payments associated with Payroll. No
person can be a signer on any check made payable to them.

The Executive Director’s signature may be by signature stamp according to the Bank

Account section of this Manual, enly-when-a-check-mustbe-mailed;-and no second

authorized check signer is available.

Issuing Checks

Checks are numbered in sequential order. Checks are never to be written for “Cash”.
The Finance Department makes every effort to issue checks at a minimum of bi-
monthly. Any change will be communicated as described in the Accounts Payable
section of this Manual.

Special Check Requests

Finance staff may process special check requests, if appropriately authorized by the
Program Director/Manager or designated staff. A request for special check and/or
payment is to be submitted to the Finance Department by the Program
Director/Manager or designated staff. Finance Department will coordinate with
requestor as to the timing required.

Finance staff process special request checks through the accounting system_in the
same manner as al-standard accounts payable checks are processed. All budget
coding and project management coding must be on special request check requested.

10|Page

29



Manual/typed checks will only be prepared and/or utilized if the electronic financial
system is unavailable. Once the electronic system is available, the information and
transaction detail associated with any manual/typed check will be entered into the

computerized financial system.

Monthly Payments

Regular monthly payments (rent, janitorial contracts, health insurance, all payroll-related
checks, and any pre-authorized billings) are authorized once by the Program
Director/Manager or designated staff in writing and are processed monthly (as
designated in the contractual or written agreement). The Finance Department will have
a copy of the written agreement or contract as required for back-up documentation.

Loan Fund Disbursements (Lending Department)

The Agency'’s loan officers or designated lending staff completes and sends all the
necessary documentation for a loan disbursement with a completed check request to
the Finance Department. Requests for all loan disbursements will be submitted to the
Finance Department no less than three days prior to the loan disbursement date.

The loan fund disbursement checks written are signed by any two of the authorized
account signers. Preference is for the Finance Director, Executive Director or Agency

Dlrector to be one of the S|qners #eHewmg—Emaﬂee—D#eeter—Exeeu%Hm—D#eetep

The Finance Department is responsible for setting up the loan receivable in the
electronic financial system. Any disbursement and/or activity associated with the loan
disbursement are recorded with the appropriate account number structurepreject

managementcode.

The Loan Officer or designated staff is responsible for setting up the loan_with the
Aqencvs Loan Management contractor (CCD Busmess Development Corp ) mJehe

The Finance Manragerordesignated-staffDepartment is responsible for reconciliation of
the loans receivable accounts by loan fund. These reconciliations will be completed

monthly, before the month-end close using the general ledger trial balance and the
month-end reports from the-LMS-systemCCD. Loans Receivable reconciliations are
reviewed by the Finance Director once complete.

11|Page

30



ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Billing)

Policy

To ensure timely payment of contract, billings and invoices due to the Agency, the
following procedure will be followed.

Authority

The Executive Director and Program Director/Manager or designated staff determines
billing/invoicing based on contracts and/or agreements signed by the Agency. The
Agency’s Executive Director has delegated authorization to bill/invoice all contractors
based on the terms of the contract to the Contracts Unit-Coordinators-er-designated
Do gen et

Procedure

All billings/invoices based on approved contracts or agreements are prepared by the
Contracts Ynit-Coordinators-era-designated-program-staff. The Contracts Uit
Coordinators will obtain all required signatures on all billing/invoices prior to being sent
to contracting agencies. The Contracts Ynit-Coordinators, appropriate project manager
or designated finance staff will submit billing/invoice, menthly—quarterly-and/-orsemi-
annually to agencies based on the terms of the approved contract or agreement. All
accounts billings/invoices will be billed in a timely manner within the terms of the
approved contract or agreement.

Copies of all billing/invoices coded with revenue account and project management
code, if applicable, sent to contracting agencies are entered into the Agency Accounts
Receivable system by the Contracts Urit Coordinators. All accounts receivables will be
entered in a timely manner and accrued in the appropriate fiscal period.

Accounts Receivable is reconciled by the Finance ManagerorDepartment designated
staff on a quarterly basis and at year end for the Agency’s audit. The Finance Manager
Director will work with staff responsible for entering accounts receivable in the Agency’s
electronic financial system when completing the reconciliation. An Excel spreadsheet is
used as a verification document subsidiary-edgerto the general ledger by-program-and
is-used-to-balance-Accounts-Receivable: The reconciliation will consist of a review of all
outstanding accounts receivable and sending notification to the Contracts Unit
Coordinators and Project/Program Manager of any receivables outstanding for a period
of longer than two (2) months. The Contracts Ynit-Coordinators or Project/Program

12|Page

31



Manager will notify finance staff responsible for accounts receivable of any items that
need to be adjusted or written off timely.

ANNUAL BUDGET AND WORK PROGRAM

Policy

The Agency complies with the State of Oregon Budget Law as it applies to Councils of
Governments, by June 30 of each fiscal year. A Work Program and Budget is prepared
and adopted in accordance with ORS 294.900 to 294.90294.93.

Authority

The Finance Director acting as the Fiscal Agent for the Agency, and in coordination with
the Executive Director supervise leads the preparation of the agency Work Program and
Budget and recommends it to the Budget Committee. The Budget Committee reviews
the document and recommends it to the Board for adoption. The Board adopts the
annual budget and work program, and all subsequent amendments in a manner
consistent with State budget law.

The Agency’s Budget Committee is established in accordance with Oregon Budget Law.

Procedure

The annual budget document is developed in two formats: one to meet the
requirements of the Oregon Budget Law; and, a more detailed line item operating
budget for the Agency.

The Executive Director provides recommendations for salary and fringe benefits if there
is no Union contract in place for the budget year.

The Finance Director develops an-internal-staffa budget calendar and-Beard-calendar
for the_annual Work Program and Budget process. Fhe-Board-calendarispresented-to
Program Directors/Managers are responsible for preparing annual work plans that
coordinate with their prepared budgets. Program Managers/Directors will compile a
balanced budget that includes the current year estimated actual, and the proposed new

fiscal year budget numbers within the timeline provided by the Finance Director in the
internal calendar.

. : . iorof this M E : _

13|Page

32



The Finance Director prepares the Agency budget module annually for the coming

budget year. Each Program Director and Manager has access to their specific funding,
employees, labor allocations and grants. The Finance Director will also make available
the prevnous year's flnallzed narratlve to each Dlrector for edltlnq eFEmaneeMapmger

na#ahwtext—fpem—th&preweas—yea{—Program D|rector/Manager may request program
staff to complete various sections of the budget, however Program Directors are
responsible for all programs they direct.

Narrative text will be in Word format and are edited based on the coming years’ Work
Program.

The Finance Director and Finanee-Manragerdesignated Finance Department staff

prepare the draft-proposed budget to present to the Budget Committee.

14|Page

33



A Budget Committee hearing-meeting will be published in local newspapers within the
three-county area_as per ORS 294.905. The Budget Committee meets in accordance
with public meeting law to approve and recommend the draft-proposed budget to the
Board for adoption.

A budget hearing will be scheduled and noticed as per ORS 294.920 at the scheduled
Board meeting prior to the beginning of the fiscal year. The Board may adopt the
budget following the budget hearing.

Once the Agency Budget is adopted by the Board, the Finance Director will submit the
approved Budget to the Oregon Department of Revenue by-the-required-deadlineif
required by ORS..

15|Page

34



AUDIT

Policy

Each year, OCWCOG financial records are audited in accordance with Oregon State
law, appropriate federal program guidelines, and generally accepted auditing standards.

Auditor Selection Process

The Finance Director develops a Request for Proposal (RFP) for selection of an auditor.

Fhe-Finance-Director,-Executive Directorand-Finance-ManagerA selection committee

will be convened to reviews responses to the RFP.

The Agency enters into a eentactcontract, as per the Agency Contracting Rules
approved by the Board of Directors.

Procedure

The audit process begins when the Agency’s financial statements are completed for the
fiscal year end. The Finance Director and Finance Manger-staff prepare the required
year-end statements for the auditors and assists in the preparation of the audit report.

The auditor provides the Finance-Directorand-Finance-ManagerAgency with a list of

required year-end statements and other required information.

Program Directors/Managers and appropriate staff may be requested to provide
information to the Finance Birector-Department as required by the auditors during the
audit process.

A copy of the draft audit is submitted to the Finance Director for review and questions
before the final report is completed. After review, the auditor prepares the necessary
number of copies of the audit as requested.

The auditor and Finance Director present the audit to the Finance Committee. The
Finance Committee recommends acceptance of the audit to the Board.

16|Page

35



BANK ACCOUNTS

Policy

Agency funds are deposited in banks that have a local branch, are interest bearing,
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured, meets the contractual
requirements and which is collateralized in an amount deemed adequate to cover
current balances (not less than $200,000). Additional accounts are opened as
necessary. The Agency is-may be required to maintain physical separation of funds for
various types of contracts, requiring several bank accounts to be open.

Authority

The Finance Director, acting as the Fiscal Agent for the Agency, is authorized to open
additional bank accounts as required by executed contracts and agreements. All check
signers are authorized by the Board through resolution.

Procedures

Operating Account. An operating account is established at one or more local bank(s)
by the Finance Director as authorized by the Board. There may need to be several
multiple operating accounts open, due to contractual requirements.

Oregon Local Governments Investment Pool. Investment accounts for the operating
account(s) and the revolving loan fund are established with the Oregon Treasury as
authorized by the Board.

Meals on Wheels. When a Meals on Wheels site is in an area that does not have a
branch of the Agency’s main operating account, a separate account may be
established.

Designated Check Signers. The Board authorizes check signers. The Executive
Director recommends to the Board positions authorized to sign checks. A resolution is
adopted at a Full Board Meeting to authorize signers. Two authorized signatures are
required on each check as set out in the Accounts Payable section of this Manual.

Executive Director Facsimile Signature Stamp. The Board authorized the use of a
facsimile signature stamp by the Executive Director on July 20, 1995 through Resolution
96-7-2.

The Executive Director authorizes the use of the facsimile signature when there are no

Board authorized check signers available. If the facsimile stamp is used, it will be
recorded on the ledger kept with the facsimile. The record will include:; the date the

17|Page

36



stamp was used, staff person using the stamp, the payee of the check and the check
number.

To ensure appropriate internal controls and use of the signature stamp, the custodian of
the stamp will not be the preparer of the accounts payable checks, have access to the
accounts payable financial system, or be a Board authorized check signer.

The facsimile signature stamp is locked in a secure place under the management of the
Human Resources Director when not in use.

18|Page

37



BANKING PROCEDURES

Policy

All funds received by the Agency will be deposited into the appropriate account as
determined by the Bank Account section of this Manual.

Authority

The Finance Director establishes banking procedures to account for appropriate internal
control process and fiscal accountability.

Procedures

Operating funds, special funds and revolving loan funds are deposited in the operating
account. Special funds and operating funds not required to be used immediately are
transferred to the Oregon Local Government Investment Pool, or designated account.
Local loan funds are transferred to the Oregon Local Government Investment Pool or
designated account for loan activity and/or designated account established due to
contract or agreement requirements.

Each day the meal sites are in operation, Meal Site Managers may accept funds. Funds
are deposited every day or when the amount reaches $25.00. This amount may change
to a lesser amount but will never be more than $25.00. All funds being held for deposit
at the meal site will be locked in a secure location at the meal site, until the deposit is
made. Meal sites deposit funds in the local bank account established for the meal site. If
there is a branch of the Agency’s main operating account in the town, the depository is
the Agency’s main operating account. Money deposited in accounts that are not the
Agency’s main operating account are withdrawn monthly. A $30.00 balance will be left
in all Meals on Wheels banks that are not the Agency’s main operating account, to
avoid any fees that may result due to Non-Sufficient Funds. A check is written by the
Finance Department for the balance of the bank account, minus the $30.00 and
deposited in the Agency’s main operating account.

The Meals on Wheels program has a written procedure for counting, recording and
depositing funds at the meal site. Copies of the deposit slips are forwarded to the
Finance Office. Duplicate deposit slips are prepared for all monies received.

At no time and under no circumstance will any Agency staff designated to deposit funds

in any Agency bank leave any bank bag, prior to or after deposits are made, in an
unattended vehicle or unsupervised location.

19|Page

38



Each day, the designated Finance staff prints-downloads and reviews the previous
day’s activity for the Agency’s main operating account. Printed-PDF reports are kept in
the Finance Department One Drive and utilized as a confirmation of electronic deposits

and payments. a binder for a period of six (6) months-in the Finance Office.

At the end of each month when the bank statements arrive, a deS|gnated Finance staff,

all checks electronic accounts payable and deposﬂs Ilsted on the bank statements.
Internal controls and separation of duties will be maintained at all times.

All bank accounts are reconciled to the bank statement and the financial statement

monthly by the-Finance-Manager-or-designated Finance staff, prior to the books being
closed. If reconciliations earnet-retcannot be completed by the close of the month, all

adjusting journal entries will be entered in the next month.

The Finance Director reviews and signs off on the completed reconciliations.

20|Page

39



CASH RECEIPTS

Policy

All funds received by the Agency are receipted and deposited into the Agency bank
account at least once a week. If month end is mid-week or the Agency receives a large
check, a special deposit is made.

Authority

The Executive Director and the Finance Director mutually establish procedures for
tracking cash receipts.

Procedure

All funds received in the-Albany-eorFeledeany OCWCOG office are counted in the
presence one or more staff members. The individual recording the funds in the

electronic finance system, cannot be part of this process.

All cash, checks and vouchers received at the Albany office that are recorded in the
Agency'’s electronic financial system, are turned in-teinto the Contracts Coordinator
where they are recorded on a weekhy-log and secured in the safe, aleng-with-the-log
untitthe-depeositis-written—If cash is turned in, it is counted in the presence of the

individual turning it in and signed for on a cash transmittal form.

If the receipt is for a billing/invoice generated by the Contracts Coordinator, the
Contracts Coordinator will review the cash, check or voucher received in the Albany
office and code accordingly, before securing the funds in the safe.

All cash, checks, and vouchers received at the TeledeOCWCOG satellite offices that
are recorded in the Agency’s electronic financial system, should be recorded the same
way as the Albany office. One (1) Felede-front desk staff will record the cash, checks,
and vouchers on a weekly log and secure in the safe. A different front-desk-staff will
complete the deposit. The staff that received and secured the funds can take the
deposit to the bank. At no time will staff receiving funds for the Agency, write the
deposit. Feledo-Satellite office staff will forward any deposits slips to Albany at the end
of each month.

All cash, checks and vouchers received at the Meals on Wheels meal sites are
deposited in a local agency bank account by the Meal Site Manager or approved
designated staff each day the site is operating. The deposit is prepared by two (2)
individuals and initialed by both. If the deposit is less than $25.00, the funds will be
locked up and deposited the next business day, or as addressed in the Banking section
of this Manual. A copy of all deposit slips is sent to the Albany office by the Site
Manager with the monthly site report. Meal site deposits are forwarded to the Finance

21|Page

40



Department by the 5™ of each month. Deposit slips are reconciled monthly with the bank
statements.

All checks are scanned through the operating bank electronic deposit system. The scan
includes an electronic stamped-with-a-bank deposit stamp. If the electronic deposit
system is not available, Ppaper deposit slips are prepared in duplicate. A cash receipts
batch is created in the electronic financial system and one copy of the deposit slip is
attached to the corresponding cash receipts batch. Copies of checks received and back
up documentation for those checks are attached to each entry in the Agency Finance
system.These cash receipt batches provide a detailed listing of checks deposited. The
official bank receipt is attached to the cash receipt for each batch.

All cash receipt batches and deposits are reconciled monthly with the bank statements.

22|Page

41



BUILDING

Policy

The building located at 1400 SE Queen Avenue, Albany, OR, is owned by OCWCOG,
and serves as the administration office for the Agency. The building located at 203 N.
Main Street, Toledo, OR, is alse-owned by OCWCOG and is a satellite office for the
Agency housing local program services. OCWCOG-leases-office-space-in-Corvallis;
Oregon;-as—a-satellite-office-The building located at 1121 NW Ninth Street, Corvallis, OR
is also owned by OCWCOG and is a satellite office for the Agency which houses
OCWCOG programs as well as rented office space.. OCWCOG also leases several
community sites and/or churches to house the Meals on Wheels meal sites. OCWCOG
may lease/purchase additional office space in alterative locations as needed.

Authority

The Executive Director is responsible for the management of the Agency’s facilities and
may designate appropriate staff to oversee the day-to-day management of the buildings
and leased office space, or meal sites as needed.

The Executive Director, Beputy-Agency Director and/or Finance Director have the
authority to negotiate facility leases. The Executive Director is the only authority to sign
lease agreements.

Procedure

The Agency owned facilities are primarily occupied by various departments of the
Agency. Any unoccupied space may be leased to other tenants on an availability basis.

The Agency occupants will be charged at a rate per square foot to occupy the building.
Charges will be computed monthly, billed to the departments and reported as rental
indirect income in the appropriate building fund._Spaces leased to outside agencies will
be accounted for as rental income in the building fund.

Excess income in the building accounts may be used to establish and/or replenish
Board-approved reserves, refund to programs, use as match, or for other purposes.

A Reserve Policy for buildings has been established for both Agency owned buildings
that is included in the annual budget under “Restricted Funds” and is to be set aside for
building replacement costs. The Board adopted Reserve Policy is included in the
Appendix section of this Manual.

The Beputy-Finance Director or designated staff will create and keep current a five-year
maintenance plan for replacement and/or upgrade of the Agency owned buildings. The

23|Page

42



cost associated with the five-year maintenance plan will be recovered in the rent or
lease cost charged per square foot.

24|Page

43



CONTRACTS

Policy

The Executive Director shall enter into appropriate contracts, Personal Service
Agreements, Professionals Services Agreements, Intergovernmental Agreements and
Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of the Agency’s Board to carry out the
functions and purposes of the Agency.

Authority

The Executive Director is responsible for the preparation, review, and execution of all
other contracts entered into by the Agency. The Executive Director may delegate the
preparation and initial review to a designated staff. The Agency will have all contracts,
Personal Service Agreements, Professionals Services Agreements, Intergovernmental
Agreements and Memorandum of Understanding templates approved by the Agency
Legal Counsel._The Executive Director may delegate signature authority to the Agency
Director or Program Directors as necessary.

At any time, the Executive Director or designated staff may request the contracts be
reviewed by the Agency’s Legal Counsel.

Procedure

The Contracts Coordinator(s) is responsible for the monitoring and tracking of the
various contracts and grants coming and going through the agency. The Agency uses
an electronic contract management system to track all contracts with regards to
expiration date, reporting requirement and billing requirement. The Contracts
Coordinator(s) is responsible for recording all contracts, grants, Intergovernmental
Agreements and Memorandum of Understanding in the electronic contract management
system. The Program Director/Manager or designated staff will request a new contract
or agreement from the Contracts Coordinator(s) and write the purpose statement, scope
of work, terms, and consideration before submitting the draft to the Contracts
Coordinator(s). The Finance Director’s involvement in the process is to ensure the
contract is fiscally prudent, for the good of the agency and included in the annual
budget.

Once a final document is prepared, the Contracts Coordinator(s) will start the routing
process, which will involve the Program Director/Manager, Finance Director, and
Executive Director and/or their designee. The Contracts Coordinator(s) will then return
the signed document to the appropriate entities.

The Executive Director negotiates the labor contract and recommends any financial
action to the Finance-CommitteeBoard of Directors for review and approval. and

25|Page

44



The centract-Finance department will maintain hardcopy and electronic files for each
contract, agreement and grant. The Contracts Coordinator(s) will monitor and track
each contract for maturity, insurance and bill the appropriate agency for services.
Tracking of deliverables and match funds will be the responsibly of the various
departments or individual Project Manager.

26|Page

45



COPY MACHINES

Policy

Copy machine usage is tracked by utilization codes. The expenses are charged to the
appropriate program and booked as revenue into the eepy-Office Equipment Ffund.

Authority

On an annual basis, the sepy-fundOffice Equipment Fund is reviewed by the Beputy
BirectorChief Information Officer in coordination with the Exeeutive-Agency Director and
Finance Director. This is to determine the rate of earnings and cost per copy needed to
pay for machine maintenance and replacement expenses.

Procedure

The designated Finance staff will run a monthly report from each copier to determine
the number of copies made for each department and/or program. The designated staff
will also write a journal entry (JE) to charge each program for their copies. The gross
amount will be reflected in the monthly financial statement for each fund.

Personal copying by staff is discouraged. However, when a personal copy is made the
staff must reimburse the agency immediately based on the current copy cost. Each
department will have a secure collection place for these reimbursements. Each program
within the agency will assign staff to be responsible for collection and forwarding the
funds to the Contracts Coordinator monthly. The Contracts Coordinator will log the
funds into the vault, in the same manner for all checks and cash received into the
Finance Department. The appropriate procedure will be followed as addressed in the
Cash Receipts section of this Manual.

The funds received from the staff's copies are recorded as income.

27|Page

46



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Policy

The Agency will prepare and distribute a monthly financial statement to all interested
parties. The financial statement is a public record.

Authority

The Finance Director and/or Finance-ManagerAccounting Supervisor is responsible for
the preparation of the monthly financial statement.

Procedure

The Finance Department will prepare a monthly financial statement as soon as the
necessary information has been collected and the monthly books are closed. The
financial statement will be set up by fund and department based on the annual Work
Program and Budget. The financial statement will include budget, expenses and income
by month, quarter and year-to-date. The financial statement will be designed to facilitate
budget monitoring, planning and report preparation. All Agency financial activity will be
posted and managed to comply with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
and Governmental Accounting Standards as established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Bank Reconciliation. All bank accounts are reconciled monthly by the Finance
Department. Bank reconciliation includes random verifying endorsement on cancelled
checks to ensure checks are received and deposited by the intended recipient. Any
questionable activity will be researched and reconciled in a timely manner.

Payroll Posting. This is carried out through the Agency’s electronic financial system.
Payroll is posted and reconciled to benefit payments, deductions, employer tax
requirements, and cash disbursements on a semi-monthly basis.

Interest Earned. Interest earned on funds in the banks is allocated to the appropriate
fund where the revenue is budgeted. All bank fees imposed will reduce the interest
earned.

Indirect Charges. Monthly indirect charges are computed based on the indirect
allocation plan and by body employed in each department. This process is used to

adequately distribute the expenses. Indirect charges are posted to the financial
statement monthly via recurring journal entry.

28|Page

47



Journal Entries. The Finance Department is responsible for preparing and recording
the necessary monthly journal entries.

Distribution. The monthly financial statement will be made available for distribution
distributed-electronically to all interested parties. This includes the Executive Director,
Program Managers/Directors, and any other impacted parties. The financial statement
is a public document.

29|Page

48



INDIRECT COST PLAN

Policy

The Agency will have an Indirect Cost Plan.

Authority

The Finance Director in coordination with the Executive Director, is responsible for the
development of the annual Indirect Cost Plan.

Procedure

The Finance Director creates the Indirect Cost Plan annually in accordance with the
Agency’s Work Program and Budget.

The Indirect Cost Plan will be allocated based on budgeted staff count.

The annual plan is filed in accordance with Federal Indirect Cost Plan procedures and
requirements.

Amendments may be made to the plan periodically as necessary.

The completed Indirect Cost Plan is kept in the Finance Depariment’s Teams drive and
is accessible by all Finance membersa-binderin-the-Finance-Director's-office-with-all

baek-up-infermation-

30|Page

49



INSURANCE

Policy

The Agency shall maintain adequate insurance coverage to protect the Agency’s
assets, and the Board and staff from liability and financial misconduct.

Authority

The Beputy-Agency Director in coordination with the Executive Director and Finance
Director is responsible for obtaining adequate and appropriate insurance coverage.

Procedure

The Beputy-Agency Director with the assistance of the Finance Director, Executive
Director and Insurance Agent of Record, will determine the type, level of coverage and
provider agency for all Agency insurance and bonding.

The Deputy-Agency Director presents, at time of renewal, insurance and bonding
choices to the Finance Committee for their review and comment.

The Executive Director obtains insurance and bonding coverage.

31|Page

50



INVENTORY/ASSETS

Policy

For insurance purposes, an inventory record will be kept of all equipment and furniture
with an expected life of more than one year. This record will include replacement value
for each item. For accounting or audit purposes, purchases of capital items less than
$5,000 will not be recorded as assets and will be posted as materials and supplies.

Authority

The Fechnology-Services-ManagerInformation Technology Department will be

responsible for the upkeep of the inventory related to building equipment and furniture,
computer, network, telephone and related technology inventory.

Procedure

The Technology-Services-ManagerInformation Technology Department will maintain a

physical inventory of each agency office/site in a database. The database will be
updated on an on-going basis as items are purchased or disposed._A physical inventory
is required annually. The values by location will be reported to the insurance agent
during each fiscal year’s annual insurance renewal process.

Items lost or worn out will be deleted from the list as they are disposed of. ltems that are
to be sold or transferred to an agency are presented to the Board for approval when
State law requires such action. A record will be kept of all items no longer in the agency
inventory for review during the annual audit.

Money received from the sale of obsolete equipment and furniture is recorded as
miscellaneous income to the program that originally purchased the item. If that is not
known, the income will be posted to General Administration.

Capital purchases (over $5,000) shall be posted to the capital outlay category.
Purchases of equipment and furniture shall be posted to materials and supplies. An
annual inventory/asset report will be generated for review during the annual audit.

For tracking purposes, all building equipment and furniture, computer, network,
telephone and related technology inventory items will have bar code tags placed on

them at the time of purchase. For items that cannot accommodate the bar code tag, the
bar code tag will be kept in the inventory binder used to identify the equipment.

32|Page

51



PAYROLL

Policy

All Agency staff will be paid en-thelast-business-day-ofthe-menthtwice monthly, on the
15! and the last business day of the month. All staff are paid via ACH direct deposit or

_ /{ Formatted: Superscript

payroll card. The Agency will only process a physical check if a staff member has been
a subject of bank fraud or changes banks before a direct dep05|t can be set
upestabllshed A y , . y

Authority

The Executive Director or their designee negotiates the Labor contract and
recommends the salary schedules for represented and non-represented personnel to
the Finance CommitteeBoard of Directors. The Finance Committee recommends to the
Beard--The Board adopts the salary schedule as part of the Labor contract or as the
compensation plan for non-represented staff.

Procedure

The personnel/payroll information for new staff is prepared by the Human Resources
(HR) ManagerDirector or designated HR staff and given to the Finance Department
with all the required forms.

The H-R ManagerDirector or designated H-R staff prepares a Personnel Action Form
(PAF) for new staff and/or for any changes in status for current staff as needed. The
form is signed by beth-the-anHR ManagerRepresentative and Program
Director/Manager prior to-the-Executive-Director'sreview-and-signaturesending to

payroll for implementation.

The Finance-ManagerAccounting Supervisor or other designated Finance Department
staff inputs al-new staff in the computerized payroll system. At no time will the
Accounting Clerk-Specialist-PR or designated Finance staff assigned to prefermperform
payroll duties enter new staff in the electronic payroll system.

No changes can be made to a staff’'s payroll or benefits status until a signed payroll
change form is received from the staff requesting the change, or a PAF is received from
the H-R Department. No other form of payroll changes will be acceptable.

Timesheets. A timesheet is required from every staff. Timesheets are entered by

individual staff into the Employee-Self Servicesoftware (ESS)NetSuite Employee

33|Page

52



Center each week.-by-the-timesheet-due-date-posted-in-the-intranet. Once entered, staff
prints;-sighs-and-submits their timesheet to their direct supervisor for review and
approval. Timesheets and approved leave requests ferms-are submitted-approved
through Employee Center by the supervisor to the Finance Department by-the

Hmesheet—da&da%ewnhln 5 davs of the pay perlod close (4‘h and 20th ) Ihe—Emanee _—{ Formatted: superscript

Withholdings. All required deductions and benefits will be withheld from the staff’'s
gross pay and reported to the appropriate agencies.

Payroll Processing. Payroll is uploaded into the electronic financial system based on
the approved timesheet. Prior to the completion of payroll, the Accounting Specialist or
designated staff balanee-review payroll for errors and updates. At no time will the
individual completing the monthly payroll batch bataree-payrelisubmit payroll without
another Department member reviewing. All payroll related accounts are balanced and
reconciled monthly. Taxes associated with payroll are paid the next business day and
all costs associated with payroll are paid within five (5) business days after payday.

Direct Deposit. All staffs are required to enroll in one of two (2) forms of electronic
deposit offered by the Agency: direct ACH, or a payroll card. No paper checks are
issued to staff. Net payroll will be electronically deposited into staff’'s personal checking
account by 10:00 a.m. on the designated payday.

Staff may access their payroll stub through ESSEmployee Center. Staff may print a
copy if desired on an Agency copy machine or printer at no cost to them. If additional
copies of monthly payroll stubs are needed, there is a cost of $0.05 for each black and
white copy.

34|Page

53



POSTAGE

Policy

Agency satellite offices have a mail service, or are provided a postage meter, that will
track expenditures by program.

Authority

The Finance Director in coordination with the Executive Director and Beputy-Agency
Director determine the best service that meets the postage needs of the office.

Procedure

For offices utilizing a mail service, daily mail is deposited by designated staff in a central
location in the Agency. All departments have designated staff to process mail for pick up
by the mail service. The mail service bills monthly by program area. Offices that have a
postage meter will request a check or have postage replenished through direct
withdrawal from the appropriate bank account. Any direct withdrawal transaction for
postage meters will be included with the bank charges JE at the end of each month.

35|Page

54



PURCHASING

Policy

Purchasing is controlled by the Agency budget.

Authority

The Executive Director, Agency Director, and Program Directors/Managers are
authorized to purchase equipment, materials and supplies within the constraints of their
programs’ adopted budget and public OCWCOG Board adopted purchasing policies.

Procedure

Expenditure control is the responsibility of the Program Director(s) and is subject to their
program’s budget. Program Directors/Managers or designated staff can order items as
they are deemed necessary for their program as per their authorized expenditure limit. It
is recommended that bulk purchasing and taking advantage of State contract
arrangements to reduce costs be utilized. Best efforts will be made to complete and
receive orders in a timely manner, purchasing the most appropriate supply solutions,
considering cost and quality parameters. All purchases shall be pre-approved by the
appropriate Program Director/Manager before requests are submitted to the finance
department for processing. Any invoices and statements will follow the Accounts
Payable section of this Manual.

Office Supplies. The finance department is responsible for coordinating office supply
purchasing and negotiating pricing with supply vendors. All office supplies must be
approved for purchase prior to being requested. Each department has a designated
staff to complete the office supply order form on a monthly basis. Once completed, the
order sheets are forwarded to the Finance Admin-AssistantDepartment for entry. The
£ i e . o _

Janitorial Supplies. The purchase of janitorial supplies is the responsibility of the
Facility Maintenance Coordinator. The Facility Maintenance Coordinator will
communicate with the janitorial/cleaning service for usage and needs.

36|Page

55



Office Equipment/Significant Purchases. Office equipment and significant purchases

will be purchased by the |T Department Firanee-Department with the Finance Director
and Program Director/Manager having approval decision rights based on cost, quality,

needs, and budget parameters.

The Finance Director reviews monthly financial reports and detail for any unusual or
exceptional budget issues due to purchases. These are discussed as required with the
appropriate Program Director for reconciliation.

37|Page

56



TRAVEL EXPENSE

Policy

Staff will be reimbursed business-related mileage at the cents-per-mile rate established
annually by the Internal Revenue Service. Any change in rate will go into effect January
18t or at any time the Federal mileage rate changes. Other Ttravel expenses will be
reimbursed at the actual expense (airfare, hotel, tolls, parking). Volunteers are
reimbursed at $0.25 per mile for all required travel. Meals will be paid using the current
Federal General Services Administration (GSA) per diem rate for the region where the

expense occurs.

Authority

Travel Expense is also outlined in the OCWCOG Personnel Policies Handbook.
Changes to travel expense policies may be recommended by the Executive Director to
the Finance Committee for review and recommended Board adoption.

Procedure

Authorized use of a private vehicle for agency business shall be reimbursed at the
policy rate. Overnight travel will be reimbursed-paid for meals and lodging. Itemized
receipts are required for reimbursement (hotel, airfare, parking, tolls). At no time will the
Agency reimburse for the purchase of alcohol, marijuana or pornography. Meals will be
paid using the current GSA per diem rate for the region where the expense is occurring.
Time and monetary minimums for reimbursement are three (3) months or $30,
whichever minimum is reached first. All travel expenses must be authorized in writing by
the appropriate Program Director/Manager.

The Accounts Payable procedure in this Manual will be followed for travel and expense
reimbursements.

38|Page

57



VENDOR CHARGE ACCOUNTS

Policy
Program Directors/Managers may request the Finance Director to establish charge

accounts with vendors they use on a regular basis.

Authority

The Finance Director will establish an account requested by a Program
Director/Manager.

Procedure

The Program Director/Manager or designated staff can obtain a charge account
application from the vendor or provide a vendor contact name and number to the
Finance Department.

The Finance Department will complete the application and send to the vendor. The
Finance Department will inform the Program Director/Manager when the account is
approved and open.

Invoices received for charge accounts will follow the Accounts Payable section of this
Manual.

39|Page

58



AGENCY CREDIT CARD ACCOUNTS

Policy

Based on a thorough review of credit and purchase card companies, the Agency
selected the US Bank One Card as the Agency'’s credit card. This card is attached to
the agency’s assets not an individuals, offers a no fee program that has online
cardholder and limit management. The Executive Director, Program
Directors/Managers, Supervisors and authorized staff are provided an Agency One
Card in their name. Cards are authorized in various amounts based on the
follewingprogrammatic and business need but eannetshould not exceed single
purchase limits as outlined in the expenditure authorization limits policy without prior
Program and Finance Director authorizations:

e Program staff $500-001,000

e Executive Assistants $1000.001,500

e Program Managers and Supervisors $5000.0010,000
e Agency Director and Program Directors $15,000

[

Executive Director and-Pregram-Directors-$10000.0025,000.

Program Directors/Managers can request a temporary increased limit for a
specific period of time. Charges are to be made for business-related expenses
only.

Authority

The Finance Director in coordination with the Executive Director authorizes positions
that will be issued One Cards. Program Directors can request that a One Card be
issued to additional staff as needed.

Procedure

One Card requests are made to the Finance Director in writing from the Program

charges monthly for reconciliation. Detailed receipts for each purchase are required.

One Card holders will indicate the general ledger account and grant and/or project
management-codes to be charged on each receipt and submit to their
manager/supervisor for review and approval before submitting to the Finance
Department. The specifications on authorized purchases are listed on a Letter of
Understanding that is signed by the One Card recipients upon being issued their card.

40|Page

59



Card holders will not charge personal expenses to the Agency’s One Card. When, in the
course of travel for training, a mixture of personal and employment expense is billed
together, (e.g. on a hotel bill), all personal expenses on the bill will be paid directly at the
time of check-out and subtracted from the bill before the Agency’s One Card is used. If
for any reason beyond the staff’s control, there are personal charges made on the One
Card, these charges will be reimbursed to the Agency immediately.

If staff travels with a companion not employed by the Agency, and additional costs are
incurred for the companion, the difference will be paid directly at time of check-out and
subtracted from the bill before the Agency’s One Card is used.

Billings are paid by the due date to avoid interest charges following the Accounts
Payable process in this Manual.

When a staff terminates, the One Card must be immediately returned to the Finance
Department. Returned cards are cancelled and destroyed.

41|Page

60



61

42| Page




m VISION To prom.o.te a thrlylng region through service,
connectivity, and innovation.

Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.
DATE: July 17, 2025
TO: OCWCOG Board of Directors
FROM: Marit Nelson, Finance Director
RE: OCWCOG Purchasing and Contracts Policy

Please find attached the updated Purchasing and Contracts Policy for your review and
approval.

The last minor update to this manual took place in 2023. Since that time, the State of
Oregon has revised their limits on procurements. We have adjusted this policy in
addition to our fiscal policies to reflect that update (Please see Finance Policy Update)
Other minor housekeeping updates have been made as well.

It is my request and recommendation that the Board approve the updates and adopted
the revised Purchasing and Contracts Policy effective July 1, 2025.

Please let me know if you have any questions or comments.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9" Steet 203 North Main Steet
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
62



OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF
GOVERNMENTS

Purchasing & Contracts Policy 2025

i

—
OREGON CASCADES WEST

Council of
Governments

63



OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

64



OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENT

Purchasing & Contracts Policy

Table of Contents

ADMINISTRATION
DEFINITIONS
PROCUREMENT PROCESS
a. Commencement of the Procurement Process.

Isa

Documentation.

N N O OO W Ww

c. Procurement Types.

i.  Qualified Rehabilitation Facility Program is a non-profit rehabilitation organization employing
individuals with disabilities.

i. DAS Statewide Price Agreement (Price Agreement)
ii. Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA).

Small Procurement.

7
8
8
iv. Open Market Procurement Methods. 8
8
Intermediate Procurement. 9

9

Competitive Sealed Proposals or Competitive Sealed Bidding.

1
2
3
4. Sole Source Procurement. 16
5. Emergency Procurement. 17
O

v. Other Procurement Procedures 17

WOCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

65



1. ADMINISTRATION
a. Enabling Clause. Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG) Purchasing and
Contracts Policy is binding upon all officers and employees of OCWCOG and governs all
purchasing, leasing, selling, and contracting by officers and employees of OCWCOG.

b. Local Contract Review Officer. The OCWCOG Contracts Coordinator(s) serves as the Local
Contract Review Officer(s) for the purposes of determining whether a given procurement or class
of procurement is classified appropriately and if all appropriate documentation is sufficient for
disclosure to outside parties. Contracts Coordinators have authority on all decisions related to
procurement procedure and interpretation as to sufficiency, above all employees, with the
exception of the Public Contracting Officer.

c. Attorney General’s Rules Applicable
i. As OCWCOG was formed as a government agency under ORS Chapter 190, it has the

authority to enter into public contracts. Consistent with ORS 279A.065(6) and ORS
279A.070, except where OCWCOG has specifically adopted a modified purchasing process,
policy or rule, the Attorney General's Model Rules, as adopted under ORS 279A.065
following each legislative session, are applicable to OCWCOG purchases. Outside of the
public purchasing rules, all other applicable laws, including Oregon State Ethics laws, as well
as federal laws will be applied. If laws conflict, whichever is most restrictive shall supersede
and must be complied with in making purchases.

ii. The procurement rules and this purchasing policy are both applicable to all OCWCOG
departments and divisions.

d. Contract Signing Authority. The OCWCOG Executive Director and Agency Director, has
contract signing autherity-trauthority. In the absence of an Executive Director and Agency
Director, the OCWCOG Board of Directors, may delegate contract signing authority to another
manager to act as the Public Contracting Officer for a specific department or for OCWCOG and
has the authority to enter into contracts on behalf of the department and OCWCOG.

e. All Contracts in Writing. All contracts to which OCWCOG is a party must be in writing.

2. DEFINITIONS
Except as listed below, this policy relies upon the definitions set out in OAR 137-046-0110.

a. Definitions. As used in OCWCOG Purchasing and Contracts Policy:
i. "Bid" means a Written response to an Invitation to Bid.

ii. "Board" means the OCWCOG Board of Directors, as established by in ORS
279A.060.

ii. "Competitive Bid" means issuing an Invitation to Bid (ITB) following the formal process
for advertising, bid and bid opening in accordance with ORS 279B and 279C.335
(Competitive bidding).

iv. "Competitive Process" means the solicitation of competitive offers which follow the
formal process for advertising, request for proposal (RFP), bid and bid opening.

WOCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

66



v."Competitive Quotes™ means the solicitation of offers from competing vendors by
advertisement or a request to vendors to make an offer. The solicitation and the offer may be
in writing or oral.

vi. “Contracts Coordinator” means the OCWCOG Contracts Coordinator(s), who may
review and offer advice on proposed contract(s) and who have the authority to approve
procurement methods and documentation by evaluating them as to applicable law(s).
Such approval is required prior to any disclosure of procurement documents to outside
parties, including via. Electronic Advertisement means, such as email or posting on the
State’s procurement system, or on any web site on the World Wide Web. Contracts
Coordinator(s) have authority on all decisions related to procurement procedure and
interpretation as to sufficiency, above all employees, with the exception of the Public
Contracting Officer. To be sure of legal sufficiency, Contracts Coordinator(s) may also, at
any time, contact the OCWCOG Attorney of Record regarding any procurement or contract
matter in any stage of development or execution.

vi.  “Department” means an OCWCOG department such as, but not limited to, the
Community and Economic Development Department, Senior and Disabled Services
Department, Facilities, etc..

vii.  "Electronic Advertisement” means OCWCOG'’s solicitation documents, requests for
quotes, and requests for information or other document inviting participation in OCWCOG's
procurements made via OregonBuys.

iX. "Electronic Data Interchange or EDI" means the movement of electronic information
between organizations in a structured application.

x."Emergency" means that a substantial risk of loss, damage, interruption of services, or
threat to the public health or safety has arisen from circumstances that could not have been
reasonably foreseen.

Xi. "Invitation to Bid" (ITB) means the solicitation of competitive offers in which
specification, price and delivery (or project completion) will be the predominant award
criteria.

Xii. "Material and Service Contract"” means an agreement in which the vendor agrees to
supply all the purchaser's requirements that arise for an item or items within a specified time
period, also referred to as a Price Agreement.

xii. "OCWCOG" means Oregon Cascades West Council of Government or its Public
Contracting Officer(s).

xiv.  "Offer" means a written offer to provide goods or services in response to a solicitation

document.
xv.  "Offeror" means a person or firm submitting an offer.
xvi.  "Personal Property" means everything subject to ownership which is not real property,

and which has exchangeable value.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

67



xvii.  "Personal Services Contracts™ means a contract that calls for specialized skills,
knowledge and resources in the application of technical or scientific expertise, or the exercise
of professional, artistic or management discretion or judgment.

xviii. "Proposal" means a competitive Offer, binding on the Proposer and submitted in
response to a Request for Proposal (RFP).

xix.  "Public Agency or Public Contracting Agency" means any agency of the federal
government, State of Oregon, or any political subdivision thereof authorized by law to enter

into public contracts, municipality and any other public body created by intergovernmental
agreement.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

68



xx.  "Public Contract” means any purchase, lease, or sale by a public agency of personal
property, public improvements or services other than agreements which are for personal
services.

xxi.  "Public Contracting Officer” means the OCWCOG Executive Director and/or Agency
Director who has signing authority on contracts for OCWCOG. The Executive Director,-and
Agency [Directorj or in their absence, the OCWCOG Board, may delegate contract signing
authority to another manager to act as the Public Contracting Officer and has the authority to
enter into contracts on behalf of the department and OCWCOG.

xxii.  "Public Improvement” means a project for construction, reconstruction or major
renovation on real property by or for a public agency. "Public Improvement" does not include
emergency work, minor alterations, ordinary repair or maintenance necessary in order to
preserve a public improvement.

xxiii. “Retainage” means funds set-aside as a contingency for capital projects.

xxiv. "Request for Proposal” means a solicitation of competitive proposals, or offers, to be
used as a basis for making an acquisition, or entering into a contract when specification and
price will not necessarily be the predominant award criteria.

xxv. "Service Contract” means a contract that calls primarily for a contractor's time and effort
rather than for an end product.

xxvi. "Solicitation Document" means an Invitation to Bid (ITB), a Request for Proposals
(RFP), er-a written Request for Quotations or Request for Qualifications (RFQ), or other
similar documents issued to invite offers from prospective contractors under ORS
Chapter 279B (Public Procurements) or 279C. This does not include a Request for
Qualifications, a prequalification of bidders, a request for information, a sole source
notice, an approval of a Special Procurement, or a request for product prequalification,
unless they invite offers from prospective contractors. A project-specific selection
document under a Price Agreement that has resulted from a previous Solicitation
Document is not itself a Solicitation Document.

xxvii. “State’s Active Procurement System” means the Oregon State web-based
procurement system which is active and available to ORCPP members at the time of the
solicitation. This could be ORPIN, or Oregon Buys, or another system as determined by
a Contracts Coordinator.

3. PROCUREMENT PROCESS
a. Commencement of the Procurement Process.

i. Any OCWCOG employee who has determined that there’s a need to purchase something for
the agency, which either a) requires an Agreement, or b) is valued near or over fiveten
thousand dollars ($105,000.00), must first contact a Contracts Coordinator. The employee will
do this

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

69



through email with details to inform a Contracts Coordinator of the employee’s intention and
purpose. This protocol is to prevent duplication and the potential improper application of the
law. Any request for evaluation by a Contracts Coordinator must be made and will be
responded to through email. No verbal discussions or advice regarding solicitations will be
upheld as an approval or sign-off, implied or otherwise.

ii. The Contracts Coordinator will then share the appropriate forms, templates, and/or protocol
for the process which the inquiring employee needs to follow.

ii.  The purchasing total for the contract must take into account the lifetime total of expenses.
That is, if the contract is expected to renew annually, then the total of expenses related to all
renewals must be added together and the rules will then be applied to that grand total.

iv.  All purchases require manager approval.

v.  All employees who will work on solicitations which will require a Contract/Agreement will
be required to register with the Oregon State Current Online Training Portal and complete
the Program entitled “Overview of Oregon Ethics,” or its equal, as determined by the
Contracts Coordinators. The employee must email a .pdf copy of their certificate of
completion of this course to a Contracts Coordinator. In addition, the employee must take a
DAS training on procurement within six months of the solicitation and sign in on the Record
of Attendance or provide the certificate of completion as proof of attendance.

vi.  All employees who need a Contract/Agreement to be executed may be required to draft
portions of the Contract/Agreement as directed by a Contracts Coordinator.

vii.  All employees should be aware that among other things, Oregon Ethics Laws prohibit
public employees from having a financial interest in a public contract; receiving benefits
arising from their employment, such as “kick-backs” for purchasing; and nepotism. All
employees must be familiar with Oregon Ethics Laws before doing any purchasing on behalf
of OCWCOG. Any potential Conflicts of Interest must be disclosed to the employee’s
supervisor, in writing. It is also understood that all contracts should be procured in a non-
biased manner, favoring competition, and with the aim to benefit the public good.

viii.  Only a Contracts Coordinator or Public Contracting Officer may post on the State’s Active
Procurement System. Purchasing employees may use the State’s Active Procurement
System to browse for Oregon State Price Agreements, vendors, or other solicitations or
associated documents.

ix.  All Contracts/Agreements that are drafted internally will be routed by the Contracts
Coordinators to the public contracting officer first. Once signature is obtained, the contact
coordinator will then route the Contract/Agreement internally for sign off by the appropriate
departmental directers-Fhedirectors. The signature of departmental directors indicates that
that the department director has read and understands the Contract/Agreement and the
department is able to meet all requirements of that Contract/Agreement. All Metropolitan
Planning Organization (MPO) Contracts/Agreements must be routed from the Contracts
Coordinators to appropriate department directors for sign off, and then for signature by the
authorizing signer for each particular MPO.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

70



x.If an employee becomes aware of a contract/agreement issue being raised by any party to an

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

7



OCWCOG Contract/Agreement, the employee must immediately inform a Contracts
Coordinator. The employee must also allow a Contracts Coordinator to participate in any
meetings and/or discussions regarding the Contract/Agreement until the Contracts
Coordinator has determined that the matter is settled enough to stop doing so. Upon learning
about the issue, the Contracts Coordinator will also immediately notify the Public Contracting
Officer of the situation.

xi.  Any employees’ failure to follow the procedures detailed in this policy may result in
personnel actions as determined to be appropriate by management or Human Resources.

b. Documentation.

i. All solicitations must be documented in writing, including the name of the person who was H—[ Formatted: Line spacing: Multiple 1.08 li

contacted, their contact information, the method of contact, and the date and time of the
contact. The documentation for procurement valued at five-ten thousand dollars
[($57999.—QQ\Q,M) or more must be shared with a Contracts Coordinator by email for the
contract file, which is subject to Public Information Request and/or audit.

ii. Acceptable types of documentation will be determined on case by case basis by a Contracts
Coordinator, examples are:

1. OCWCOG Buy Decision Form, Sole Source Determination Form, Emergency
Procurement Form; and/or

2. Typed out statement by the OCWCOG employee who is purchasing the product or
service; and/or

3. Print outs or .pdf electronic copies of emails or of public notice postings.

c. Procurement Types.

i. Qualified Rehabilitation Facility Program is a non-profit rehabilitation organization
employing individuals with disabilities.

1. OCWCOG is mandated by Oregon law to first assess the availability of products or
services from a QRF before going out to the open market. If a QRF is able to provide
OCWCOG with a needed product or service, then ORS 279.850 requires OCWCOG to
use the QRF unless the QRF cannot deliver the product or service with the appropriate
specifications in a timely manner.

2. If a QRF is able to provide OCWCOG with a needed product or service, then OCWCOG
can use their services through their existing State Contract rather than a competitive
procurement process or may contract directly with the agency.

3. If a QRF is unable to fulfill OCWCOG's existing need(s), then OCWCOG may use another
procurement method to meet the need(s). It is the responsibility of the purchasing
employee to ensure that they have sufficiently determined that a QRF is or is not able to
fulfill OCWCOG’s needs, according to ORS 279.850(1)(a) and OAR125-055-0010(1).

4. For purchases of fiveten thousand dollars ($5,000-0010,000) or more, or which %ﬂ Formatted: Line spacing: Multiple 1.08 li

require a Contract/Agreement, the OCWCOG Buy Decision Form must be filled

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

72



out by the employee and submitted by email to the Contracts Coordinators.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

73



i. DAS Statewide Price Agreement (Master Blanket Purchase Order) is a Master
Agreement for the procurement of products or services at terms for use by all state
entities. Price Agreements benefit agencies by obtaining price discounts and leveraging
other concessions through volume purchases.

5. OCWCOG employees may search State’s Active Procurement System for existing
contracts that might meet OCWCOG'’s purchasing needs.

6. Employees wishing to register on State’s Active Procurement System must do so through
a Contracts Coordinator, who track the agency’s usage.

7. If an OCWCOG employee finds an existing Contract (Master Blanket Purchase Order)
that appears to meet the agency’s needs, the employee may reach out directly to the
contact on the agreement for a quote. If the quote and service or product details meet
OCWCOG's needs, then the employee should contact their Contract Coordinator. The
Contract Coordinator will ensure the appropriate paperwork will be prepared (Purchase
Order, Contract, etc.) and ensure the purchase proceeds.

ii. Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). An ORS 190 Agreement is an intergovernmental
agreement between two or more public agencies that seek to foster efficiency and economy
by promoting the use of existing resources. Specifically, IGA’s are between the Oregon public
agencies of state, local or federal government.

If doing so would benefit OCWCOG, the OCWCOG may enter into an IGA at any time during
the procurement process, as an IGA is not subject to the competitive procurement processes
or the QRF requirements.

ii. Open Market Procurement Methods. If neither a QRF nor DAS Statewide Price
Agreement can meet OCWCOG'’s needs, with documentation as specified under Section 3,
Provision b, an employee can use an Open Market Procurement Method:

1. Small Procurement.
a. If the lifetime total of the contract expenses, including renewals, will be under
$1025,000, an OCWCOG employee may purchase the product or service directly with
manager approval.

b. The OCWCOG employee must estimate on the procurement form as to the expected
grand total of expenses for the contract. If it is expected to exceed $8,000 and there
is a reasonable chance that OCWCOG may amend the contract to more than $12,500
over the life of the contract, then the OCWCOG employee must go through another
procurement method.

2. Intermediate Procurement.

a. If the lifetime total of the contract expenses, including renewals, will be more than
$4025,000 but less than or equal to $150250,000, then the Intermediate Procurement
rules apply. A minimum of three solicitations for quotes, bids, or proposals from
suppliers is required.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

74



b. OCWCOG requires that for all Intermediate Procurements a Request for Quotation or
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) document be published through the State’s Active
Procurement System for seven (7) days. A Contracts Coordinator will give the
purchasing employee an RFQ template for this purpose. The purchasing employee
then will email the draft back to a Contracts Coordinator for approval and publishing
on the system.

c. Any additional verbal quotes must be documented and included in the procurement
file. Documentation of the vendors contacted must include their legal company
names; primary contacts; addresses; email and/or phone contacts; and price quotes,
along with any particulars for them, such as time frame, extra options, etc.

d. The employee must document the effort it took to obtain any additional quotes or
proposals and include it in the procurement file.

e. The OCWCOG employee who is purchasing the product or service must document
the basis for the original estimate under $450,000$250,000 and the process used, as
well as obtain manager approval for the purchase. Upon awarding the contract, the
OCWCOG employee will then make a written record of the basis for award and email
it to a Contracts Coordinator.

3. Competitive Sealed Proposals or Competitive Sealed Bidding.
a. If the lifetime total of the contract expenses, including renewals, will be more than
$150250,000, then either the Competitive Sealed Proposals method or the Competitive
Sealed Bidding method must be used.

i. Competitive Sealed Proposals are solicited through the Request for Proposal
(RFP) process under ORS 279B.060. Through RFP, proposals may be evaluated
by several factors, based on the process and factors described in the request for
proposals, applicable preferences described in ORS 279A.120 and 279A.125,
price, and, when applicable, the outcome of any negotiations authorized by the
request for proposals. Other factors may not be used in the evaluation.

1. OCWCOG may issue a Request for Information, a Request for Interest, a
Request for Qualifications or other preliminary documents to obtain
information useful in preparing an RFP.

2. All documents to be issued for an RFP will be drafted by the purchasing
employee, submitted to a Contracts Coordinator at least five business days
prior to its required deadline for posting on the State’s Active Procurement
System. The exception is the RFP document itself which must be submitted
21 business days prior to posting to give time for legal review. As stated in
section 3. a. vii. Contracts Coordinators will post the documents on the State’s
Active Procurement System, upon determining that they are sufficient.

3. OCWCOG has RFP templates available to use for drafting a solicitation.
Depending on the product or service being solicited, there are many more
laws that will apply to the RFP document. Once drafted, it must be submitted
to a Contracts Coordinator to foster its evaluation for sufficiency.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

75



4. Contracts Coordinators are required to submit the RFP document to be
reviewed by an attorney prior to it being published.

5. The RFP document must specify the name and title of the person designated
to receive proposals and the person the contracting agency designates as the
contact person for the procurement, if different.

6. The RFP document must describe the procurement and will identify the scope
of work included within the procurement, outlining the contractor’s anticipated
duties and set expectations for the contractor’s performance. The scope of
work will require the contractor to meet the highest standards prevalent in the
industry or business most closely involved in providing the appropriate goods
or services. It will also include an Attachment with a draft of the contract with
insurance requirements for the product or service.

7. The RFP document must specify the separate deadlines for questions and
protests, and how they may be received with specific contact information, as
well as who will respond and when. All OCWCOG responses must be in
writing. OCWCOG decisions regarding protests must be made according to
ORS 279B.405 no fewer than three business days before bids, proposals or
offers are due.

8. Prior to the RFP being finalized, OCWCOG will form an evaluation committee
comprised of at least three (3) employees or unbiased, outside parties without
financial interest in the proposed contract. The committee members must be
able to meet prior to the RFP being posted to clarify any questions. They then
must also be physically present for the pre-bid conference, if any, and for the
evaluation session of the received proposals.

9. As provided in the RFP or in written addenda issued thereunder, OCWCOG
may conduct site tours, demonstrations, individual or group discussions and
other informational activities with proposers before or after the opening of
proposals for the purpose of clarification to ensure full understanding of, and
responsiveness to, the solicitation requirements or to consider and respond to
requests for modifications of the proposal requirements. OCWCOG will use
procedures designed to accord proposers fair and equal treatment with
respect to any opportunity for discussion and revision of proposals.

10. Retainage, if any, will be determined on a case by case basis by the Public
Contracting Officer, will be specified by contract between the parties and will
conform to the requirements of ORS 279C.550 through 279C.570.

11. All RFP questions from potential respondents must be answered in writing
within one response document or email, as a Q & A document, per the
deadline specified in the RFP document itself. This Q & A document will then
be submitted to a Contracts Coordinator who upon finding it sufficient will post
it on the State’s active procurement system.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

76



12. Form of Security. OCWCOG may accept only the following forms of bid

security:
a. A surety bond from a surety company authorized to do business in the
State of Oregon;

b. Anirrevocable letter of credit issued by an insured institution as defined in
ORS 706.008; or,
c. A cashier’s check or certified check.

13. OCWCOG will give public notice of the RFP at least seven days before the
solicitation closing date. This will be done in the following manner:

Once a Contracts Coordinator has approved the RFP as being sufficient, at a
minimum, they will publish it on the State’s Active Procurement System. The
Contracts Coordinator may choose to electronically publish it by other means
as well.

14. OCWCOG will designate a deadline for submission of bids or proposals.
Offerors or proposers are responsible for ensuring their offers or proposals are
timely. OCWCOG may decline to consider a late offer, even if the offer or
proposal is late because of a delay in OCWCOG's internal handling of mail or
documents or because OCWCOG's receiving equipment was unavailable.

15. Notwithstanding ORS 192.311 to 192.478, proposals must be publicly opened
and in a manner to avoid disclosing contents to competing proposers during,
when applicable, the process of negotiation, but OCWCOG will record and
make available the identity of all proposers as part of OCWCOG’s public
records after the proposals are opened. To do so, the purchasing employee
will type-up an RFP Receipt Record immediately after publicly opened and
submit it to a Contracts Coordinator for posting on the State’s Active
Procurement System.

16. Notwithstanding ORS 192.311 to 192.478, proposals are not required to be
opened for public inspection until after the Notice of Intent to Award a contract
is issued.

17. After the opening of proposals, OCWCOG may issue or electronically post an
addendum to the request for proposals that modifies the criteria, rating
process and procedure for any tier of competition before the start of the tier to
which the addendum applies. OCWCOG will send an addendum that is issued
by a method other than electronic posting to all proposers who are eligible to
compete under the addendum. OCWCOG will issue or post the addendum at
least five days before the start of the subject tier of competition or as
OCWCOG otherwise determines is adequate to allow eligible proposers to
prepare for the competition in accordance with rules adopted under ORS
279A.065. It is the responsibility of the purchasing employee to inform a
Contracts Coordinator that an addendum is needed, to draft it, to find out the
required timeline for doing so and to submit the draft in a timely manner
accordingly.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

77



18. Correction of Certain Errors. Arithmetic errors apparent on the face of a bid will
be corrected by OCWCOG before comparing bid prices. Discrepancies
between a unit price and an extended total price for a bid item will be resolved
in favor of the unit price.

19. Proposals will be evaluated based upon the evaluation criteria established by
the RFP. Changes in evaluation criteria will be communicated to all proposers
or prospective proposers by addendum. If evaluation criteria are changed after
proposals have been submitted, all proposers will have an opportunity to
supplement their proposals or submit best and final offers after receipt of the
addendum changing the evaluation criteria.

20. If OCWCOG awards a Contract, it will award the Contract to the responsible
proposer whose proposal OCWCOG determines in writing is the most
advantageous to OCWCOG based on the evaluation process and evaluation
factors described in the request for proposals, applicable preferences
described in ORS 279A.120 and 279A.125 and, when applicable, the outcome
of any negotiations authorized by the RFP. Other factors may not be used in
the evaluation. When the RFP specifies or authorizes awarding multiple public
contracts, OCWCOG will award public contracts to the responsible proposers
who qualify for the award of a contract under the terms of the request for
proposals.

21. The cancellation of RFPs and the rejection of proposals must be in
accordance with ORS 279B.100.

22. At least seven days before the award of a public contract, unless OCWCOG
determines that seven days is impractical under rules adopted under ORS
279A.065, OCWCOG will post a Notice of Intent to Award a contract on the
State’s Active Procurement System. The purchasing employee will draft the
Notice and submit it to a Contracts Coordinator via email.

23. A Proposer may protest the award of a public contract or a Notice of Intent to
Award a public contract, according to ORS 279B.410. A Contracts
Coordinator will respond to the protest or appeal, with sign off from the Public
Contracting Officer, within the timeframe and according to ORS 279B.405 and
ORS 279B.415. Such responses do not require OCWCOG Board approval.

24. Before executing a contract solicited under this section, OCWCOG will obtain
the proposer’s agreement to perform the scope of work and meet the
performance standards set forth in the final negotiated scope of work. [2003
€.794 §52; 2009 c.880 §6; 2011 c.458 §12]

ii. Competitive Sealed Bidding is solicited through the Invitation to Bid (ITB)
process under ORS 279B.055. The process permits an award to the lowest
responsive and responsible bidder and does not allow a procuring agency to
negotiate with a bidder. OCWCOG should use the Competitive Sealed Bidding
method when it is clear on “what” the product or service is and “how” the product
or service must perform. OCWCOG should use the Competitive Sealed Bidding

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

78



method if there are no substantive differences among the products or services
that meet specifications, and the only difference among responsive bids is price.

1.

OCWCOG may issue a Request for Information, a Request for Interest, a
Request for Qualifications or other preliminary documents to obtain
information useful in preparing an ITB.

All documents to be issued for an ITB will be drafted by the purchasing
employee, submitted to a Contracts Coordinator at least five business days
prior to its required deadline for posting on the State’s Active Procurement
System. The exception is the ITB document itself which must be submitted 21
business days prior to posting to give time for legal review. As stated in
section 3.a.vii., Contracts Coordinators will post the documents on the State’s
active procurement system, upon determining that they are sufficient.

OCWCOG has ITB templates available to use for drafting a solicitation.
Depending on the product or service being solicited, there are many more
laws that will apply to the ITB document. Once drafted by the purchasing
employee, it must be submitted to a Contracts Coordinator to foster its
evaluation for sufficiency.

OCWCOG will designate a deadline for submission of bids. Offerors or
proposers are responsible for ensuring their offers or proposals are timely.
OCWCOG may decline to consider a late offer, even if the offer or proposal is
late because of a delay in OCWCOG's internal handling of mail or documents
or because OCWCOG's receiving equipment was unavailable.

The ITB document must specify the name and title of the OCWCOG employee
designated to receive bids and the person OCWCOG designates as the
contact person for the procurement, if different.

The ITB document must describe the procurement and will identify the scope
of work included within the procurement, outlining the contractor’s anticipated
duties and set expectations for the contractor’s performance. The scope of
work will require the contractor to meet the highest standards prevalent in the
industry or business most closely involved in providing the appropriate goods
or services. It will also include an Attachment with a sample draft of the
contract for the product or service.

The ITB document must specify the separate deadlines for questions and
protests, and how they may be received with specific contact information, as
well as who will respond and when. All OCWCOG responses must be in
writing. OCWCOG decisions regarding protests must be made according to
ORS 279B.405 no fewer than three business days before bids, proposals or
offers are due.

Form of Security. OCWCOG may accept only the following forms of bid
security:

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

79



a. A surety bond from a surety company authorized to do business in the
State of Oregon;

b. Anirrevocable letter of credit issued by an insured institution as defined in
ORS 706.008; or,

c. A cashier’s check or certified check.

9. Al ITB questions from potential respondents must be answered in writing
within one response document or email, as a Q & A document, per the
deadline specified in the ITB document itself. This Q and A document will then
be submitted to a Contracts Coordinator who upon finding it sufficient will post

it on the State’s Active Procurement System five business days prior to the [ Formatted: Font: Bold, Font color: Auto

ITB deadline for submission, unless otherwise provided in the solicitation

Formatted: Font color: Auto
document(s). { d nAd

10. OCWCOG will give public notice of the ITB at least fourteen (14) days before
the solicitation closing date. This may be done in the following manner:

Once a Contracts Coordinator has approved the ITB as being sufficient, at a
minimum, they will publish it on the State’s Active Procurement System. The
Contracts Coordinator may choose to electronically publish it by other means
as well.

11. Receipt. Bids must be submitted in writing. OCWCOG will not open the offer,
proposal or modification, but will date and time stamp the offer and store it in a
secure place until the published opening time and date. If OCWCOG
inadvertently opens an offer, proposal or a modification, prior to the opening,
OCWCOG will reseal and store the opened bid.

12. Offerors or proposers are responsible for ensuring their offers are received by
OCWCOG in a complete and legible form. OCWCOG may decline to consider
an offer that is incomplete or illegible, even if the problem is caused by
OCWCOG's hardware or software.

13. OCWCOG will open bids publicly at the time, date and place designated in the
ITB. OCWCOG will designate a deadline for submission of bids.

14. Notwithstanding a requirement to make bids open to public inspection after
OCWCOG issues Notice of Intent to Award a contract, OCWCOG may
withhold from disclosure to the public trade secrets, as defined in ORS
192.345, and information submitted to a public body in confidence, as
described in ORS 192.355, that are contained in a bid.

15. OCWCOG will record the amount of a bid, the name of the bidder and other
relevant information specified by rule adopted under ORS 279A.065. The
record will be open to public inspection. The purchasing employee will type-up
an ITB Receipt Record for this purpose immediately after the public opening of
bids. The ITB Receipt Record will then be submitted to a Contracts
Coordinator for posting on the State’s Active Procurement System.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

80



16. All bids received by OCWCOG for a particular public contract become binding
offers when the first bid is opened, and remain irrevocable for 30 calendar
days after opening unless a different period is specified in the Invitation for
Bids.

17. Opened bids will be evaluated in accordance with applicable statutes. When a
bid is determined to be unresponsive to the invitation for bids, it will not be
evaluated further.

18. Correction of Certain Errors. Arithmetic errors apparent on the face of a bid will
be corrected by OCWCOG before comparing bid prices. Discrepancies
between a unit price and an extended total price for a bid item will be resolved
in favor of the unit price.

19. When All Bids Exceed Estimate. OCWCOG may negotiate with the lowest
responsible bidder or proposer submitting a responsive bid if all responsive
bids from responsible bidders or proposers exceed OCWCOG's cost estimate.
Bidders will be deemed “responsible” according to ORS 279.375 or
ORS279B.110. If a written cost estimate was not prepared prior to bidding,
the amount budgeted for the public contract will be deemed the cost estimate
for the purposes of this subsection.

20. In determining the lowest responsible bidder in the award of a contract,
OCWCOG may use the concept of life cycle costing. As used in this section,
life cycle costing means determining the cost of a product for its useful life.
Prior to the time of writing specifications for the product, the OCWCOG will
identify those factors which will have cost implications over the life of the
product.

The ITB will set out clearly the factors and methodology to be used in life cycle
cost adjustments. At or after the formal bid opening, the results of life cycle
costing adjustments will be applied to the base bid, and the bidder whose total
bid results in the lowest ownership cost, taking into account the life cycle
costing adjustments, will be considered the lowest responsible bidder.

21. The cancellation of invitations to bid and the rejection of bids must be in
accordance with ORS 279B.100.

22. If OCWCOG awards a contract, it will award the contract:

a. To the lowest responsible bidder whose bid substantially complies with the
requirements and criteria set forth in the invitation to bid and with all
prescribed public procurement procedures and requirements; or

b. If the Invitation to Bid specifies or authorizes the award of multiple
contracts, to the responsible bidders:
i. Whose bids substantially comply with the requirements and criteria set
forth in the invitation to bid and with all prescribed public procurement
procedures and requirements; and

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

81



ii. Who qualifies for the award of a public contract under the terms of
the Invitation to Bid.

23. At least seven days before the award of a public contract, unless OCWCOG
determines that seven days is impractical under rules adopted under[ORS
279A.065| (Referenced under ORS279B.055), OCWCOG will post on the
State’s Active Procurement System, a Notice of Intent to Award a Contract.
The purchasing employee will draft the Notice and submit it to a Contract’s
Coordinator for approval and publishing.

24. An Offeror may protest the award of a public contract or a Notice of Intent to
Award a pubiepublic contract, according to ORS 279B.410. A Contracts
Coordinator, with sign off from the Public Contracting Officer, will respond to
the protest or appeal within the timeframe and according to ORS 279B.405
and ORS 279B.415. Such responses do not require OCWCOG Board
approval.

25. The successful bidder will promptly execute a contract. The successful
bidder’s duty to promptly execute a contract includes the duty to take all action
that is necessary to form a contract in accordance with the invitation to bid,
including posting performance security, submitting proof of insurance when the
invitation to bid requires the submission and agreeing to perform the scope of
work and meet the performance standards set forth in the invitation to bid.

4. Sole Source Procurement. OCWCOG may award a contract for goods or services
without competition based on written findings that only a sole source will be able to fulfill
its current needs under ORS 279B.075. A Contracts Coordinator will provide the
employee seeking a Sole Procurement a form to demonstrate their findings. Upon
completion of the form, the employee will submit it via email to a Contracts Coordinator.
They will then evaluate it and if they deem it sufficient, route it for the signature approval
of the Public Contracting Officer.

a. Procurement findings may include:

i. That the efficient utilization of existing goods requires acquiring compatible goods
or services;

ii. That the goods or services required to exchange software or data with other public
or private agencies are available from only one source;

iii. That the goods or services are for use in a pilot or an experimental project;
or

iv. Other findings that may or may not support the conclusion that the goods
or services are available from only one source.

b. Procurements that generally DO NOT meet the justification for a Sole Source include:
i. Proprietary products or services that are provided by more than one potential
supplier.
ii. Preference for a brand name product where other brands qualify as equals.
iii. Highly restrictive specifications written to exclude competition.

iv. Incumbent supplier that has been furnishing services to an agency.
V. Loss of funding at the end of a fiscal year.
OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

82



C.

To the extent reasonably practical, the contracting agency will negotiate with the sole
source to obtain contract terms that are advantageous to the contracting agency.

5. Emergency Procurement. OCWCOG may utilize this method of procurement for limited
circumstances that could not have been reasonably foreseen that create a substantial risk
of loss, damage, interruption of services or threat to public health or safety under ORS
279B.080.

a.

A Contracts Coordinator will provide an Emergency Procurement Form for the
employee seeking to complete the purchase. In filling out the form, the employee will
describe the contract scope that adequately addresses and is limited to the risk -
created or anticipated - by the Emergency circumstance.

Upon completion of the form, the employee will then return it to a Contracts
Coordinator, who will evaluate it and if they deem it sufficient, route it for the signature
approval of the Public Contracting Officer. Purchases may then only be made upon
obtaining the authorizing Public Contracting Officer’s signature.

In conducting the procurement, OCWCOG will set a solicitation time period that the
contracting agency determines to be reasonable under the emergency circumstances
and may issue written or oral requests for offers or make direct appointments without
competition in cases of extreme necessity. [2003 ¢.794 §56; 2007 c.764 §6a)

OCWCOG's Board of Directors may adopt a resolution indicating the existence of the
emergency and stating with specificity the emergency conditions necessitating the
prompt execution of the contract.

Any contract awarded under this exemption will be awarded within 60 days following
declaration of the emergency unless an extension is granted by OCWCOG’s Board of
Directors.

OCWCOG’s Board of Directors may waive requirements for performance and
payment bonds in the event of an emergency.

iv. Other Procurement Procedures

1. Cooperative Procurements. A department that chooses to participate in sponsoring,
conducting or administering a Joint Cooperative Procurement, Permissive Cooperative
Procurement or Interstate Cooperative Procurement may do so only in accordance with
ORS 279A.210, 279A.215 or 279A.220. If a department utilizes this exemption and the
estimated value of the contract exceeds $250,000, the department will follow the process
set forth in ORS 279A.215(2) and (3).

2. Copyrighted Materials. OCWCOG may purchase copyrighted materials, including through
license or subscription, if there is only one known supplier available for such goods.
Examples of copyrighted materials covered by this exemption may include, but are not
limited to, new adopted textbooks, workbooks, curriculum kits, reference materials, books,
periodicals, audio and visual media, and non-mass-marketed software.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

83



3. Price Regulated Items. OCWCOG may contract for the direct purchase of goods or
services where the rate or price for the goods or services being purchased is established by
federal, State or local regulatory authority.

4. Non-BiserimnatoryDiscriminatory Affirmative Step Policy, ,,//[ Formatted: Font color: Text 1 }

labor surplus area firms. Color(RGB(254,236,153)))
(a) The non-Federal entity must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority
businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when
possible.

(b) Affirmative steps must include:

(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on
solicitation lists;

(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are
solicited whenever they are potential sources;

(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to
permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business
enterprises;

(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage
participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;

(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small
Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of
Commerce; and

(6) Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps
listed in paragraphs (b)(1) through (5) of this section.

§200.321 Contracting with small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and /,,/{ Formatted: Font color: Auto, Pattern: Clear (Custom }

Adopted by the Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments, Albany, Oregon, DecemberJuly
—01, 20232025.

OCWCOG Purchasing Policy Draft 2025 July 01, 2025

84



Ik "‘r NSRS AR o




OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
2025-2029 AREA PLAN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION A- AREA AGENCY PLANNING AND PRIORITIES.......cccoviiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeee 3
N I 1 o T 8 T 1 o T o 3
A.2 MiSSION, ViISION, VAIUES.......cooeiieiee e e e 6
A.3 Planning and ReVIEW PrOoCESS...........uuuuiiiiiiie e 8
A.4 Prioritization of Discretionary Funding...........cccceeeeiiiiiiiiiieee e 11
A5 SErvICE EQUILY ..o 12
SECTION B- PLANNING AND SERVICE AREA PROFILE .......cccovveeeiiiieeeeeeee e 20
B.1 Population Profile ... 20
B.2 Target POPUIAtioNS ..o s 25
B.3 AAA Services, Administration and Service Providers ..........ccccccevieevieencenns 29

(see Attachment A — OPI Service Matrix and Delivery Method)

B.4 Non-AAA Services, Service Gaps and Partnerships to Ensure Availability of
Services Not Provided by the AAA ...t 32

SECTION C - FOCUS AREAS, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES. ..o, 34
Local Focus Areas, Older Americans Act (OAA) and Statewide Issue Areas

C.1 Information and Referral Services and Aging and Disability Resource

ConNEeCtion (ADRC)...... i 34

C.2 NULFTION SEIVICES ....eeiieeie ettt e e e s eneeeennneeens 41
C.3 Health Promotion..........coeeiiiiieeece et 49
C.4 Family and Unpaid Caregiver SUPPOI.........cccoieieiiiie et 57
C.5 Legal Assistance and Elder Rights Protection Activities .........c.cccccoeveeiveeens 65
C.6 Older Native AMEIICANS .....c.ceeiieiieeiie et see et seeesee e teeseeessee e e sneeenneeeseeas 71
C.7 FinanCial WelINESS.......oooeeeeeeeeee et e e e 79
C.8 Emergency Planning and RESPONSE .........cocceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecee e 87
SECTION D - OPI SERVICES AND METHOD OF SERVICE DELIVERY.........ccccccuuu.... 95
D.1 Administration of Oregon Project Independence (OPI)...........ccccoeeeeii. 95
86 Page 1

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan


lsnodgrass
Cross-Out


SECTION E- AREA PLAN BUDGET ..o Available Upon Request

APPENDICES

Appendix A Organizational Charts............ooouiuiiiiiiii e 99
Appendix B Advisory Council(s) and Governing Body............cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee. 101
Appendix C PUDIIC PrOCESS ... 105
Appendix C-1  Community Partner SUrVeYy ... 106
Appendix C-2 Public Planning Flyer...........oooo 109
Appendix D Final Updates on Accomplishments of 2021-2025 Area Plan ............. 110
Appendix E Final Updates on Service Equity Plan Accomplishments .................... 117
Appendix F Emergency Preparedness Plan (COOP)...........ooceieiiiiiiiiiiiiceeeee 119
Appendix G Conflict Of INterest .........ooi i 149
Appendix H OPI Denial or Reduction FOrm ...........coooviiiiiiiiiice e 153
Appendix | OPI1 Grievance ProCedure ............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiicie e e e 154
Appendix J Partner Memorandums of Understanding ...........cccoooooiiiiiiiiicieeneeen, 155
Appendix K Statement of Assurances and Verification of Intent............................. 156
ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A Service Matrix and Delivery Method ................cccc 165
Attachment B Request to Provide Reduced Meals ............cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 175
Attachment C Meal on Wheels — Meal Site Times and Locations...........cccccccceeeeeeeene. 177

87 Page 2
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan



Section A: Area Agency Planning and Priorities

A.1 - Introduction
About Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG)

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG) is designated by the
Oregon Department of Human Services (ODHS) as the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) and
the Aging and Disability Resource Connection (ADRC) lead for Linn, Benton, and Lincoln
Counties.

As a voluntary intergovernmental entity, OCWCOG partners with local governments to
implement a variety of programming across the three counties including Long-Term
Services and Supports (LTSS) that assist older adults, individuals with disabilities,
veterans, and caregivers throughout the region.

Governance

OCWCOG is governed by a Board of Directors (BOD) composed of local elected officials
from its member governments. Additionally, the Senior Services Advisory Council (SSAC)
and Disability Services Advisory Council (DSAC), comprised of community stakeholders
and BOD representatives, provide input on policy, service quality, budgeting, and
program development. These Councils played a key role in shaping the 2025-2029 Area
Plan, which outlines strategic priorities for the Senior and Disability Services Department
over the next four years.

Core Programs
Senior and Disability Services (SDS)
SDS administers Medicaid-funded programs in partnership with ODHS, including:

o Eligibility Services — Issuing medical, prescription, nutrition, and cash assistance
benefits to eligible Oregonians.

e Case Management — Coordinating Medicaid-funded LTSS for older adults and
individuals with disabilities, delivered at home or in care facilities.

o Adult Protective Services (APS) — Investigating and addressing abuse reports for
adults over 65 and individuals with disabilities (ages 18—64).

o Adult Foster Home Licensing — Regulating foster care homes within the region.

Additionally, SDS facilitates programs funded by the Older Americans Act (OAA) and
state funds to promote health, wellness, and independence, including:

Meals on Wheels

Family Caregiver Support

Health Promotion Programs

Oregon Project Independence

ADRC Information & Referral Services
Oregon Money Management Program

88 Page 3
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A



Community Services Programs (CSP)

CSP supports social engagement, volunteerism, and advocacy through federally funded,
local, and pilot initiatives. These programs help older adults, individuals with disabilities,
low-income families, and veterans maintain dignity, reduce social isolation, and stay
connected to their communities.

Community and Economic Development (CED):

CED supports regional economic health, mobility, and resilience. Key initiatives include:

e Cascades West Ride Line: Coordinates Non-Emergent Medical Transportation
(NEMT) services for IHN, OHP Open Card, Samaritan Advantage Health Plan,
and some Benton County Veteran enrollees.”

e Transit Training: Provides education for older adults and people with disabilities
on using public transit safely and effectively.

e Regional Transit Support: Advances initiatives to improve transportation access
for all ages and abilities, ensuring access to jobs, goods, and services.

Regional Presence
To ensure all Oregonians in the region are

served well, OCWCOG operates offices in Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties. Each
office is fully accessible to individuals with disabilities, reinforcing OCWCOG's

commitment to providing appropriate access
to services.

Linn County

1400 Queen Avenue SE, Suite 206 OUR OFFICES PROVIDE INFORMATION

Albany, OR 97322 AND SERVICES TO ADULTS AGED 60 AND

541-967-8630 Voice and ADRC OLDER, AS WELL AS INDIVIDUALS WITH

800-638-0510 Toll free DISABILITIES UNDER 65. CONSUMERS

541-924-8402 TTY AND POTENTIAL CONSUMERS CAN
ACCESS RESOURCES BY CONTACTING

Benton County THE AGING AND DISABILITY RESOURCE

1211 NW 9th Street CONNECTION (ADRC), THE PRIMARY

Corvallis, OR 97330 GATEWAY FOR REGIONAL SUPPORT AND

541-967-8630 Voice and ADRC INFORMATION.

800-638-0510 Toll free

541-758-3126 TTY To REACH THE ADRC:

Li InC ¢ « BENTON AND LINN COUNTIES:

incoln County ) )

203 North Main Street Toledo, OR 97391 CALL 541-967-8630

541-336-2289 Voice and ADRC e LINCOLN COUNTY:

800-282-6194 Toll free CALL 541 _336_2289

541-336-8103 TTY

89 Page 4
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A



The full Area Plan is available on our website at www.ocwcog.org. For questions or
comments about the plan, please contact Randi Moore, Senior, Disability, and Community
Services Director, at 541-967-8630 or rmoore@ocwcogd.org.

90 Page 5
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A


http://www.ocwcog.org/
mailto:rmoore@ocwcog.org

A.2 — Mission and Values

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG), Senior and Disability
Services (SDS) is dedicated to enhancing the independence, dignity, choice, and well-
being of older adults and individuals with disabilities. Our mission is to serve and protect
individuals and families while expanding opportunities for health, wellness, and self-
sufficiency.

OCWCOG’s Mission
To promote a thriving region through service, connectivity, and innovation.

Senior, Disability and Community Services Core Beliefs

1. Service Equity: Providing fair and unbiased support to all individuals, respecting
their unique needs and backgrounds.

2. Customer Focus: Treating consumers with respect, courtesy, and dignity while
delivering exceptional service.

3. Innovation: Embracing change by developing new programs, opportunities, and
resources to meet evolving needs.

4. Community Collaboration: Building strong partnerships to maximize resources
and create a greater impact.

5. Supportive Work Environment: Fostering a workplace that values creativity,
critical thinking, and innovation, while recognizing and appreciating staff
contributions.

Putting Our Beliefs into Action
OCWCOG SDS implements these beliefs by:

e Providing stakeholders, including consumers, caregivers, community partners,
and staff—with accurate, timely information.

« Actively listening to individual perspectives and tailoring solutions to meet unique
needs.

e Encouraging advocacy and active participation from all stakeholders to shape
and strengthen our programs.

OCWCOG is a well-known and trusted resource in our region and our stakeholders, which
includes our volunteer member governments, the people and families who access our
services, and the agencies and community partners we collaborate with across the three
counties have come to rely on us as the area experts in long-term care and support
services. We have developed strong community relationships with a variety of providers
including health departments, care communities, senior and community centers,

91 Page 6
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A



coordinated care organizations, universities, mental health professionals, and grassroots
and non-profit groups.

92 Page 7
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A



A.3 — Planning and Review

The needs assessment for this Area Plan, conducted over the past four years, combines
input from our communities, OCWCOG staff and management, and our Disability and
Senior Services Advisory Councils and other volunteers. Demographic data analysis was
also a key element in the Plan development. We utilized a comprehensive approach to
gather insights from the community.

Ensuring a Plan That Meets the Region’s Needs

Partner and Stakeholder Listening Sessions

To gather feedback from key community partners and consumers, three listening sessions
were hosted (one in each county). Attendees provided valuable input on what issues are
important to them, the gaps and barriers they are facing, and how they feel agency
programming could be improved. If language was a barrier for attendees with limited
language proficiency translation services were arranged.

Tabling Events

Attending community fairs and celebrations allows OCWCOG staff to interact with the
residents of our region and hear their input on the services and support we provide in the
community. Focus is placed on attending events which cater to historically undeserved
neighbors such as PRIDE events and Latino festivals in all three counties, and events in
rural communities such as Alsea and Waldport. Spanish speaking staff attended tabling
events and provided interpretation to anyone with limited English proficiency. The
information gained from these conversations with our neighbors helps identify gaps and
barriers we face in meeting the needs of the most vulnerable members of our community.

Advisory Council Conversations and Forums

Senior/Community Center Roundtable

In January 2025, OCWCOG hosted a roundtable event inviting community center staff
from all three counties to discuss the future sustainability of health promotion
programming and how to make programming more impactful through collaboration and
improved connection. Outcome: Plan to make this a quarterly event.

Senior and Disability Services Resource Fairs

Hosted by SDS and held at our offices in Toledo and Albany once a year, the resource
fair is a place for community partners to come to our buildings and share information with
our staff about their programs and services. It is a good open door that leads to many
conversations about gaps and barriers in service from the people that are out in the
community every day working with the folks we jointly serve. Last year these
organizations attended the Resources Fair: Grace Center, Corvallis Daytime Drop-in
Center, Family Resource Home Care, Legal Aid, Love INC Linn County, Community
Services Consortium, Assured Independence, SHIBA, Samaritan Evergreen Hospice,

93 Page 8
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A



Samaritan Health Education Hub, New Horizons In-Home Care, North End Senior
Solutions and Medscope.

Advisory Council Meetings

Advisory Council meetings were utilized to share information between groups that have
input on specific focus areas of programming and allow the Councils to understand
current trends in meeting service area needs. Topics that were covered include:

e Elder Justice: Legal Aid, the LTC Ombudsman office, and APS.

e Family Caregiver Support: Family Caregiver Support Program Staff.

e Volunteering Trends: OCWCOG Volunteer Coordinator and other Council
members that utilize a large volunteer workforce.

e Emergency Preparedness: OABHI, OSU study on the impact of disaster on at
risk individuals, O4AD on work with FEMA and the AAA Emergency Handbook
development.

e Behavioral Health: Older Adult Behavioral Health Initiative Staff.

e Tribal Elders: support for Family Caregivers and providing GO Bags as part of
Emergency Preparedness.

e Connect with Senior Centers: talk about program collaborations and enhancing
Evidence Based Health Promotion program attendance.

¢ Nutrition Services: rebuilding the infrastructure in dining facilities.

e ADRC call center: training and goals with CSC-Community Services Consortium.

Surveys

Community Partners Survey — Sent to community partners who we work with frequently
that work with the public such as Hospice, Adult Day Centers, and Community Centers.
Designed to see how they experience working with our agency and how effective we are
in meeting the needs they see in the community. Summer 2024

Survey of Agencies that Work with Underrepresented Communities — Sent to community
partners that work with specific underserved community members like Tribal Elders,
Latinos (translation services to assist in filling out surveys is provided upon request),
LGBTQ+ Older adults and people with disabilities. Designed to see where we have gaps
and barriers in meeting the needs of the community members they work with.

Meals on Wheels Consumer Survey — Completed annually about quality of service and
food.

MOW Volunteer Survey — Sent to OCWCOG MOW volunteer force (December 2024) to
learn about effectiveness in training, onboarding and volunteer recognition efforts. Will be
repeated annually.

OCWCOG Staff Employee Engagement Survey — Completed January 2025 and ongoing
two times a year. Aimed at developing an engaged workforce who finds meaning and
purpose in serving our community members.

Upcoming Surveys as Part of Future Area Plan Goals

94 Page 9
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A



Medicaid Consumer Survey — Planned for summer 2027

Family Caregiver Participant Survey — More info in Section C4 Goals and Objectives

Plan Review and Approval

Drafts of the Area Plan were reviewed throughout the development process
collaboratively with input from consumers, Advisory Council members, service providers,
and community partners. This inclusive process ensured the plan was reflective of
community needs and aligned with OCWCOG’s mission. The draft Area Plan was posted
the agency web page and open for public comment from January 30 to February 28,
2025.

Care Planning Committee members voted on March 4" to submit the draft plan, with a
follow up vote by Senior Services Advisory Council and Disability Services Advisory
Council members at a joint meeting April 1, 2025.

95 Page 10
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A



A.4 — Prioritization of Discretionary Funding

OCWCOG receives a small discretionary funding allocation from ODHS, which can be
used for pilot programs or to enhance existing services after meeting minimal service and
contractual requirements.

Input from SSAC and DSAC members, staff, consumers, and stakeholders was essential
in determining how to prioritize the use of discretionary funds. The key focus areas for
these funds are:

1.

Supporting underserved and disadvantaged populations with limited access to
services.

Addressing the Social Determinants of Health (SDoH), with an emphasis on food
security, housing, financial empowerment, and transportation.

Sustaining and expanding Meals on Wheels (MOW) services.
Maximizing resources and minimizing service duplication within the community.

Assisting family caregivers through respite, supplemental services, training, and
recognition.

Reducing social isolation among older adults and individuals with disabilities in
Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties.

Integrating Behavioral Health and Long-Term Services and Supports (LTSS) to
address both physical care and mental health needs.

Ensuring fair and accessible support for all, especially those facing the highest
social and economic risks.

OCWCOG has not implemented changes to service priority levels or implemented
waiting lists for any of our programming. If funding decreases, efforts will focus on
maintaining stability for existing consumers. In the event of a waitlist, a risk
assessment tool will be used to prioritize the most urgent cases, with ADRC call center
and Options Counseling staff assisting waitlisted consumers to access other benefits
and resources.

96 Page 11
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A



A.5 - SERVICE EQUITY IN PROGRAMMING

Ensuring fair and effective access to services for all older adults and individuals with
disabilities is essential for OCWCOG to provide meaningful service to the Linn, Benton,
and Lincoln County region. Service equity refers to promoting health, safety, and
independence for all individuals by adapting services and policies to eliminate
discrimination and disparities in the delivery of human services. OCWCOG recognizes
and addresses the unique challenges faced by different populations to ensure that
everyone, regardless of background or circumstances, can age with dignity and
independence. Given the demographic and economic diversity within these counties,
prioritizing service equity is crucial to meeting the needs of all residents.

Regional Focus

One of the key reasons to focus on service equity is the aging population in these
counties, particularly in Lincoln County, where nearly 28.8% of residents are 65 and
older—significantly higher than the state average. This high percentage indicates a
growing demand for all aging services and an expected strain on long term care support
systems.

Economic barriers also impact access to aging services. Many older adults in these
counties live on fixed incomes, making it difficult to afford in-home care, home
modifications, and assistive technology that could help them remain independent. By
prioritizing affordability in service design and supporting financial wellness initiatives (a
focus area added to the 25-29 Plan) OCWCOG can ensure that critical resources reach
those who need them most.

Social connection is an essential component of aging well and a challenge for older adults
and those with disabilities who live in rural areas. These consumers are at higher risk of
isolation due to geographic distance, lack of transportation, and limited community
engagement opportunities. Many residents of OCWCOG’s three-county region
experience these issues because of the remoteness of their housing. Expanding access
to services through outreach to outlying communities and through virtual programming,
can help mitigate these challenges and improve overall well-being.

Amplified Risk

These concerns are amplified for minority older adults, individuals with limited English
proficiency, LGBTQ consumers, and those from different ethnic backgrounds. Language
barriers can make it difficult to access information about available services, leading to
lower utilization rates and increased isolation. LGBTQ older adults may face
discrimination or a lack of culturally competent care, making it challenging to find safe
and supportive services. Individuals from ethnic minority groups may encounter systemic
barriers, including historical mistrust of institutions, cultural stigmas around seeking
assistance, or a lack of culturally relevant programming. Addressing these disparities
requires intentional outreach, multilingual resources, staff training, and partnerships with

97 Page 12
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A



community organizations that serve these populations to ensure their needs are met
effectively.

Solutions

To effectively implement service equity, OCWCOG SDS must consider workforce
representation, community engagement, prioritization of funding and programming
allocations. Hiring staff and volunteers who understand the specific needs of older adults
in these counties can help improve service delivery. Gathering input from community
members, particularly those in historically underserved areas, can inform more effective
policy and program decisions. Additionally, ensuring that funding is directed toward the
areas of greatest need will help create a more balanced and effective system of support.

98 Page 13
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A



Focus Area — Service Equity
Goal #1: Build a Workforce that Reflects and Understands the Community

Measurable
Objectives

. Increase
representation
among staff,
volunteers, and
Advisory
Council
members.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

Review hiring and
volunteer recruitment
practices to remove
barriers that may
discourage applicants
from different
backgrounds.

HR Manager

1/1/2026

3/31/2026

Accomplishment or Update

b

Provide training on
inclusive engagement —
Ensure hiring
managers, volunteer
coordinators, and
Advisory Council
members receive
training on inclusive
recruitment, cultural
awareness, and
strategies to foster a
welcoming
environment.

Senior Leadership and Contractor

10/1/2025

12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Update

Cc

Assess and adjust
recruitment practices
regularly — Implement a
system to track and
review the demographic
composition of staff,

HR Manager

1/1/2026

Annually and
Ongoing

99

Page 14

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A




volunteers, and
Advisory Council
members, using this
data to refine and
improve recruitment
strategies over time.

Accomplishment or Update

Measurable a | Develop an annual

Objectives training plan covering
cultural awareness,

_ communication Senior Leadership, DEI Committee 3/1/2026 Annually in
. Provide . and Contractor March
. strategies, and best
ongoing . ;
0. practices for serving
training to : .
. diverse populations.
improve :
communication Accomplishment or Update
and service
delivery. b | Identify and partner with

local experts to conduct | 0o Director 1/1/2026 12/31/2026
visits with Councils and

share lived experiences.

Accomplishment or Update

100 Page 15
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A




Focus Area - Service Equity
Goal #2: Strengthen Community Engagement and Input

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
. Develop a | Attend events and
strong meetings hosted by local
partnerships organizations to Program Management and Staff 7/1/2025 Ongoing
with trusted establish relationships
local groups and build trust.
and leaders. | Accomplishment or Update
b | Work with community
groups — attend, co-
host, sponsor outreach Management and Staff 7/1/2025 Ongoing
events where residents
can ask questions and
provide feedback.
Accomplishment or Update
Measurable a | Conduct surveys and
Objectives focus groups to Program Director 7/1/2025 Ongoing
understand service
2. Gather and 9aps. _
use data to Accomplishment or Update
improve
programs and | b | Track participation in
policies. programs to identify any | Program Director 71112025 Ongoing
disparities in access.
Accomplishment or Update
¢ | Use findings to adjust
services, such as Program Director 7/1/2025 Ongoing
changing program hours,
101 Page 16

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A




locations, or offerings
based on feedback.

Accomplishment or Update

Focus Area - Service Equity
Goal #3: Ensure Resources are Distributed Fairly and Effectively

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
. Improve how | 5 | Assess current spending
funding is and adjust budgets to Monitor and Review Committee and 3/1/2027- 6/30/2029
allocated to prioritize under- Program Director biannually
meet the resourced communities.
greatest Accomplishment or Update
needs.
b | Create a process for
community input on Program Director 6/1/2026 6/30/2026
budget priorities.
Accomplishment or Update
c | Set aside funds for
initiatives designedto | .\ o Director 7/11/2025 9/30/2025
expand access to
services.
Accomplishment or Update
Measurable a | Review contracting
Objectives policies to remove
unnecessary barriers for P Direct d Monit d
2. Increase small and locally owned | L9TET, e 2ne HOMTOran 3/1/2027 3/31/2029
fairness in service providers.
. Biannually through RFP.
contracting
102 Page 17

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A




and
partnerships.

Accomplishment or Update

b | Offer workshops to help
potential vendors Program Dlrec’For and Monitor and 3/30/2027 3/31/2027
understand how to apply | Review Committee
for contracts.
Accomplishment or Update
c | Establish goals for
working with contractors : .
that have experience | -rogram Director and Monitor and 1/1/2027 3/31/2027

serving a wide range of
community members.

Review Committee

Accomplishment or Update

Focus Area - Service Equity
Goal #4: Improve Outreach and Accessibility of Services

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
. Ensure older | 5 | Review and update
adults are outreach materials to be
aware of and clear, user-friendly, and | Program Manager 7/1/2026 6/30/2029
can access available in multiple
available languages.
programs. Accomplishment or Update
b | Use multiple
communication Program Manager, ADRC
methods, including in- Supervisor and Communications 7/1/2026 6/30/2029
person events, printed Officer
materials, social media,
103 Page 18

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A




and radio, to reach
different groups.

Accomplishment or Update

c | Work with community
partners to distribute
information where

Communications Officer, Program
people naturally gather,

. Manager and ADRC Supervisor 77172026 6/30/2029
such as senior centers,
places of worship, and
grocery stores.
Accomplishment or Update
104 Page 19

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section A




Section B: Area Agency Planning and Service Area Profile

B.1 — Population Profile - Demographics of Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties
and Emerging Trends

The tri-county region of Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties in Oregon presents a diverse
demographic landscape, particularly concerning older adults and individuals with
disabilities. Understanding the unique characteristics and emerging trends within these
populations is crucial for the Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments
(OCWCOG) Senior and Disability Services, which serves as the Area Agency on Aging
(AAA) for this region.

Population Overview:

« Benton County: Home to Oregon State University, Benton County has a
population of around 99,355, with a median age of 34.2 years. The presence of a
large student population contributes to a younger median age; however, the county
also supports a significant number of older adults, especially in rural areas.

e Lincoln County: With approximately 51,930 residents, Lincoln County has the
highest percentage of adults aged 65 and older among the three counties. This is
largely due to retirees settling along the coast, attracted by the scenic environment
and mild climate.

e« Linn County: As of recent data, Linn County has experienced consistent
population growth, with an 11% increase over the past decade. The county's
population is approximately 131,984 residents. This growth is partly attributed to
its diverse economy and relatively affordable housing, attracting both families and
retirees.

BENTON

Population: 99,355

Area 675.2 Sq. Miles

People over age 65: 17,906

LINCOLN

Population: 51,930

Area 981 Sq. Miles

People over age 65: 16,224

LINN

Population: 131,984

Area 2,289.5 Sq. Miles

M 0,
(18.0%) (31.2%) People over age 65: 25,242 (19.1%)

?(see note) Live in Rural Areas 38% Live in Rural Areas 50.1% Live in Rural Areas

Median Household Income: Median Household Income:

$76,011 $61,314 Median Household Income: $73,396

105 Page 20
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



NOTE: The percentage of residents living in rural areas in Benton County is not explicitly stated in the available data. It is
noted that Benton County has the lowest percentage of rural-dwelling population compared to Linn and Lincoln Counties
and is similar to Oregon's overall rural population percentage of 33%. The Oregon Office of Rural Health defines "rural" as
any geographic area thatis ten or more miles from the center of a population center with 40,000 or more residents.

Emerging Trends:

120,000

100,000

30,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

Aging Population: All three counties are experiencing an increase in their older
adult populations. This trend is most pronounced in Lincoln County, where the
proportion of residents aged 65 and older is significantly higher than the state
average. This shift necessitates enhanced services tailored to the needs of older
adults, including healthcare, housing, and social support.

Rural Challenges: The rural nature of many communities within these counties
amplifies challenges such as limited transportation, access to healthcare, and
availability of social services. Older adults and individuals with disabilities in these
areas may face isolation and have difficulty accessing essential services.

Economic Disparities: While Benton County benefits economically from the
presence of a major university, both Linn and Lincoln Counties have higher rates
of poverty among older adults. Economic challenges can exacerbate issues
related to housing stability, healthcare access, and overall quality of life for seniors
and individuals with disabilities.

Estimate of Adults 60+ Population from 2020 -2055

50,622

27,388

26327

24 673 234
23,951 :
2911
21,622
20,112
36,050
29,081 .86 e
25978 27 697 : -
24015 = -
21,754 "
2000 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050 2055
=eo=Benton County Lincoln County  =e=Linn County
106 Page 21

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



Impact on Area Agency on Aging and Service Providers:

The demographic shifts and emerging trends in Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties have
several implications for OCWCOG’s Senior and Disability Services and other providers
within the aging and disability network:

e Increased Demand for Services: As the population of older adults grows, there
is a corresponding rise in demand for services such as in-home care, meal
delivery, transportation, and healthcare coordination. Providers must upscale their
operations to meet these needs effectively.

« Resource Allocation: The economic disparities, particularly in Linn and Lincoln
Counties, require targeted resource allocation to ensure that low-income seniors
and individuals with disabilities receive adequate support. This may involve
securing additional funding, grants, and utilizing community partnerships.

o Infrastructure Development: Addressing the challenges of rural communities
involves investing in infrastructure that improves access to services. This includes
expanding telehealth capabilities, enhancing transportation networks, and
developing community centers that offer a range of services under one roof.

o Caregiver Training and Retention: With the increasing complexity of needs
among older adults and individuals with disabilities, there is a pressing need for a
well-trained caregiver workforce. This includes unpaid family caregivers as well as
paid home care workers and other professionals such as healthcare providers and
social workers who are equipped to handle the unique challenges of these
populations.

Prioritizing Outreach and Services for High-Risk and Economically
Disadvantaged Older Adults

As the Area Agency on Aging that serves this region, Oregon Cascades West Council of
Governments (OCWCOG) Senior and Disability Services prioritizes outreach and service
delivery for older adults and individuals with disabilities who are at the greatest social and
economic risk.

Identifying High-Risk Populations

To effectively allocate resources, outreach efforts focus on:

e Older adults living in poverty — Particularly in Linn and Lincoln Counties, where
economic hardship is more prevalent.

¢ Rural and isolated seniors — Those with limited transportation and healthcare
access.

107 Page 22
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



e Minority and culturally diverse older adults — Including Indigenous populations,
Hispanic/Latino seniors, LGBTQ individuals, and other marginalized communities.

¢ Individuals with disabilities — Who face additional barriers to accessing
healthcare, housing, and social support.

¢ Older adults at risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation — Ensuring protective
services are available.

Persons With Any Kind of Disability
Linn, Lincoln, and Benton Counties
60.00%

50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00% I I I
0.00% = .

65 and over 18 to 64 years Under 18 years Percentage Total

mBenton mLincoln mLinn

Methods to Meet the Needs of Minority Older Adults
Culturally Competent Outreach and Engagement

o Community Partnerships: Work with local cultural organizations, tribal entities, and
faith-based groups to enhance trust and service accessibility.

e Bilingual and Culturally Relevant Materials: Develop outreach materials in
Spanish, Indigenous languages, and other key languages spoken in the region to
ensure accessibility.

« Community Ambassadors: Train peer advocates from diverse backgrounds to
serve as liaisons between service providers and minority communities.

108 Page 23
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B




Expanding Access to Services in Underserved Areas

e Mobile and In-Home Services: Expand outreach via home visits, mobile service
units, and telehealth initiatives for rural seniors.
o Flexible Service Locations: Establish service hubs in community centers, places
of worship, and tribal buildings to increase access.
Enhancing Economic and Social Support Programs
e Financial Assistance Programs: Prioritize low-income older adults for housing
support, food assistance, and healthcare subsidies.

e Job Training and Volunteer Programs: Provide older adults, including minority
seniors, with employment resources to maintain financial independence.

« Expanded Transportation Services: Increase access to affordable or free
transportation for medical appointments, grocery shopping, and community
activities.

Strengthening Protections Against Exploitation

o Elder Abuse Prevention Initiatives: Provide legal services, scam awareness
training, and financial education to protect older adults from fraud and exploitation.

o Collaboration with APS and Law Enforcement: Ensure swift response to reports of
abuse or neglect among high-risk minority seniors

Race and Hispanic Origin of the Region's Population

. 3.60%
3.14% B.37%

1.06%

B3.10%
White alone H Black or African American alone
® American Indian and Alaska Native alone Asian and Pacific Islander
Some Other Race alone Two or More Races
109 Page 24

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



B.2 — Target Populations

Identification of Target Populations

OCWCOG SDS used a combination of data sources and community outreach to identify
and focus our programming efforts on those we serve who have the greatest economic
and social needs including:

Analyzing Demographic Data:
e Assessed Census data, American Community Survey (ACS) data, and state/local
government reports to identify high-need areas.
e Used internal GIS mapping staff to compile data points and graphs.

Asking Community Partners:
e Surveyed staff from nonprofits, senior centers, food banks, faith-based
organizations, and housing authorities to identify at-risk populations.
e Surveyed partners that specifically serve LGBTQIA2S+, Tribal Elders, and Rural
and Latino communities.
¢ Invited community partners to listening sessions in each county.

Polled Staff and Advocates
e Brought public speakers to Council meetings to share information about gaps in
the service delivery system and discuss unmet needs.
e Asked staff (including Adult Protective Services, Case Managers, and Eligibility)
for information about where they see consumers falling through cracks in the
system.

Public Engagement
e Conducted surveys and held listening sessions in communities (and one virtually)
to understand the needs of older adults directly.

Engagement Strategies Moving Forward

Outreach strategies for improving services to those populations who have the greatest
social and economic need will be tailored to each group:

Low-Income and Minority Older Adults
e Provide targeted outreach and training about programming to trusted community
leaders, places of worship, and food assistance programs.
e Offer culturally and linguistically appropriate materials.

110 Page 25
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



Race and Hispanic Origin of the Region's Population

= White alone

Two Races Excluding Some
Other Races & Three or More

Races 5.16% \

Two Races Including Some
Other Race 3.22% I = American Indian and Alaska

\ Native alone
Two or More Races 8.37%
= Asian alone
Other 3.60% /

= Black or African American alone

Native Hawaiian & Other o

Pacific Islander 0.15% e = Native Hawaiian and Other
’ / Pacific Islander alone
Asian 2.98%

/ = Some Other Race alone
American Indian & Alaska
Native 1.06%
= Two or More Races:
Black or African American

0.73% m Two races including Some Other
Race

= Two races excluding Some Other
Race, and three or more races

Older Adults with Limited English Proficiency
¢ Hire bilingual staff and offer translation services for all agency materials.
o Partner with Latino organizations and immigrant resource centers.
¢ Provide training to staff at these agencies about our programs.

Rural Residents
o Utilize mobile or virtual services to provide healthcare, wellness classes, legal aid
consultation, and nutrition support.
e Provide services at out stations across the region so consumers find us in nearby
and familiar places in their communities.

Native American Older Adults
e Engage with Tribal Elders and Councils to co-develop culturally appropriate
programs.
Work with Indian Health Services (IHS) and tribal health clinics.
Have a Tribal Relations Coordinators group who works closely and is a trusted ally
in supporting Tribal members accessing services.

111 Page 26
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B




LGBTQIA2S+ Older Adults
e Partner with advocacy groups to build programs that are welcoming to this
community.
e Train staff on culturally competent care and address discrimination concerns.

Average Percentage of Adult LGBTQ+ in COG Counties
18 to 24 years 21.10%
25 to 34 years 13.00%
o
=]
2
O 35to49years 6.00%
()
-T1]
<
50 to 64 years 4.20%
65 and older 2.60%
0.00% 5.00% 10.00% 15.00% 20.00% 25.00%
Oregon Percentage (%)

Focused Outreach

OCWCOG will provide outreach materials such as brochures and posters outlining
services and programs to community partners that serve at risk populations to be posted
where consumers and the public can freely access the information. Outreach materials
will be developed that embrace and are representative of the consumers we aim to serve.

Cross training and making connections with partner agencies, attending meetings, and
providing programmatic information so staff at these agencies know about the resources
and services we can provide will allow them to share the info with their clients. A focus
will be placed on attending staff meetings at organizations who work with the identified
underserved populations.

Through Memorandums of Understanding (MOU) and contracts with partner and
volunteer agencies, these organizations agree to refer consumers who are identified as
low income, minority, at-risk for isolation, or who are generally underserved due to their
socio-economic status to our ADRC for information and assistance.

112 Page 27
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



A Presence in the Community

Staff will attend speaking engagements at local service clubs, churches, business and
civic organizations and share information about the services we provide. Identifying
groups that have ties to the underserved populations we want to focus on will be a priority.
In addition, while out in the community, Older Americans Act (OAA) staff (Case Managers
and Options Counselors) will stop at local businesses such as rural stores and introduce
themselves and provide information about the agency and programs. Both strategies are
necessary for meeting people where they are at in their communities.

OCWCOG staff regularly man tables at events and festivals geared toward specific
populations such as local Latino and Pride Celebrations, Veterans Stand Down, the
annual Elder Native Caring Conference, and the Senior Fair at the Chinook Winds
Casino.

OCWCOG’s Corvallis office functions as the Benton County Veterans Service Office. Due
to the proximity to Oregon State University, the Corvallis SDS staff is able to engage and
increase its visibility with younger disabled adults. Additionally, the relationships we have
developed with the university because of our proximity to the main campus has allowed
us to collaborate more with university cultural resource centers.

The Confederated Tribes of Siletz has a major presence in Lincoln County and has Tribal
members living in that county as well as the rest of the region. Lincoln County is also
home to Tribal members of the Coos, Lower Umpqua, and Siuslaw Tribes. A primary focus
of our organization is to partner in activities with the Confederated Tribes of Siletz through
the ADRC, Family Caregiver Support Program, and the Meals on Wheels Program.

113 Page 28
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



B.3 — AAA Services and Administration
OCWCOG Services and Programs

OCWCOG’s Senior and Disability Services (SDS), Community Services Programs (CSP),
and the Community and Economic and Development Department (CED) provide
comprehensive programming to support older adults, people with disabilities, caregivers,
veterans, and others. Below are the key services we offer:

Non-Medicaid Support Services, including Older Americans Act (OAA) Programs
Contracted with Department of Human Services

Information and Assistance/Referral: Call Center Agents connect individuals to
OCWCOG services and external community resources. For more information,
refer to Section C.

Options Counseling: Counselors assist individuals and families with care
planning, offering resource education, need assessments, and action planning.
Services are typically provided in-person.

Meals on Wheels (MOW): Delivers nutritious meals to homebound older adults
and individuals with disabilities, with volunteer drivers providing well-checks and
reducing isolation. Additionally, our Connections Café locations allow older adults
to enjoy a healthy meal and spend time with their community, reducing isolation
and loneliness. More details in Section C — Nutrition Services.

Elder Abuse Prevention: Raises awareness and prevents abuse by engaging
with local law enforcement, legal aid, and other partners through monthly
Multidisciplinary Team (MDT) meetings.

Advocacy: Offers opportunities for consumers to engage in public policy
discussions and advocate for the rights of older adults and people with disabilities
at local, state, and national levels.

Family Caregiver Program: Provides support to family caregivers to reduce
stress and prevent premature placement in institutional care. More details in
Section C under "Family Caregivers."

Employer Resource Connection: Offers free support to individuals approved for
in-home services, helping them manage staff through tools like interview guidance
and backup plans.

Oregon Project Independence (OPI): Provides case management and in-home
care for individuals 60+ (or younger adults with physical disabilities) who are not
Medicaid eligible, offering services like adult day care, respite, and nursing.

Money Management Program (MMP): Offers personalized, confidential support
for individuals over 60 or with disabilities to manage their finances, including
budgeting, paying bills, and organizing financial documents. Services also include
Rep Payee assistance for individuals unable to manage federal benefits.

114 Page 29
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



Non-Medicaid Support Services Funded By Other Sources

« Stand By Me: A financial empowerment program to help participants set and
achieve financial goals such as budgeting, debt reduction, and increasing savings.

« AmeriCorps Seniors Programs: Engages individuals 55+ in service programs,
including the Retired and Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP), Foster Grandparent
Program (FGP), and Senior Companion Program (SCP).

« Benton County Veterans Services: Provides guidance and assistance to
veterans in partnership with Benton County Health Department, ensuring they
receive the full range of benefits and resources.

Transportation Services

e Medical and Non-Emergency Medical Transportation: Provides access to
transportation for low-income seniors and people with disabilities. Vouchers and
bus tickets are available for medical appointments, and RideLine ensures safe,
timely rides.

Medicaid-Funded Support Services Provided by OCWCOG Contract with
Department of Human Services

These services are available to residents of Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties. Eligibility
is based on factors like age, income, resources, and the level of assistance required for
Activities of Daily Living (ADLs).

e Program Coordination and Development: OCWCOG staff manage
administrative functions, negotiate and maintain contracts, and ensure compliance
with funding obligations and record-keeping.

e Adult Protective Services (APS): APS investigates allegations of abuse, neglect,
and exploitation of older adults and individuals with disabilities in both community
settings and long-term care facilities. APS collaborates with law enforcement,
district attorneys, and hospital social workers to ensure the safety and well-being
of vulnerable individuals. Reports are generated for all investigations.

e Pre-admission Screening and Diversion/Transition: Trained professionals
assess the need for nursing facility care and identify resources to support
transitioning individuals to lower levels of care. This service involves working with
consumers and families to secure the most appropriate care setting, in alignment
with personal goals and needs.

e Case Management: OCWCOG provides person-centered case management for
Medicaid-eligible consumers. Case Managers assist with service planning, need
assessments, and coordinates services in home or community-based settings,

115 Page 30
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



such as assisted living or adult foster homes. Regular follow-up ensures care is
aligned with the individual's needs.

Eligibility Services: Eligibility Specialists assess qualifications for various state
and federal programs, including those for nutrition, medical, and cash assistance.
Since the rollout of the Integrated Eligibility (IE) System in 2020, these specialists
can assist any Oregon resident who meets the income and resource eligibility
requirements, expanding services beyond older adults and individuals with
disabilities.

Adult Foster Home (AFH) Licensing: OCWCOG is responsible for licensing and
overseeing Adult Foster Homes (AFHSs) in Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties.
Licensors conduct regular inspections of these small, home-like settings (with
fewer than 5 residents) to ensure compliance with state rules. The Oregon
Department of Human Services (ODHS) holds overarching authority, including the
power to impose penalties or revoke licenses for non-compliance.

Consumer Employed Provider Support: In Oregon, consumers can hire Home
Care Workers (HCWSs) to assist with daily living tasks, enabling them to maintain
independence. While consumers handle the hiring, training, and termination of
HCWs, OCWCOG provides administrative support by processing applications,
conducting criminal history checks, issuing HCW numbers, and managing payroll.

Support Services Managed by OCWCOG through Contracts

Health Promotion: OCWCOG partners with community organizations to offer
Evidence-Based Programs that improve quality of life and help reduce healthcare
costs in our region.

Legal Assistance: OCWCOG contracts for up to 539 hours of legal aid services
for individuals 60 and older, funded by the Older Americans Act (OAA). Legal Aid
Services of Oregon helps vulnerable consumers, focusing on residents of care
facilities, Medicaid and SSI recipients, and issues such as guardianship or
conservatorship. Additional services include support for Elder Abuse Task Forces
and public outreach to raise awareness of available legal resources.

Adult Day Services: OCWCOG contracts with two adult day service providers to
offer respite for family caregivers and Oregon Project Independence (OPI)
consumers. These providers are the Grace Center in Corvallis and North End
Senior Solutions (NESS Club) in Lincoln County.

See Attachment A — OPI Service Matrix and Delivery Method

116 Page 31
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



B. 4 — Non-AAA Services, Service Gaps and Partnerships to Ensure Availability of
Services not Provided by AAA

As the Area Agency on Aging (AAA), OCWCOG understands that we cannot meet every
complex and diverse need across our three-county region. When we do not have internal
programming to support a community member, our Aging and Disability Resource
Connection (ADRC) staff assess the needs and help connect individuals with other
resources provided by community partners in the region that can meet their needs. Rather
than duplicating services, we focus on partnering with other agencies, fostering
collaboration, and raising awareness about existing resources. Our goal is to complement
and strengthen the Long-Term Services and Supports (LTSS) network in our area.
Working on filling gaps, when necessary, but never competing with other providers.

OCWCOG continues to take an extensive and strategic approach to identifying qualified
service providers for programs delivered directly by the agency. These efforts begin with
a deep understanding of community needs, achieved through regular assessments such
as surveys, focus groups, and consultations with stakeholders. By analyzing demographic
data and trends, OCWCOG pinpoints service gaps and areas of high demand, ensuring
its efforts are targeted and responsive to the needs of older adults, individuals with
disabilities, and minority populations.

OCWCOG SDS actively engages with local organizations, including nonprofits,
healthcare providers, and community-based groups, to build partnerships and identify
providers that align with our mission. Participation in community forums, events, and
networking groups strengthens connections to identify service gaps, foster collaboration,
and provided programming in the most cost effective manner. To maintain transparency
and inclusivity, The agency implements a fair procurement process by issuing Requests
for Proposals (RFPs) to attract service providers with proven expertise in targeted areas
such as nutrition, health promotion, and caregiver support. The agency strives to ensure
that this process is accessible to minority and women-owned businesses, as well as
culturally specific organizations, fostering equity and diversity in its provider network.

Service providers are rigorously evaluated based on their experience, cultural
competence, and capacity to serve diverse populations. This vetting process includes a
contract application process that highlights alignment with the goals and objectives of the
Older Americans Act, assessing prior performance, and reaching measurable outcomes
to uphold the highest standards of quality and accountability.

Collaboration with state and local agencies further strengthens our ability to identify
reliable service providers. By sharing resources and insights with other entities,
OCWCOG enhances its capacity to address community needs while avoiding duplication
of efforts. Special attention is also given to engaging underrepresented providers, such
as tribal organizations, LGBTQ+ advocacy groups, and those serving rural or isolated
communities. OCWCOG supports these smaller organizations by offering technical
assistance, such as application guidance and compliance training to help them meet

117 Page 32
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



qualification requirements.

Through these concerted efforts, our agency has built a robust network of service
providers capable of delivering high-quality programs that address the unique and
evolving needs of its planning and service area. This collaborative and inclusive approach
not only ensures programs are managed as economically as possible, but that resources
are allocated where they are needed most, making a meaningful impact on the lives of
those the Agency serves

In 2024 our ADRC call center answered 4,499 calls from 3,074 consumers and made
over 7,600 referrals to various services. About half of these referrals were to programs
provided by OCWCOG, while the other half went to services offered by other community
organizations. Below is a summary of the types of referrals made and the agencies
involved:

e Housing: Housing Authority offices, low-income housing communities, DevNW,
and Community Services Consortium.

e Energy Assistance: Community Services Consortium and faith-based
organizations offering utility payment assistance.

o Legal Assistance: Legal Aid of Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties, and private
Elder Law attorneys.

o Transportation: Love INC, volunteer providers, and Albany Transit System.

Thanks to our ongoing commitment to keeping the ADRC database current, consumers
and ADRC specialists can easily access up-to-date information on community resources.
We aim to have over 95% of resources updated at any given time and ensure that all
resources are reviewed and updated annually. This tool provides comprehensive access
to organizations in our region, connecting individuals to services beyond those offered by
OCWCOG.

Despite the collaborative efforts of OCWCOG and our partners, service gaps continue to
exist for the individuals we serve in Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties. Our Area Plan
needs assessment highlighted several critical issues, including affordable and accessible
housing, transportation, emergency preparedness for older adults and people with
disabilities, and the integration of behavioral health with long-term care systems. These
challenges are addressed in more detail in the goals and objectives sections of this plan.

118 Page 33
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section B



Section C: Focus Areas, Goals and Objectives

C.1 — INFORMATION AND REFERRAL SERVICES:
Aging and Disability Resource Connection (ADRC)

The Aging and Disability Resource Connection (ADRC) serves as a central hub for
information, support, and services through a network of community partnerships. ADRC's
professional staff are trained to assist individuals and families in connecting to programs,
services, and resources tailored to aging and disability needs. OCWCOG (Oregon
Cascades West Council of Governments) oversees ADRC operations in the tri-county
region and manages a call center providing free information and referral services
accessible to all, regardless of income. In a complex landscape of long-term services and
supports, OCWCOG emphasizes a "No Wrong Door" approach. This ensures individuals
and families can easily access the resources they need to address life’s challenges.

OCWCOG SDS upholds the quality of ADRC services through comprehensive training,
compliance with state and federal standards, and regular staff performance reviews.
Feedback from satisfaction surveys and stakeholders drives continuous improvement
initiatives. Staff and volunteers contribute to initiatives like satisfaction surveys, process
improvements, and professional training events to enhance service delivery.

A cornerstone of the ADRC ’s mission is community outreach. Staff actively participate in
events such as Veteran Stand Downs, LGBTQ Pride celebrations, health fairs, and tribal
community gatherings. To ensure equitable access, OCWCOG employs bilingual staff,
offers translation services, and prioritizes rural communities in all outreach activities. The
agency website and social media campaign further extend the ADRC ‘s reach, making
resources more accessible to all.

Our Information and Referral staff are certified by the Assistance and Information
Resources System (AIRS), a nationally recognized accreditation in information and
assistance services. ADRC team members evaluate individual needs and offer guidance
on eligible programs, which may include support for health and wellness, nutrition, legal
aid, transportation, counseling, family caregiving, and assistance with activities of daily
living such as bathing or dressing.

For those requiring more comprehensive support, ADRC refers individuals to Options
Counselors. These professionals conduct in-depth, person-centered planning through
face-to-face consultations at a client’s home or in one of our offices. Options Counselors
help individuals and families explore care options that align with their unique goals, needs,
and preferences.

OCWCOG also collaborates with the 211-info program through an interagency
agreement. Residents of Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties seeking aging or disability
resources through 211 are seamlessly connected to our local Information and Referral
team for expert assistance and guidance.

119 Page 34
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Funding for the ADRC is derived from the Older Americans Act (OAA), Medicaid, and
other grants and contracts when available. Continued efforts are made to work with core
community partners such as health departments, Community Care Organizations, the
Tribes, Community and Senior Centers, faith communities and local non profits to
leverage the power of collaboration, reduce duplication, and make the ADRC model more
sustainable. Additionally, we hope to continue to work with the Oregon Association of
Area Agencies on Aging and Disabilities (O4AD) and use the power of that collective to
increase contracted revenue streams for ADRC activities.

A key regional partner in these efforts is the Community Services Consortium (CSC), a
state-designated Community Action Agency. Both organizations share service areas
across Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties. CSC’s mission to combat poverty and
enhance community well-being fits nicely together with COG’s programming in
addressing food security, affordable housing, financial wellness, and veteran support.

In 2019, elected officials, CSC, OCWCOG leadership, and board members, initiated
discussions to enhance collaboration between the two agencies. These efforts aim to
reduce service duplication, improve efficiency, and remove barriers for community
members accessing assistance. To better serve our region OCWCOG and CSC officially
partnered in 2024 by sharing office space at our Corvallis office location and recently
hired an Executive Director to manage both organizations.

120 Page 35
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Focus Area — ADRC - Information and Referral Services
Goal #1: Enhance Accessibility to ADRC Information and Referral Services

Measurable
Objectives

1. Reduce
barriers and
delays in
accessing
services.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

Reduce wait times
consumers experience
when accessing benefits
and services by
streamlining intake and
referral processes.

ADRC Program Manager and
Supervisor

1/1/2026

6/31/2026

Accomplishment or Upda

te

b

Obtain data about office
walk-in traffic to assess
response times and
quality of service and
complete steps to
improve any areas of
concern.

ADRC Lead and Supervisor

7/1/2026

12/31/2026

Accomplishment or Upda

te

Cc

Create virtual stations in
Toledo and Corvallis so
offices with no call
center agents on
location can still provide
real-time assistance.

Program Director and Tech
Services

7/1/2025

12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Update

121

Page 36

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area - Information and Referral Services and ADRC
Goal #2: Increase the Impact of Long-Term Care Options Counseling Services in the Region

Measurable
Objectives

1. Complete
more
community
outreach.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

Develop and distribute
targeted educational
materials (flyers,
brochures, social media
content) to inform the
public, especially
underserved populations
(Tribal, Rural, LGBTQ,
Latino), about LTC
options counseling.

Program Manager

7/1/2025

9/30/2025

Accomplishment or Upda

b

Build stronger
relationships with
hospitals, rehab centers,
and community centers
by doing semiannual
outreach to increase
referrals.

Program Manager

9/30/2025

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

Measurable
Objectives

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

Provide training
annually to Options

Program Supervisor

1/1/2026

6/30/2029

122

Page 37

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




2. Provide staff
with tools for
success.

Counselors on Medicaid
waivers, private-pay
options, home- and
community-based
services (HCBS), and
VA benefits as well as
topics like de-escalation
training, trauma
informed care practices,
and implicit bias.

Accomplishment or Update

b

Implement data tracking
systems to measure the
number of clients
served, service
outcomes, and client
satisfaction.

Program Manager

7/1/2025

12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Update

Focus Area - Information and Referral Services and ADRC
Goal #3: Program Sustainability

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
1. Capture the a | Identify a local area .
max!mlljm expert in OMAC billing. Program Director 7/1/2025 7/31/2025
Medicaid Match [ Accomplishment or Update
available
through the ,
ADRC activity. b | Have designated team
member work with other | Identified Team Member 8/1/2025 10/31/2025
agencies and State
123 Page 38

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




partners to identify steps
to accomplishing goal.

Accomplishment or Update

Cc

Make sure data and
reporting requirements
are identified and met.

Executive Assistant

7/1/2025

12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Update

d

Track data annually and
assess success of
drawing down more
dollars, adjust as
needed.

Executive Assistant and Program
Director

12/31/2025

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
2. Contract with | 5 | Consider what other
community revenue sources can be | Program Director and Program
partners to billed to support ADRC | Manager 77172026 6/30/2026
bring in activities.
additional Accomplishment or Update
revenue.
b | Work with local partners
and others such as the
Oregon Wellness Program Director and Program
Network (OWN) and the | Manager 11112026 12/31/2026
Regional Health
Education Hub (REHUB)
124 Page 39

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




to support contract
development.

Accomplishment or Update

C

Assess the success of
bringing in more

Program Director 12/31/2027 6/30/2029
revenue annually and
adapt plan as needed.
Accomplishment or Update
125 Page 40

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




C. 2 - NUTRITION SERVICES

Food insecurity remains a significant challenge for many older adults and individuals with
disabilities in our region. This issue is especially pronounced among residents in rural
communities, racial and ethnic minority groups, individuals experiencing health
challenges, and those who live alone. Older adults facing food insecurity often experience
a range of adverse health outcomes, including diabetes, depression, high blood pressure,
congestive heart failure, heart attacks, gum disease, asthma, and difficulties performing
activities of daily living (ADLs).

OCWCOG is deeply committed to enhancing food security for seniors and individuals with
disabilities. Through a combination of internal programs and strategic partnerships with
community organizations, we aim to address the root causes of hunger and provide
access to nutritious meals. Our efforts focus on ensuring that no one in our community
must choose between food and other essential needs, enabling them to lead healthier,
more fulfilling lives.

PROGRAMS THAT SUPPORT FOOD SECURITY AT OCWCOG

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP)

Formerly known as "food stamps”, SNAP is a federal program designed to help low-
income families and individuals afford nutritious food. OCWCOG Eligibility Workers
process SNAP applications, determine eligibility, and issue benefits, which are distributed
monthly through Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) cards.

Despite its importance, senior participation in SNAP remains low. According to the
National Council on Aging, three out of five seniors who qualify for SNAP do not enroll.
Barriers to participation may include limited mobility, lack of access to technology,
misconceptions about program eligibility, misunderstanding of how the program operates,
and the stigma associated with seeking assistance. At local listening sessions we also
heard many eligible participants find the “red tape” of applying to not be worth the small
amount of money awarded. OCWCOG is dedicated to addressing these barriers by
increasing awareness, simplifying the application process, and providing support for
seniors and individuals with disabilities to access the benefits they need.

Grocery assistance by the Senior Companion Program

Since 2018, OCWCOG has sponsored the AmeriCorps Senior Companion Program
(SCP), which leverages the support of National Service volunteers aged 55+ to help
seniors aged 65+ remain independent at home. This program fills gaps in care by
providing an additional 1-2 hours of weekly volunteer assistance for clients referred
internally by OCWCOG programs such as Money Management, Meals on Wheels, and
Options Counseling.

126 Page 41
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



A core element of the SCP program is assisting with grocery shopping, which includes
door to door service, help with loading and unloading food, etc. Most volunteers drive
their companion to the nearest store; others deliver food boxes or, in remote areas, Meals
on Wheels. Volunteers use their own vehicles and receive a tax-exempt stipend of
$4/hour, mileage reimbursement at $0.40/mile, liability insurance, and ongoing driver
training. SCP continues to serve as a vital resource for seniors who need extra help to
age in place safely and comfortably.

Meals on Wheels (MOW)

OCWCOG’s Meals on Wheels (MOW) program provides fresh, hot meals to residents
across Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties, promoting independent living and social
connection for older adults and individuals with disabilities. Eligible participants include
adults aged 60 and over, Native Americans/Alaskans aged 55+, and people with
disabilities. Meals are available through home delivery or at Connections Café (our newly
branded name for congregate dining services) locations. All referrals for nutrition support
are routed through the ADRC call center where agents assess for all possible needs for
the consumer being served including access to health promotion programming, options
counseling, caregiver support, and other long-term services and support options.

Dining Room Services

For residents who can drive, MOW offers meals in 11 Connections Café locations across
the region. These settings provide opportunities for social interaction, reducing isolation
and loneliness by fostering community connections. Reopening dining sites after the
pandemic has been a challenge because of volunteer and staffing shortage, but a strong
push is being made to get back to pre-Covid diner numbers.

Home-Delivered Meals

Homebound participants receive hot, nutritious meals delivered by dedicated volunteers.
Delivery schedules vary by meal site. A selling point for the program, each delivery also
serves as a wellness check, providing critical contact for those who may have little or no
other daily interactions with other people or their community.

Paws and Claws

The Paws and Claws program provides pet food to interested qualified Meals on Wheels
consumers. Our goal is to help older adults to keep their companionship animals. Often
consumers would need to surrender their animals because of food scarcity. The Paws
and Claws program addresses this need by offering pet food for up to 2 pets in a
household. Pet food is sourced from local animal shelters and humane societies then

127 Page 42
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



packaged and delivered to consumers once a month along with their meal delivery. We
are actively seeking community partners to expand the program to include basic pet care
supplies. Additionally, we are also working toward establishing a volunteer manager in
each community to work with community partners and further expand pet services.

Meal Preparation and Nutrition Education

MOW contracts with TRIO Community Health, whose dietitian plans fresh, balanced
meals prepared at a central kitchen in Salem for the valley meal sites and Newport for the
coastal communities and then distributed. Monthly nutrition education articles accompany
menus, and quarterly seminars are provided for dining room participants. Homebound
recipients also receive nutritional education which is discussed with the MOW Program
Coordinator during their initial and annual reassessments, ensuring they are equipped
with resources to maintain healthy eating habits.

Community Support and Innovation

MOW staff and volunteers actively refer consumers who could benefit from additional
services to the Aging and Disability Resource Connection (ADRC). The MOW program
operates without a waitlist, thanks to continuous fundraising efforts and grant support.
Additionally, our volunteer force of almost 350 people is vital for making the delivery of
meals sustainable. This last year a Volunteer Coordinator was added to the MOW team
to help support the recruitment, onboarding and recognition of volunteers, but recently
those duties were wrapped into the duties of our new MOW Administrative Supervisor
position.

Using Title IlI-C funding, Meals on Wheels (MOW) meal sites are available in Linn,
Benton, and Lincoln counties.

See Attachment B — Request to Provide Reduced Meals

See Attachment C — Meal Site Hours and Locations

128 Page 43
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Focus Area — Nutrition Services
Goal #1: Increase Nutrition Access for Those at Highest Risk

Measurable
Objectives

. Provide
increased
rapid
response food
access.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

APS will have access to
shelf-stable meals to
provide as part of risk
mitigation when working
with food insecure
consumers and track
how many are deployed
annually.

Program Supervisor

7/1/2025

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Upda

te

b

Case Managers will
have access to shelf-
stable meals for
consumers identified as
food insecure during
assessment or direct
contact time frames and
track how many are
deployed annually. .

Program Supervisor

7/1/2025

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Upda

te

Cc

Write grants for ongoing
sustainability of shelf-
stable meals purchases
for this work.

Program Manager

7/1/2025

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

129

Page 44

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area — Nutrition Services
Goal #2: Improve Advocacy and Oversight for Meals on Wheels

Measurable
Objectives

. Reestablish
Meals on
Wheels
Advisory
Committee.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date End Date

a | Recruit members for re-
established Meals on
Wheels Advisory
Committee (MOWAC)
and hold at least one
meeting each quarter.

Program Manager and MOW
Administrative Supervisor

10/1/2025 6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

b | Reset guidelines for
MOWAC purpose, goals
and objectives.

MOW Supervisor and Program
Manager

7/1/2025 9/30/2025

Accomplishment or Upda

te

c | Have MOWAC
representative share
program updates with
full council at full joint
Council meetings every

Program Director

other month.

1/1/2026 6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

130

Page 45
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area — Nutrition Services

Goal #3: MOW Program Will Become More Financially Sustainable.

Measurable
Objectives

1. Volunteer
workforce
enhancement.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

a | Complete a volunteer
Engagement Survey
annually to assess

onboarding, and
engagement tools.

quality of training, MOW Administrative Supervisor

7/1/2025

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

b | Host Annual Volunteer

each site.

Appreciation events at MOW Administrative Supervisor

1/1/2026

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

c | Analyze annual
Volunteer Survey data
and share with the

identify areas of
improvement needed.

Meals on Wheels Program Manager and MOW
Advisory Committee to Administrative Supervisor

7/1/2026

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

131

Page 46

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area — Nutrition Services
Goal #3 continued: MOW Program Sustainability

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
2. Increase a | ldentify and implement
fundraising. two new fundraising MOW Administrative Supervisor 1/1/2026 6/30/2029
events per year for a and Program Manager
total of up to 4 annually.
Accomplishment or Update
b | Annually analyze grant
and fundraising Program Director and Program
activities from the Manager 12/1/2026 6/30/2029
previous year.
Accomplishment or Update
c | Identify gaps in service
that grant writing may
be able to more fully Program Director and Program 1/1/2027 6/30/2029
support and seek grants | Manager
to fill the need.
Accomplishment or Update
132 Page 47

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area — Nutrition Services
Goal #4: Promotion of Socialization and Community Engagement

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
. Connections | g | Fully reopen congregate
Café will have meal sites to pre-covid Program Operations Supervisor
increased operational day 71112025 12/31/2025
operations. numbers.
Accomplishment or Update
b | Increase attendance by
20% in meal sites that Site managers and Operations 1/1/2026 12/31/2026
are underutilized. Supervisor
Accomplishment or Update
c | Enhance congregate
meal sites to encourage | Operations Supervisor and Site
social interaction and Managers
reduce isolation and 1/1/2026 6/30/2029
survey participants
annually to judge
impact.
Accomplishment or Update
d | Organize group
activities, health
screenings, or Operations Supervisor and Site 1/1/2026 6/30/2029
educational workshops Managers
at each meal site at least
quarterly.
Accomplishment or Update
133 Page 48

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




C.3 - HEALTH PROMOTION

An essential outcome of the services provided or administered by OCWCOG is the
stabilization and improvement of health for older adults and younger adults with
disabilities across the region. These populations often face higher risks of chronic disease
and preventable health issues. To address these challenges, OCWCOG supports
targeted programs and collaborates with healthcare providers and non-clinical community
partners across the three-county area. By improving health outcomes, individuals can
preserve their independence, exercise personal choice, and uphold their dignity.

Partnerships with Healthcare Systems

OCWCOG has established a robust and ongoing partnership with InterCommunity Health
Network Coordinated Care Organization (IHN-CCO), the region’s largest Coordinated
Care Organization. OCWCOG staff serve on the IHN-CCO Regional Planning Council
(RPC) which comprises key stakeholders advising on regional health strategies.

A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between OCWCOG and IHN-CCO defines their
shared commitment to supporting members across the continuum of care. Monthly
Intensive Care Team meetings, co-hosted by IHN-CCO and OCWCOG, bring together
community partners to address the needs of individuals requiring additional assistance.
Quarterly “coffee breaks” provide a collaborative forum for staff from IHN-CCO and
OCWCOG to discuss shared initiatives, review processes, and strengthen professional
relationships.

OCWCOG also maintains strong working relationships with Samaritan Health Services
discharge planners and care coordinators from both Samaritan Health Services and
Corvallis Clinic. These partnerships enable effective problem-solving and ensure that
individuals navigating the healthcare system receive the long-term services and support
necessary for success.

Partnerships with Community Agencies

OCWCOG is a key partner in the Regional Health Education Hub (ReHUB), a
collaboration among multiple community organizations designed to streamline health
education programs across Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties. ReHUB provides
accessible, evidence-based workshops and training tailored to community needs,
benefiting residents, clinicians, and partner organizations alike.

ReHUB partners meet quarterly to coordinate regional health promotion activities and
have participated in the Sustainable Relationships in Community Health (SRCH)
Institutes. With support from an Oregon Health Authority SRCH grant, ReHUB partners
have developed strategies to ensure the sustainability of health promotion programs,
enhancing long-term benefits for the community. Despite this, regional Community
Centers who attended a forum on the topic of health promotion identified long-term
sustainability of evidence-based class offering to be one of their biggest concerns.
Addressing that ongoing funding issue as a goal of this Area Plan.

134 Page 49
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



OCWCOG provides funding and support to community partners to promote healthy aging.
Requests for Proposals (RFP) were sought to support community organizations across
the three counties that focus on providing evidence-based classes. Priority was given to
proposals that emphasized serving those with the greatest social and economic need.
OCWCOG historically provides 100% of IIID Health Promotion funding to the community
in the form of contracts.

Key programs and initiatives supported through these contracts include:
Fall Prevention

« Better Bones and Balance:
Offered by the Willamette Valley YMCA, this evidence-based program improves
balance and reduces the risk of falls.

o Walk with Ease:
Available through the Newport Senior Center, this Arthritis Foundation-developed
program has proven to reduce pain and stiffness while encouraging physical
activity.

Diabetes Prevention Programs

Educational sessions are provided one-on-one, in classrooms, and online to teach
individuals about healthy eating, exercise, and lifestyle changes. These programs focus
on delaying, preventing, and managing diabetes.

Transitions

A non-medical program by Lumina Hospice and Palliative Care that supports individuals
and families in living well with serious, life-limiting illnesses.

Living Well with Chronic Conditions

Samaritan Health Educations Department offers Living Well Workshops classes focused
on managing chronic health conditions, preventing disease, and improving quality of life.
These initiatives aim to lower healthcare costs through better education and self-
management skills.

Additional OCWCOG Support for Community Health Promotion Programs

In addition to financial contributions, OCWCOG actively supports health promotion
efforts through various means:

e Training Reliable Class Leaders:
Volunteer class leaders play a critical role in sustaining health promotion
programs. As a Regional Health Education Hub (ReHUB) partner, OCWCOG has
invested in training staff of multiple community organizations to be trained
facilitators.

135 Page 50
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



o Transportation Support through RideLine:
OCWCOG's transportation brokerage, RideLine (part of the CED department),
provides rides for participants attending in-person classes across the region. This
service is available to all class attendees, even those who do not typically qualify
for Ride Line transportation, removing barriers to access for community health
programs.

o Referral to Classes Through the ADRC Call Center:
Agents at OCWCOG are equipped with information about health promotion
classes across the three-county region, enabling them to connect consumers to
programs that support their health and well-being.

Addressing Key Gaps in Health Promotion Services

OCWCOG recognizes several critical gaps in health promotion services for older adults
and people with disabilities and is dedicated to addressing these issues in our Health
Promotion Goals and Objectives. These include supporting folks who face barriers in
accessing mental health services, working to reduce social isolation, loneliness, and
depression, and increasing sustainability in health promotion program funding regionally
through collaboration and reducing duplication.

136 Page 51
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Focus Area — Health Promotion
Goal #1: Better Promote Preventative and Wellness Programs

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
1. Improve a | Support healthy aging
ADRC Call initiatives such as fall
Center and prevention, chronic
OAA Case disease management,
gnua::c?r‘:rof fn”adk;ﬁ%';’eer training by | ApRC Supervisor and Lead 1/1/2026 6/30/2029
health agents/CMs are
promotion provided with accurate
programming. information to local class
offerings monthly.
Accomplishment or Update
b | Continue to work with
the Regional Health
Education Hub to have | ADRC Program Manager 71112025 6/30/2029
up to date info of class
offerings.
Accomplishment or Update
¢ | Increase the number of
referrals to health
g“’m"t'o” programming | Aprc Supervisor 7/1/2025 6/30/2029
ocumented in Get Care
database and assess
that number every July.
Accomplishment or Update
137 Page 52

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area — Health Promotion
Goal #1 continued: Better Promote Preventative and Wellness Programs

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
2. Complete a | Provide information
;“bfjt‘;l‘g;ﬁich f‘hba‘ﬁflg'riﬁﬁetif staff | program Supervisors 1/1/2026 12/31/2026
promotion community.

programming Accomplishment or Update

b | Utilize OCWCOG’s

social media presence | o nications Officer 1/1/2026 6/30/2029
to promote information

quarterly.

Accomplishment or Update

c | Use tools like a lobby TV
monitor or mass
mailings to share Communications Officer 1/1/2027 6/30/2029
information to a wider
audience.

Accomplishment or Update

138 Page 53
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area — Health Promotion

Goal #2: Increase Health Promotion Programming Sustainability

Measurable
Objectives

1. Community
partners offer
more class
sessions.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

Schedule a quarterly
roundtable with
Community/Senior
Center personnel to
assess needs of each
community, gaps,
barriers, and funding
issues.

Program Director

7/1/12025

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

b

Agencies work as a
collaborative to try to
reduce duplication and
increase efficiency.

Program Director

7/1/12025

6/30/2025

Accomplishment or Update

Cc

Map out class offering at
early roundtable meeting
— what classes are
offered where, when,
how?

Program Director

7/1/2025

12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Update

d

Reassess with group
annually to see if we
have made greater

Program Director

12/31/2025

6/30/2029

139

Page 54

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




impact in sustainability
and impact in the
communities.

Accomplishment or Update

Focus Area — Health Promotion
Goal #3: Increase the Impact of Health Promotion Funding

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
1. Contract with | g | Complete a bi-annual
local agencies RFP process to support
focusing on health promotion Program Director 7/1/2025 6/30/2029
dlversmcatlop programming in the
of programming, three-county area.
regionwide .
support, and Accomplishment or Update
meeting the
needs of the b | Focus on outreach to
most find contractors that
underserved. serve underserved Program Director 7/1/2025 6/30/2025
populations across the
region.
Accomplishment or Update
¢ | Monitor each contracted , .
agency at least once ;rogram Dlrec?or and Monitor and 71112025 6/30/2029
eview Committee
every two years.
Accomplishment or Update
d | Use Monitor and Review . .
Committee to annually Egﬁg‘vm Director and Monitor and 6/1/2026 6/30/2029
assess programming for
140 Page 55

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




impact vs funding
amount.

Accomplishment or Update

e | Work annually to find
specific contractors to
support programming
gaps identified by
Monitor and Review
Committee.

Program Director 7/1/2026 6/30/2025

Accomplishment or Update

141 Page 56
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




C.4 - FAMILY CAREGIVERS

Family caregivers are essential to the Long-Term Services and Supports (LTSS) system,
providing vital assistance to older adults and people with disabilities. Caregiving duties
range from help with household tasks, such as cleaning and meal preparation, to personal
care activities like eating, bathing, and mobility. These unpaid caregivers offer the critical
support that allows many individuals to remain safe and healthy at home, potentially
avoiding the need for expensive nursing facility or hospital care.

With the continued aging of the population, especially as the Baby Boomer generation
grows older, the burden on family caregivers is expected to increase. As more people rely
on a smaller group of caregivers, the demands on these individuals will intensify. Many
family caregivers receive no financial compensation for the care they provide, which
places a significant emotional and financial strain on them. The inability to work full-time
due to caregiving responsibilities adds further financial pressure. Beyond the economic
challenges, many caregivers also experience emotional stress and negative impacts on
their physical health. Feelings of guilt for taking time off, poor eating habits, and lack of
exercise are common, leading to serious health risks over time.

The OCWCOG Family Caregiver Support Program (FCSP)

OCWCOG’s FCSP serves unpaid caregivers who provide care for aging or disabled
spouses, parents, grandparents, or friends, as well as older adults caring for children or
adult children with developmental or intellectual disabilities. OCWCOG prioritizes serving
caregivers who have the greatest social and economic need because of several factors ,
including those from racial minorities, non-English speakers, Native Americans, rural
communities, low-income backgrounds, and those caring for individuals with Alzheimer's
or related disorders who have functional impairments. Information about the FCSP
program is displayed whenever we participate in events such as Veteran Stand Downs,
LGBTQ Pride celebrations, Latino celebrations, health fairs, and tribal community
gatherings. To ensure all caregivers have access to the program, OCWCOG employs
bilingual staff, offers translation services, and prioritizes rural communities in all outreach
activities.

The key components of the FCSP include providing information and assistance, caregiver
training, support groups, counseling, supplemental services, and respite care. Respite
care is provided, both through stipend payments and by contracting with adult day service
providers and OCWCOG collaborates with a range of community partners across the
three-county region to provide other essential caregiver services, such, support groups,
training, and supplying medical equipment like emergency response systems. These
partnerships are critical in meeting the needs of unpaid caregivers.

When caregivers inquire about services, they are first screened by ADRC call center staff,
who are trained on both agency programs and community resources. Those needing
additional support are referred to an Options Counselor, who assists them in making
informed decisions about long-term care options based on the needs of both the caregiver

142 Page 57
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



and the care recipient. When FCSP benefits are something a caregiver thinks will support
them in meeting the needs of caring for their care recipient, they are provided with more
detailed information about the benefits of the program and if interested are enrolled in
services moving forward.

Caregivers are only eligible to receive FCSP services once they complete the Oregon
Caregiver Assessment Tool (OCAT) followed by their OCAT risk calculation score. Those
tools will determine their risk factor for receiving services. Once a caregiver is eligible for
FCSP services, the case managers works with the care provider and care recipient to
create a personalized care plan that promotes a healthy caregiving environment as well
as helps us prioritize services for those most at risk. The care plan may include referrals
to local support groups, evidence-based caregiver training, and other community
resources. The caregiver is provided with a written explanation of benefits and agreed
upon next steps to achieve their goals. A follow-up call from the FCSP Specialist is made
within one month to check on progress and address any additional concerns and regular
check-ins happen throughout the year if a caregiver identifies ongoing support as a need.

Celebrating Caregivers

Recognizing the invaluable work of
caregivers is an essential part of
OCWCOG’s FCSP. We aim through the
next four years to get back to hosting an
annual caregiver celebration event in each
of our three counties. These events, which .
were paused during the pandemic, are
aimed at bringing caregivers together, .
recognizing their efforts, and offering them
time for self-care, and are open to all unpaid

caregivers. Funds are provided to :‘
attendees who need respite services for e
their loved one to attend. el

Supporting Relatives As Parents

One of the weakest aspects of the FCSP in Linn and Benton Counties is the support we
can provide to older adults raising family members or the Relatives As Parents Program
(RAPP). Goals around doing more outreach and support for this group will remain as part
of this focus area for our agency.

Paid Caregiver Workforce

While this section of the Area Plan focuses on the needs of unpaid caregivers, it was also
important to our community and advocates for our agency to address the significant issue
of the shortage of trained, paid Home Care Workers (HCWSs) in our region in the 25-29
Plan. The lack of paid caregivers available creates stress for consumers who rely on this

143 Page 58
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



workforce for assistance with daily activities and an additional burden on unpaid family
caregivers who may need respite care or professional caregiver support with skilled tasks,
such as bathing assistance.

In conclusion, while unpaid family caregivers continue to be the backbone of LTSS, both
the caregivers and the individuals they care for face ongoing challenges. OCWCOG
remains dedicated to supporting caregivers, improving their well-being, and addressing
the systemic issues that impact the caregiving experience.

144 Page 59
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Focus Area — Family Caregiver
Goal#1: Assess and Rebuild Family Caregiver Program to be More Impactful Across the Region

Measurable
Objectives

. Assess
current
programs and
caregiver
needs to
inform future
initiatives.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

Create and conduct an
initial needs assessment
survey for caregiver
input.

Program Manager and FCSP
Supervisor

7/1/2025

12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Update

b

Review and report on
the initial caregiver
survey to identify gaps
and additional needs.

Program Director and Manager

1/1/2026

6/30/2026

Accomplishment or Update

Cc

|dentify and key
stakeholders and
potential partners that
could support filling gaps
(healthcare orgs,
community groups).

Program Director and Manager

7/1/2025

12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Update

d

Identify best practices
from similar programs
nationwide and integrate
into our model.

Program Director and Manager

1/1/2026

6/30/2026

Accomplishment or Update

145

Page 60

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




e | Develop an action plan
for improving support
based on findings
including addressing
how individuals of hard
to reach/target groups
are identified, engaged,
and served.

Program Manager and Supervisor

7/1/2026 9/30/2026

Accomplishment or Update

f | Complete follow-up
assessment survey to
determine impact of Program Manager and Supervisor
program changes, adapt
as necessary.

7/1/2027 12/31/2027

Accomplishment or Update

Focus Area - Family Caregiver
Goal #2: Strengthening Support and Building Awareness

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
. Resume a | Plan and launch the first
caregiver Caregiver Appreciation
appreciation Events post COVID Program Supervisor and Staff 1/1/2026 10/31/2026
events and (luncheon, awards,
expand wellness day).
community Accomplishment or Update
outreach.
146 Page 61

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Develop/update a
caregiver resource guide
(website or printed
materials with info on
services, respite care,
etc.).

Program Manager

1/1/2028

12/31/2028

Accomplishment or Update

Continue to strengthen
partnerships with
organizations to expand
support services and
report out on work to
Councils annually.

Program Director

1/30/2026

Annually

Accomplishment or Update

d

Evaluate appreciation
event success, gather
feedback for
improvements.

Program Manager

11/1/2026

12/31/2026

Accomplishment or Update

e

Develop partnerships
with businesses for
caregiver discounts and
giveaways.

Program Staff

1/1/2026

10/31/2026

Accomplishment or Update

f

Promote caregiver
stories through social
media, newsletters, and
community events at
least 2 times annually.

Program Staff

1/1/2026

Ongoing

Accomplishment or Update

147

Page 62

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area - Family Caregiver
Goal #3: Expanding Education & Training

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date

. Enhance a | Assess caregiver

caregiver support services by

knowledge county to determine Program Director 7/1/2025 12/31/2025

and skills where gaps in

through programming exist.

training Accomplishment or Update

focusing on

:::;jal areas b | Develop and launch

underserved caregiver training

populations. programs (WOrkshops, | . -am Director 1/1/2026 12/31/2026

webinars, online
courses) in 3
underserved areas.

Accomplishment or Update

¢ | Partner and/or contract
with local community
centers, faith-based
organizations, and other
organizations to provide
training.

Program Director 1/1/2026 12/31/2026

Accomplishment or Update

d | Expand online training
and resource access for | Program Manager 1/1/2027 12/31/2027
rural caregivers.

Accomplishment or Update

148 Page 63
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area - Family Caregiver
Goal #4: Strengthening Grandfamilies Support

Measurable
Objectives

. Support
grandfamilies
with a Kinship
Navigator
program.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

a | Create or support an
already existing Kinship
Navigator program
framework, securing
funding and resources.

Program Director and Manager

1/1/2028

12/31/2028

Accomplishment or Update

b | Hire and train kinship
navigators to guide
grandfamilies through
services.

Program Manager

1/1/2028

12/31/2028

Accomplishment or Update

c | Develop informational
materials and referral
networks for
grandfamilies.

Program Staff

1/1/2029

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

d | Work with local school
districts to support
grandfamilies with
Kinship navigators.

Program Staff

1/1/2029

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

149

Page 64

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




C.5 - LEGAL ASSISTANCE AND ELDER RIGHTS PROTECTION

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG) collaborates with
community partners to safeguard the rights and well-being of older adults and individuals
with disabilities. Our primary focus is on preventing abuse, neglect, and exploitation while
ensuring that vulnerable populations receive the support they need to remain safe and
independent.

Our outreach strategy emphasizes culturally sensitive and inclusive resources designed
to reduce risk and empower individuals with the knowledge and tools needed to protect
themselves. Staff at OCWCOG are trained in trauma-informed and person-centered
practices in order to ensure services are provided in the ways consumers and caregivers
need.

Adult Protective Services

As the designated Area Agency on Aging (AAA), OCWCOG contracts with Oregon
Department of Human Services to manage reports of abuse and neglect against older
adults and people with disabilities in Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties. APS screens
and triages these reports, providing consultation and referrals when cases do not meet
investigative criteria. If a complaint falls within OCWCOG's regulatory scope, an APS
investigator is assigned to conduct a thorough review. This process includes interviewing
the alleged victim, the alleged perpetrator, and relevant witnesses to determine the
validity of the allegations.

When abuse is substantiated, APS staff take action to safeguard the victim. However,
assistance may be limited by the individual's personal choices and cognitive capacity. For
those identified as "at risk," APS provides intervention services, which may include
continuous monitoring, reassessment, and the development of a tailored plan to mitigate
potential harm.

APS personnel are trained to recognize indicators of criminal activity. If there is suspicion
of a crime, APS refers the case to law enforcement, which then leads the investigation
and, if necessary, pursues legal action. Local police and sheriff departments collaborate
with APS staff, utilizing their specialized knowledge to support cases involving elder
abuse and the mistreatment of individuals with disabilities.

Referring the APS or law enforcement is a well-oiled process for agency staff who receive
regular training on being a mandatory reporter and how to recognize abuse and neglect
red flags. On site APS screeners as well as an agency email specific to reaching out to a
screener makes reporting easy.

150 Page 65
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Increasing Numbers

As seen below, complaints and investigation numbers have increased dramatically since
2021, in some cases increasing by 100% over the four-year period which the 2021-2025
Area Plan covered.

2021-2024 Adult Protective Services Data by County

County - . Communit Facili Communit Facility Non-
Yeary AR Investigatioxs Investigatt)i,ons Non-AbusZ Abzse

Benton
2021 767 145 173 306 144
Benton
2022 838 156 242 271 169
Benton
2023 1025 152 218 349 306
Benton
2024 973 165 238 297 273
Increase
from 2021
to 2024 26.86% 13.79% 37.57% -2.94% 89.58%
Lincoln

2021 828 233 90 391 94
Lincoln

2022 948 240 97 485 80
Lincoln

2023 855 213 119 421 102
Lincoln

2024 1046 230 184 473 179
Increase

from 2021

to 2024 26.86% -1.29% 51.08% 20.97% 90.43%

Increase/

Decrease
from 2021
to 2024 15.72% -40.57% 45.50% 9.99% 31.38%

151 Page 66
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Multidisciplinary Teams (MDT)

Additionally, OCWCOG’s APS team and leadership actively participates in
Multidisciplinary Teams (MDTs) across our three-county service area. These teams,
facilitated by the District Attorney’s office, bring together ADRC community partners,
including law enforcement, emergency responders, and mental health professionals, to
review ongoing criminal cases as well as chronic and ongoing safety issues in the
communities. MDT meetings foster a collaborative approach to addressing community
challenges, such as unsafe living conditions for seniors, and the team identifies gaps and
barriers in the current service delivery model and works together to mitigate these issues
and find solutions. MDT meetings reinforce the importance of thoroughly investigating
and prosecuting crimes against vulnerable populations as well as working together as a
team to serve our most vulnerable residents.

Elder Abuse Education and Scam Prevention

OCWCOG’s goal is to increase awareness and empower older adults with practical
education, prevention tools and knowledge to reduce abuse, including financial abuse by
scams. The SDS program will conduct outreach initiatives at senior living communities,
meal sites, and other community hubs. These efforts aim to connect those who are most
at risk. To ensure inclusivity, OCWCOG will provide materials in English and Spanish and
large print font, as well as any other languages requested. To reach individuals unable to
attend in-person events, SDS will collaborate with community partners to deliver
educational materials directly to homes. Additionallyy, OCWCOG hosts other events
designed around protection of financial information such as an annual shred event where
people can drive through our Albany parking lot and have sensitive documentation
securely destroyed.

Contracting for Legal Services

OCWCOG uses Older Americans Act IlIB Supplemental Services funding to contract with
Legal Aid Services of Oregon to provide legal information and free legal services for older
adults in our region. We annually provide funding well more than the 3% require by the
Older Americans Act. Legal Aid Service of Oregon seeks to achieve justice for low-income
communities in Oregon in areas of elder abuse, landlord-tenant or housing discrimination,
government benefits, disability health benefits and more. We are excited to have a strong
partner with Legal Aid and regularly have their attorneys interact with our staff to make
sure we understand the programs and services they offer to the consumers we serve.
The Legal Aid contract scope of work is written to ensure services are delivered according
to Oregon’s legal assistance program standards and bi annual contract visits occur to
check in about deliverables and make sure contract language is being acted upon.

Looking ahead to the next four years, OCWCOG is excited to strengthen collaborations
with key community partners, including Legal Aid, local senior centers, the Long-Term
Care Ombudsman office, financial institutions, and staff from long-term care communities
to support scam and elder fraud education and prevention across our communities.

152 Page 67
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Focus Area — Legal Assistance and Elder Rights
Goal #1: Continue and Expand Partnership with Legal Aid

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
1. Staff is more | 5 | Have Legal Aid
aware of Legal attorneys attend APS
Aid Services. and CM staff meetings | Program Supervisors 1/1/2026 12/31/2026

and share info about the
programs they provide.

Accomplishment or Update

b | Make sure the
information in the ADRC
data base is up to date
and accurate.

ADRC Lead 12/1/2025 12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Update

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029

Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date

2. Serve more | g | Discuss expansion of

at need contract to support more

consumers. consumers and

specifically more
targeted outreach to
greatest economicand | b0 Director and Contractor 3/1/2026 6/30/2026
social need. To be
addressed, would be
how individuals of hard
to reach/target groups
are identified, engaged,
and served.

Accomplishment or Update

153 Page 68
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




b | Adapt contract to
include expanded
scope.

Program Director and Contractor

3/1/2026 6/30/2026

Accomplishment or Upda

te

¢ | Track outcomes for
impact of increased
funding.

Program Director

7/1/2026 6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

Focus Area - Legal Assistance and Elder Rights

Goal #2: Enhance Tenant Rights and Housing Stability for Older Adults

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
. Increased a | Provide higher levels of
referral to legal assistance for
appropriate seniors facing eviction, Program Director and Contractor 71112027 6/30/2029
resources. foreclosure, or housing
discrimination.
Accomplishment or Update
b | Make sure ADRC
agents have info about
resources for when Program Supervisor and Contractor 1/1/2026 6/30/2026
people call with these
issues.
Accomplishment or Update
Measurable " , Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)

154

Page 69
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




. Community
education
about housing
related
supports is
implemented.

Start Date

End Date

Work with Legal Aid and
the Fair Housing
Coalition to develop
workshops on lease
agreements, fair housing
laws, and navigating
subsidized housing
programs.

Program Director and Contractor

1/1/2028

06/30/2028

Accomplishment or Upda

te

b

Partner with regional
Housing Authorities and
tenant advocacy groups
to educate seniors on
their rights and
protections.

Program Director and Contractor

1/1/2029

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

155

Page 70

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




C.6 — NATIVE AMERICAN ELDERS

The Confederated Tribe of the Siletz Indians has approximately 5,600 enrolled Tribal
members. About 27% live within our three-county service area and approximately 70% of
Siletz Tribal members live in Oregon. They occupy and manage approximately 3,666
acres of reservation located in Lincoln County. Only 8% of the Siletz Tribe live on the
reservation with 22.6% living elsewhere in Lincoln County. Additionally, 17.67% of Tribal
members in Lincoln County are over the age of 65, compared to 5.73% and 22.03% in
Benton and Linn Counties respectively.

Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians
Percentages of Persons by Age by County

UNDER 18 YEARS

20.66%

18 TO 64 YEARS ‘

74.32%

65 AND OVER ‘ ‘

b

0.00% 10.00%  20.00%  30.00%  40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00%

Benton Lincoln H Linn

Given that the largest numbers live in Lincoln and Linn Counties within OCWCOG's
service areas, working with its leadership, staff, and members has been where we have
focused the majority of our outreach and relationship building efforts. OCWCOG is
fortunate to have representatives from the Siletz Tribe on its Board of Directors and on its
Senior Services Advisory Council. Additionally, OCWCOG operates a Meals on Wheels
site out of the Siletz Tribal Community Center and has participated in multiple health fairs
and other events sponsored by the Tribe to continue building the relationship. Information
on how to access services is at all tabling events, as is information about opportunities to
serve on advisory councils and work groups. OCWCOG'’s Board has an assigned seat for
a Tribal representation. OCWCOG has been working over the last four years to establish
stronger relationships with the Tribal Communities, small gains have been made but
communication and developing strong entry points for Native Elders to access benefits
are areas that could still be improved. Frequent turnover and vacancies in Tribal Elder
Program staffing has been a challenge. Over the next four years, we will continue to work

156 Page 71
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



toward having better relationships and collaboration with the Tribes to improve the
coordination of services including emergency management (please see section C8 for
more information), share information, and provide services in more culturally appropriate
ways.

OCWCOG will establish robust communication opportunities with Title VI programs to
ensure they are informed about Title Ill and other funding opportunities and receive
technical assistance for applying for these opportunities. Regular virtual and in-person
meetings will foster collaboration and provide a discussion forum. Email distribution lists
will be used to share updates, application deadlines, and technical guidance promptly.
OCWCOG will also deliver presentations tailored to Tribal audiences at community
events, Tribal meetings, and public hearings to explain funding opportunities and
application processes. Additionally, OCWCOG will offer one-on-one technical assistance
sessions, either on-site or remotely, to support Title VI programs in preparing successful
applications. By maintaining open and consistent communication, OCWCOG will ensure
that Title VI programs have the resources and knowledge to access and utilize available
funding effectively

Over the next four years OCWCOG would like to continue to develop and improve
relationships with the Tribes that have members living in our communities but do not have
outstations in the region. In particular, we would like to expand our agency’s relationship
and collaboration with the Confederated Tribes of Coos, Lower Umpqua and Siuslaw
Indians which has two outstations located in Lane County and have members in Lincoln
County. OCWCOG plans on developing relationships with these outstations that involve
regular communication and information sharing and support the Tribes and Tribal
members who need to access the services and supports OCWCOG provides.

Our relationship with Tribal communities across Oregon has been enhanced over the last
several years by our staff’s involvement in “Meet and Greet” events created by the State
Aging and People with Disabilities office and we hope they will continue to happen. These
events brought AAA staff and the staff that run similar programs for Tribal Elders (Title V)
together to share food, discuss topics of interest, and build camaraderie and trust.
OCWOCG hosted one of the first events in our Albany building, another was held at the
Tribal Community Center in Siletz, and most recently the event was sponsored by COG
and hosted by the Siletz Tribe in Lincoln City. All our Older Americans Act Case Managers
have attended these events, and we are committed to always being at the table moving
forward.

OCWCOG looks to Tribal members to guide any partnerships and services that may
develop over the next four years and will be seeking input in the form of stakeholder
groups, surveys, and other outreach. We are excited to continue to develop the idea of a
Tribal Navigator staff person who can be a trusted touch point and support for Native
Elders and people with disabilities from the Tribal Community who are referred for Title
lll, Title VII, or Medicaid programming. This staff person will work in coordination with
ADRC call center staff to provide more support and direct access to services and

157 Page 72
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



supports. We also embrace the connection having our Siletz MOW Connections Café
housed at the Tribal Center and know that being located in that facility has helped develop
the relationship between the Tribal Elders Program and our staff.

158 Page 73
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Focus Area — Native American Elders
Goal #1: Support Tribal Elders Who Need Services

Timeframe for 2025-2029

Measurable
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
_ Start Date End Date
1. Establish a | 5 T'dentify and appoint a
de§t|grf|ated dedicated team of
g:,':,rzinators gﬂﬂg;;agggi;gtzef;e as Program Manager and Director 1/1/2026 6/30/2026
to support tribal requests and
Tribal support.
requests and | A complishment or Update
strengthen
relationships.
b | Develop a structured
process for responding
to tribal inquiries, Program Manager and Coordinators 7/1/2026 12/30/2026
ensuring timely and
culturally responsive
communication.
Accomplishment or Update
c | Facilitate quarterly
coordinator meetings
and engggement Program Manager and Coordinators 1/1/2027 6/30/2029
opportunities to foster
collaboration and trust
with tribal communities.
Accomplishment or Update
159 Page 74

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area — Native American Elders
Goal #2 continued: Support Tribal Elders Who Need services

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029

Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date

2. Recruit and | g | Conduct outreach efforts

onboard at to identify and recruit a

least one tribal member interested | CSP Program Manager 1/1/2026 3/31/2026

Tribal Member in becoming a SHIBA

as a SHIBA counselor.

Counselor. Accomplishment or Update

b | Provide necessary
training and certification
to ensure the new
counselor is well- CSP SHIBA Staff 4/1/2026 8/30/2026
equipped to assist tribal
elders with Medicare
counseling.

Accomplishment or Update

c | Establish quarterly
check ins to provide
mentorship and support
to help the SHIBA CSP SHIBA Staff 4/1/2026 6/30/2029
counselor integrate into
the program
successfully.

Accomplishment or Update

160 Page 75
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Focus Area - Native American Elders
Goal #3: Build Relationship with Tribal Community

Measurable
Objectives

1. Implement
routine onsite
SDS support on
a quarterly
basis.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date End Date

Develop a schedule to
ensure regular quarterly
visits from SDS staff to
provide direct support to
tribal members.

Program Manager and Tribal Elders
Program Staff

9/1/2026 6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Updat

e

b

Coordinate with tribal
leadership to determine
priority needs and tailor
SDS services/information
sharing accordingly.

Program Manager, Tribal
Coordinators, and Tribal Elders
Program Staff

1/1/2027 12/31/2027

Accomplishment or Updat

e

C

Track engagement and
feedback to assess the
impact and effectiveness
of onsite support visits.

Program Manager and Supervisor

1/1/2028 12/31/2028

Accomplishment or Updat

e

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)

_ Start Date End Date
2. Establish a | Establish quarterly
;I'rllzal progc:'am communication effort

eaders an with Tribal Elder Program Director, Manager, and
OCWCOG staff Program Leaders to Tribal Elder Leadership 1/1/2026 6/30/2029
check-ins. foster collaboration and
mutual support.
161 Page 76

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Accomplishment or Update

b

Work to recruit an
Advisory Council
member that represents
Tribal Elder programs at
Council meetings.

Program Director

7/1/2025

12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Updat

Cc

Participate in at least one
Tribal Elder program
events and initiative
annually to build trust
and engagement.

All OCWCOG Staff

7/1/2025

Annually
through
6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

d

Work at quarterly check
ins to identify
opportunities for
resource sharing and
joint efforts such as grant
writing in supporting
Tribal Elders.

Program Director, Manager and
Tribal Elder Program Leadership

1/1/2026

6/303/2029

Accomplishment or Update

162

Page 77

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area - Native American Elders
Goal #4: Support Tribe with Adult Protective Services Programming

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
. Enhance APS | 5 T Collaborate with the
ggneril_l 4 Siletz Tribal Navigator
education an and Health Clinic to
reporting for develop and deliver APS APS Program Manager 1/1/2026 6/30/2026
elders education tailored to
through elders.
strategic Accomplishment or Update
partnerships.
b | Conduct regular training
sessions to inform
elders and caregivers | \pg program Manager 6/30/2026 6/30/2029

about reporting
processes and available
resources

Accomplishment or Update

¢ | Create and distribute
culturally appropriate
educational materials

that outline APS APS Program Manager 1/1/2027 6/30/2027
services and how to
access them.

Accomplishment or Update

163 Page 78
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




C.7 — Financial Wellness

Economic stability is a critical Social Determinant of Health (SDOH), meaning it plays a
significant role in shaping an individual’s health and quality of life. A stable income is
essential for securing the goods and services needed for a healthy life, including access
to medications and medical care, nutrition, and housing.

According to the National Council on Aging, more than 25 million Americans aged 60 and
older live at or below 250% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL), which equals $29,425
annually for a single person. The National Council on Disability further reports that people
with disabilities experience poverty at more than double the rate of those without
disabilities. These groups face substantial challenges, including rising housing costs,
healthcare expenses, food insecurity, limited access to transportation, and shrinking
savings. For older adults and individuals with disabilities above the poverty line, a single
life crisis can quickly turn current hardships into long-term struggles.

Approximately, 12.2% of Oregon residents live at or below the Federal Poverty Level
(Oregon Health Authority) of $15,060 for 2024. While some areas, like Northwest
Portland, have lower poverty rates (around 9.9%), other rural regions, such as Blodgett-
Eddyville in OCWCOG'’s service area, have much higher rates, with 22%-27% of
residents falling into this income bracket. Unfortunately, many communities within the
OCWCOG region face higher poverty rates than the state average, with rural areas
experiencing the greatest disparities. These underserved communities will continue to be
a central focus of our outreach efforts over the next four years.

Programs That Support Financial Wellness

OCWCOG is dedicated to supporting financial wellness through various programs,
including Medicaid, SNAP, and Medicare Savings Programs (MSP). These initiatives help
low-income individuals and families meet their basic health and nutritional needs while
improving their overall financial well-being. One of our key objectives is to reduce the
barriers that prevent people from accessing these critical services, which can often be
complex and difficult to navigate.

In addition to these core programs, OCWCOG sponsors the Money Management
Program (MMP) and Stand By Me ($BM), which focus on financial education and
empowerment. These programs provide individuals and families with the tools they need
to achieve financial wellness at every stage of life. AmeriCorps Seniors plays a key role
in financial wellness providing insurance counseling for low-income seniors through the
Senior Health Insurance Benefits Advisor (SHIBA) program and providing stipends for
seniors who volunteer their time to serve their communities.

Over the next four years, we aim to expand and improve these programs to make an even
greater impact in the communities we serve with targeted goals around supporting older
adults and people with disabilities in navigating SNAP and Medical program applications,

164 Page 79
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



increasing the number of people served by the Money Management Program, and
expanding the reach of Stand By Me to more participants.

Effects on Regional Economic Health

The financial health of individual residents is closely linked to the overall economic health
of the region. OCWCOG’s Community and Economic Development Department works in
partnership with local stakeholders and governments to improve the financial wellness of
communities within our service area. This includes initiatives like the Business Lending
program. Additional information on these efforts can be found in the Comprehensive
Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) available on the OCWCOG Community and
Economic Development website.

Affordable Accessible Housing

Addressing the issue of affordable housing is a critical aspect of financial wellness.
Lincoln County has faced an ongoing housing shortage, worsened by the 2020 wildfires
that destroyed 293 homes in northern Lincoln County. This shortage disproportionately
affects older adults and people with disabilities, many of whom live on fixed incomes. Not
only do they struggle to find accessible and affordable housing, but the lack of affordable
housing also has impacts on the caregiving workforce. Many care providers and support
staff are unable to live in the area due to high housing costs, which further compounds
the challenges in accessing in-home care and long-term care facilities.

Recent data shows that a growing number of people experiencing homelessness are over
the age of 60. According to the National Alliance to End Homelessness, older adults are
one of the fastest-growing segments within the homeless population. Homeless shelters
often struggle to meet the unique needs of older adults and individuals with disabilities
due to a lack of accessibility, specialized medical care, and appropriate support services.
Many shelters are not equipped with mobility-friendly facilities, such as wheelchair-
accessible restrooms and beds, making them difficult to navigate for those with physical
limitations. Additionally, shelters may not provide necessary accommodations for chronic
health conditions, cognitive impairments, or personal care assistance, leaving older and
disabled individuals vulnerable to neglect or worsening health conditions. The absence
of tailored resources and trained staff further exacerbates these challenges, rendering
traditional shelter environments inadequate for those requiring specialized care.

Solving the housing crisis in Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties will require collaboration
among multiple agencies. As part of this effort, OCWCOG has set goals in this Area Plan
to continue working closely with housing-focused organizations, such as Community
Services Consortium, DevNW, the Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Housing Authorities, NW
Coastal Housing and local homelessness advocates and shelters. Specifically, OCWCOG
SDS’s work with these groups is to focus on the older adult and disabled community
members which are affected by these housing issues.

165 Page 80
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Focus Area - Financial Wellness
Goals #1: Support Consumers in Accessing Benefits

Measurable
Objectives

. Provide
benefit
application
assistance.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

Create a job description
and recruit LTSS Benefit
Assistance Coordinator.

Program Manager

9/1/2025

12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Upda

te

b

Provide training on the
LTSS application
process to ensure
coordinators can
effectively assist
applicants with complex
cases.

Program Supervisor and Training
Unit

1/1/2026

6/30/2026

Accomplishment or Update

Cc

Establish a structured
support system for
coordinators to track
data, progress, and
address challenges in
application completion.

Program Supervisor and Manager

7/1/2026

12/31/2026

Accomplishment or Update

166

Page 81

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area - Financial Wellness
Goal #2: Improve and Expand Training

Measurable
Objectives

. Empowering
seniors with
financial
coaching.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date

End Date

Design and schedule at
least 2 interactive
workshops annually
tailored to seniors,
focusing on providing
the knowledge and tools
needed to respond
effectively to urgent or
unexpected decisions
related to health,
finances, housing, or
legal matters.

Program Manager

1/1/2026

12/31/2028

Accomplishment or Update

b

Collaborate with experts
in elder law, healthcare,
and financial planning to
provide relevant
workshop topics.

Program Manager

9/1/2025

6/30/2028

Accomplishment or Update

Cc

Gather feedback from
participants to refine and
improve future
workshops.

Program Manager

3/1/2026

3/1/2029

Accomplishment or Update

167

Page 82

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Measurable | a | Develop specialized
Objectives training sessions for staff
focc;Jsed on '.de”ft.'fy'”g. | Program Manager 7/1/2026 12/31/2026
2. Increase an p.revlentlng inancia
APS/CM staff exploitation among
training on vulnerable adults.
financial Accomplishment or Update
exploitation.
b | Incorporate real-world
case studies and best :
oractices into training QZﬁaS‘éfe”'sor and Program 1/1/2026 6/30/2026
materials to enhance 9
staff preparedness.
Accomplishment or Update
c | Establish ongoing
training schedule to keep | APS Program Supervisor and 1/1/2027 Onaoin
staff updated on Trainer going
emerging scams.
Accomplishment or Update
Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
3.Strengthen a | Develop and Distribute
scam Educational Materials —
awareness and Create accessible
prevention for brochures, digital
older adults and content, and videos APS Trainer and Supervisor 7/1/2026 Annual update

individuals with
disabilities.

outlining common
scams, warning signs,
and prevention
strategies tailored to
older adults and

168

Page 83
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




individuals with
disabilities.

Accomplishment or Update

b

Integrate Scam
Awareness into Routine
Services — Ensure that
case managers,
caregivers, and service
providers include scam
education as part of their
interactions with clients,
incorporating scam
alerts into regular
communication.

Program Managers

7/1/2026

6/30/2027

Accomplishment or Update

Cc

Strengthen Partnerships
for Scam Prevention —
Annual Roundtable to
Collaborate with
financial institutions, law
enforcement, and
advocacy groups to
provide coordinated
support, offer reporting
resources, and enhance
protections for those at
risk of financial
exploitation.

Program Manager and Director

3/1/2026

Ongoing

Accomplishment or Update

169

Page 84

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area - Financial Wellness
Goal #3: Promote Affordable and Accessible Housing in the Region

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
1. Expand a | Arrange
awareness of Advocate/Council visits
housing to other State AAAs that .
issues have had success Program Director 1/1/2026 6/30/2026
;%esc'f'c to supporting accessible
housing initiatives.
consumers _
and support | Accomplishment or Update
advocacy.
b | Advocate for Policy and
Funding Support —
Collaborate with local
anfj state goverln.ments Program D|rector_and Issues and 1/1/2026 6/30/2029
to influence policies and | Advocacy Committee
secure funding for
affordable, accessible
housing initiatives.
Accomplishment or Update
c | Seek representation
from Housing Authority
to be an Advisory Program Director 7/1/2025 12/31/2025
Council member or have
SDS staff on Housing
Authority Commissions.
Accomplishment or Update
170 Page 85

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
2. Support a | Host a shelter provider
shelter event once every two
P:ﬁVideth ta“d years where information
others tha about SDS programs is | Program Manager, Director, and
work with provided and attendees Cougncils ) 9/1/2025 9/31/2028
2::2?':::"5 problem solve barriers to
and people service and gaps in
with support.
disabilities. Accomplishment or Update
b | Continue to support
programming for
agencies like
Community Services
Consortium or the
Corvallis Daytime Drop- :
In Center who work with Program Director 1/1/2026 6/30/2029
unhoused community
members who are
seniors or disabled.
Schedule visit 2 times
each year.
Accomplishment or Update
171 Page 86

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




C.8 — EMERGENCY PLANNING AND RESPONSE
Increasing Numbers of Emergency Events

In recent years, OCWCOG’s three-county region has faced a troubling increase in
weather-related emergencies, including freezing temperatures, wildfires, flooding, and
landslides. In August 2020, the Beachie Creek Fire burned approximately 50,000 acres
in Linn County and 8,000 acres in Benton County, causing widespread destruction to
homes, infrastructure, and natural landscapes. Recovery efforts have been ongoing as
these communities work to rebuild. Similarly, in February 2021, record-breaking freezing
temperatures led to power outages and hazardous road conditions. Flooding events in
2020 and 2022 swelled rivers, triggered landslides, and damaged infrastructure,
prompting evacuations in flood-prone areas such as the Alsea River corridor. Landslides,
exacerbated by heavy rains, have become increasingly common in the steep terrain of
the Coast Range. These escalating weather events highlight the urgent need for improved
preparedness and resilience efforts.

Emergency Planning for the Populations We Serve

Emergency planning is especially critical for agencies serving older adults and people
with disabilities, as these populations face higher risks during disasters due to factors
such as limited transportation access, reliance on medications or medical equipment, and
difficulty evacuating or seeking shelter. For example, older adults with chronic health
conditions may struggle to evacuate or manage without consistent care, while people with
disabilities may require specialized assistance or accessible evacuation routes that are
not always available.

The geographic spread of Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties adds further challenges.
Rural and suburban areas may experience delayed emergency response times and
limited resources, particularly in remote regions. With emergency services stretched thin,
agencies must develop robust local emergency plans tailored to the needs of these
populations. Effective communication is also crucial, as many older adults and individuals
with disabilities rely on assistive devices or have sensory impairments that may hinder
their ability to receive warnings.

Creating an up-to-date comprehensive emergency preparedness plan will allow
OCWCOG to coordinate resources, disseminate vital information, and ensure that
vulnerable individuals are not left behind.

Coordination and Agreements Around Emergency Response

OCWCOG will coordinate with emergency management agencies with all three counties
and the Tribe by establishing clear communication channels and building strong
partnerships with emergency response personnel. This includes developing joint
emergency response plans, participating in cross-training and preparedness exercises,
and ensuring culturally sensitive approaches. OCWCOG will also share resources, such

172 Page 87
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



as emergency preparedness materials and logistical support, while engaging in regular
meetings to discuss strategies, assess needs, and improve coordination.

OCWCOG’s management will maintain ongoing relationships with local emergency
managers, law enforcement, fire departments and emergency responders. OCWCOG will
participate in local response exercises and planning. These planning exercises should
include broad discussions regarding the vulnerable populations we serve and discuss
certain high-risk populations that would require specialized response(s) by OCWCOG
and emergency responders. When appropriate, department maintained lists of high-risk
consumers should be shared with emergency responders so appropriate triage can occur
in the response activities. In the case of an event that triggers the activation of the
OCWCOG SDS Emergency Response Plan, the local Manager will connect with the local
identified Emergency Operations Commander. At a minimum, the following will be
discussed/communicated with the Emergency Operations Center (EOC):
e Current situations of agency operations, including agency resources available to
help local recovery activities
e Shared list of high-risk consumers and planned actions for follow-up and check-in
e Any facility issues necessitating assistance or help from the Emergency
Operations Center
e Date/Time of next update
e Regular updates and communication with the local EOC will be the responsibility
of the onsite manager or OCWCOG’s Communication Officer Officer.

After the Disaster

Proactive emergency planning also reduces the long-term impact of disasters on older
adults and people with disabilities. Disruptions caused by disasters can exacerbate
existing health conditions, increase the risk of injury or death, and cut off access to
essential services. By prioritizing preparedness, OCWCOG can help maintain continuity
of care and minimize long-term health complications for these populations.

In summary, emergency preparedness is essential to safeguarding the health, safety, and
dignity of older adults and individuals with disabilities in Linn, Benton, and Lincoln
Counties. OCWCOG plays a vital role in coordinating resources, ensuring accessibility,
and developing comprehensive plans tailored to their needs. Proper planning not only
enhances emergency response efforts but also helps maintain the quality of life for
vulnerable individuals before, during, and after a crisis.

173 Page 88
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C



Focus Area — Emergency Planning and Response
Goal #1: Prepare the Department for Serving People in a Time of Crisis

Measurable
Objectives

. Finalize a

comprehensive
emergency
preparedness
plan for the
department.

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date End Date

Assess risks and
identify essential
services.

Program Managers and Director

7/1/2025 12/31/2025

Accomplishment or Update

b

Develop and document
clear Emergency
Response Protocols
that tie to agency
COOP (Continuity of
Operations Plan).

Program Director and Program
Managers

1/1/2026 12/31/2026

Accomplishment or Update

Cc

Coordinate with local
and state emergency —
find one contact in
each county and meet
quarterly.

Program Director

1/1/2026 6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

d

Train staff and conduct
emergency drills
annually.

Program Director

7/1/2026 Annually

Accomplishment or Update

e

Review, test, and
update the plan when
needed and in
December.

Program Managers and Program
Director

174

12/1/2025 6/30/2029

Page 89

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Accomplishment or Update

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
. Developand |5 T Choose a text or call
|3:c;‘_“_°h :‘“ platform to more easily
efricien communicate with Program Managers and Tech
emergency consumers in areas Services 71112025 12/31/2025
Communication experiencing a
system to disaster.
utilize with Accomplishment or Update
consumers.
b | Testrolloutthrougha | o2 Managers and Staff 1/1/2026 3/31/2026
small pilot.
Accomplishment or Update
C Assesg success of pilot Prog_ram Director and Tech 4/1/2026 4/30/2026
operation. Services
Accomplishment or Update
d | Implement on a larger Program Director, Program 5/1/2026 12/31/2026
scale. Managers and Tech Services
Accomplishment or Update
e | Review after each
emergency and change .
any areas of system Program Director, ngram 5/1/2026 Ongoing
Managers and Tech Services
that were not
successful.
Accomplishment or Update
175 Page 90

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area - Emergency Planning and Response
Goal #2: Provide Resources to Those Most at Risk in Our Communities During a Disaster

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
. Purchase and | 5 | Provide shelf stable
deploy meals to all MOW
emergency consumers includin MOW Team, Case Managers, and .
supplies. case managed andg,]APS APS Staff ° 7/1/2025 Ongoing
consumers labeled as
high risk.
Accomplishment or Update
b | Provide emergency
bags to high-risk
consumers including Case Managers and APS Staff 7/1/12025 Ongoing
those in very remote
locations.
Accomplishment or Update
Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
2. Create a | Grant write for ongoing
sustainable funding to restock Program Manager 7/1/2025 6/30/2029
funding to supplies when needed.
continueto | Accomplishment or Update
provide
resources.

Focus Area - Emergency Planning and Response
Goal #3: Support Training in Emergency Preparedness Tailored to the Population We Serve

Measurable
Objectives

Key Tasks

Lead Position & Entity

Timeframe for 2025-2029
(by Month & Year)

Start Date | End Date

176

Page 91
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




. Provide

training to our
staff and the
community at
large.

Complete an Emergency
Preparedness Month
“‘push” every September,
developing training
materials and outreach
materials specifically
tailored to the special
needs of older adults
and people with
disabilities.

Program Managers and
Program Director

7/1/2025

Annually

Accomplishment or Update

b

Provide created
materials to consumers,
facilities and the public
in our region.

Facilities and the public in our
region

9/1/2025

9/30/2028

Accomplishment or Update

C

Provide training on go
bags to consumers
showing them how to
customize their bag for
their specific needs.

Local Emergency Preparedness
Partners

1/1/2026

6/30/2029

Accomplishment or Update

d

Provide at least one
training session every
two years to staff on how
to have their family and
themselves be better
prepared for an
emergency.

Emergency Preparedness Partners

September 2026

September 2028

Accomplishment or Update

177

Page 92

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Focus Area - Emergency Planning and Response
Goal #4: Provide Post Disaster Support

Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
1. Assess Start Date End Date
department | 5 [ Complete after-action
emergency review after any wide Leadership Team 9/1/2025 Ongoing
response spread disaster.
systems to | Accomplishment or Update
improve
response. b | Assess what went well,
what we need to do
better next time, and Leadership Team 9/1/2025 Ongoing
what kind of follow-up is
needed.
Accomplishment or Update
c | Complete any follow up
actions identified and
update and plans or Leadership Team 9/1/2025 Ongoing
tools based on
assessment.
Accomplishment or Update
Measurable Timeframe for 2025-2029
Objectives Key Tasks Lead Position & Entity (by Month & Year)
Start Date End Date
. Provide post | 5 | Work with local supports
trauma care and resources to
::)t: av:jnde 2;?:?; Fs)?asgfiﬁautz?de d Program Director 7/1/2025 Ongoing
regional during trauma inducing
emergencies. events.
Accomplishment or Update
178 Page 93

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Work with the Older
Adults Behavioral
Initiative (OABHI)
contractors within our
region to support
consumers experiencing
loss or trauma post
disaster.

Program Director

7/1/12025

Ongoing

Accomplishment or Update

Cc

Work with emergency
personnel to support
boots on the ground
efforts of disaster
recovery as possible.

Program Director

7/1/12025

Ongoing

Accomplishment or Update

179

Page 94

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section C




Section D: OPI Services and Method of Service Delivery

D. 1 — ADMINISTRATION OF OREGON PROJECT INDEPENDENCE (OPI)

The Oregon Project Independence program provides services and assistance to
residents who are between the ages of 19 and 59 with a disability, 60 years or older, or
under 60 years and diagnosed as having Alzheimer’s disease. Demographic information
about all OPI consumers is entered into Oregon ACCESS (OA).

OPI participants can utilize a suite of services and supports aimed at allowing them to live
in their home as independently and safely for as long as possible. These services may
include case management, personal care, home care, adult day care services, home
delivered meals, assistive technology, and chore services.

Initial screenings are conducted by a Resource Specialist in the ADRC call center who
gathers information about the individual or family’s needs and provides referral to internal
OCWCOG programs as well as external community resources. Consumers and their
families who are not able to or do not want to apply for Medicaid but require more
information about resources, benefits, and long-term care services are referred to Option
Counselors.

Options Counselors make phone contact with potential consumers and/or family
members within 5-10 business days of receiving a referral to schedule a home visit and
assessment. During the visit Options Counselors take a deeper dive into the needs and
desires of the person they are working with and share a wide breadth of programs and
resources. If OPI is decided to be the best fit for the individual’s specific needs the case
managers perform a functional assessment to determine the participant’s ability to
perform Activities of Daily Living (ADL). The assessment is based on observation and a
consumer interview. The assessment tool then generates a Service Priority Level (SPL)
which is the basis of program eligibility. Consumers with priority levels 1-15 are currently
served under OPl in OCWCOG’s service area.

Once eligible, the consumer plays an active role in determining how many hours per
week/month they will need in the areas of personal care, home maker services, and chore
services to remain independent in their own home. Options of using a Home Care Worker
through the Client Employed Provider (CEP) program versus the option of using an in-
home care agency are discussed as well as the benefits and costs of each option. Other
community resources and supports that will augment the service hours are provided to
develop a comprehensive support system. The Case Manager will complete a service
plan in OA and process the plan through the appropriate channels for referral and
payment of services.

OPI funds are limited. They are intended to supplement, rather than replace, existing
support systems. These services provide valuable assistance, helping consumers
maintain their independence. However, due to funding constraints, OPI services are not
designed to fully address a consumer's complete care needs. Traditionally, case
managers have worked to keep monthly service costs at around $400 per consumer per

180 Page 95
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section D



month with an ability to increase the number with Program Manager approval for short
term scenarios, but living within these boundaries has been harder over the last several
years with the increased cost of providing the services. The lack of clarity over future OPI
Classic budget and knowing there will be significant cuts to that funding makes setting a
monthly service amount impossible at this time.

Case Managers follow up with consumers within three to six months of the initial needs
assessment to make sure that the plan is working or adjusted as needed and a
reassessment is done annually to review and reevaluate current services. In addition,
consumers can always ask for a reassessment because of a change in condition.

Many consumers enter the Long-Term Services and Supports system through referrals
from partner agencies and the local healthcare system when they have experienced a
healthcare crisis, or their current supports are no longer adequate. Individuals with the
greatest risk factors often enter the system through APS. APS workers refer at-risk
consumers to the ADRC Call Center and Options Counselors to assess for community
resources and services. These cases are often a priority and OPI is regularly used to
stabilize the situation. All other consumers are assessed on a first-come, first served
basis. Funding is used to assist as many high-risk consumers as possible.

When consumers are determined ineligible at their initial assessment or during their
annual review, or if they are going to experience a reduction or closure, the Case Manager
will have a conversation to inform the consumer of the action prior to sending out any
paperwork. After the conversation, the Case Manager will send a written notice to the
consumer along with a copy of the formal complaint process and information on a
consumer’s right to grieve adverse eligibility or service determinations. The Program
Manager will be made aware of any denials, reduction, or terminations of services prior
to the notice(s) being sent, as the complaint process directs consumers to the local
Program Manager with questions or concerns (see attached Appendix G, H, | for forms
and processes regarding OPI). The OPI Case Manager will provide the consumer with
information about other available community resources that may meet their ongoing need
for assistance.

Atinitial enrollment, the Case Manager informs the consumer of the grievance procedure,
they are provided a copy of the Reduction/Closure Grievance Policy. In addition, OPI
brochures are given to all new consumers, which provides them of their right to file a
complaint and the office contact information.

When the case is opened, the consumer is sent the Service Agreement form confirming
the start of the OPI service. If housekeeping or personal care services are provided
through an in-home care agency, the Case Manager sends a copy of the consumer
service plan to the agency contractor to begin service and to inform them of the
percentage to be billed to the consumer.

OPlis a program in which some consumers may have a cost share for services rendered.
Fees for Home Care and Personal Care services are based on the fee schedule published

181 Page 96
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section D



by the State of Oregon’s Department of Human Services. Each consumer receives a fee
determination form outlining their fee calculation and maximum monthly payment.
OCWCOG fiscal staff issue monthly statements to all OPI consumers with pay-ins.
Collected fees are deposited into OCWCOG’s OPI Program Income account. These
funds are exclusively allocated to support the OPI program. If a consumer regularly does
not pay their monthly fee the case manager and program manager will staff the case and
decide whether to waive the fee or proceed with closing the case for nonpayment.

A minimum one-time fee of $25.00 is required for OPI consumers whose income does
not mandate a cost share under the sliding fee schedule. Consumers are encouraged to
contribute toward the cost of services as outlined in the OPI regulations. However, the
$25 fee can be waived with permission from a manager and failure to pay fees will not
result in a denial of services.

OCWCOG has never had a waitlist for OPI services. If a waitlist is ever required by the
agency, consumers on the OPI waitlist would be prioritized for services based on their
Risk Assessment Score and the length of time they have been on the waitlist. The Risk
Assessment score is determined by using the Department approved Risk Assessment
Toll that takes into consideration the individual's financial, physical, functional, medical,
and social service needs. OCWCOG’s waitlist would be sorted first by Risk Assessment
Score, to prioritize those with the greatest need, followed by waitlist duration.

Service providers are monitored through reporting requirements determined in the
contract’s scope of work. Contract agencies for adult day services and home-delivered
meals are monitored biannually through site visits. Site visits may entail the review of
case files, employee records and practices, fiscal practices, and discussion of any
findings or issues that may occur. All contract agencies are monitored through monthly
fiscal audits of billings and unit reporting.

Cost of Authorized Services per Unit

Service Type Provider Rate

Home Care

Addus Health Care | $32.00
New Horizons $36.24
Home Care Worker | $24.83 - $26.77

Personal Care

New Horizons $36.24
Addus Health Care $32.00
Home Care Worker | $24.83 - $26.77

Home Delivered Meals OCWCOG MOW $9.54

182 Page 97
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section D



Adult Day Services Grace Center $92.00 Full Day
$70.40 Half Day

Assistive Technology Determined on a case-by-case
basis

Chore Services Determined on a case-by-case
basis

Case Management OCWCOG $ 60.00 hr.

Oregon Project Independence Medicaid (OPI-M)

Aging and People with Disabilities (APD) is expanding the Oregon Project Independence
(OPI) Program by leveraging Medicaid funds through the Oregon Project Independence-
Medicaid (OPI-M) demonstration project, which launched in June 2024. Full
implementation is anticipated by mid-2025. During this demonstration phase, OCWCOG
will continue administering the current OPl and OPI Pilot programs while gradually
integrating OPI-M. This new initiative will offer enhanced in-home caregiver hours and
additional support services for Medicaid Long -Term Services and Supports (LTSS)
populations, utilizing both state and federal funding.

After the demonstration project concludes program details are finalized, OPI-M will be
incorporated into the next OCWCOG Area Plan. It's not clear what the full effect of
launching OPI-M will have on the Classic OPI program, any changes regarding this will
also be addressed in future Area Plan updates.

183 Page 98
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Section D



Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments

Executive Director

y A A 4

General Administration Senior, I?lsablllty, and C_ommunlty Community and E_conomic
Services Program Director Development Director
Finance Director A Y R Albany Area
> Senior and Community Metopolitan
Disability Program Services Program Planning Manager
Managers Manager
—» Contracts .
Benton County CI\: r;lallls I;.L:rea
—> —|  Veterans Service | e.ropc[;.l ant
Medicaid Program anning Director
| Facilities Program
AmeriCorps Seniors |
Programs: CED Planner
. RSVP
—>
. || Older :m:rlcans SHIBA
> Technologies c Foster Grandparent
Director Senior Companion
” Ride Line Brokerage
State Contracts CSP Special
»| Human Resources ERC Contracts:
Manager —| Money Management L»{ Behavioral Activation
ADRC — No Wrong Door Stand By Me - Oregon .
VISTA > Loan Officer
184 Page 99

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix A



Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments - Senior & Disability Services Organization Chart

Program Director

Senior & Disability Services (SDS) &
Community Services Programs (CSP)

SDS Program Manager

SDS Program Manager

I

Case
Management
Supervisors (4)

SDS Program Manager

\4

Case
Managers (50)

\ 4

Program Support
Supervisor (1)

Support Staff
(14)

A\ 4

Adult Protective
Services
Supervisors (3)

Community Services
Programs Manager

Meals on Wheels

APS Staff (19)

> Operations
Supervisor

Veterans Service
Officers (2)

Meals on Wheels

AFH Licensors (2)

Eligibility
Supervisors (2)

Eligibility
Specialists
(26)

Program Supervisor

> Administrative
Supervisor

Meal Site
Managers
(10)

AmeriCorps
Seniors Programs:
RSVP

SHIBA

Foster Grandparent
Senior Companion

»| Trainers (4)

Older Americans
Act & Misc.
Programs:
OMMP

ERC

ADRC

OAA CM’s

185

CSP Special
Contracts:
Behavioral Activation
Stand By Me - Oregon
VISTA

Page 100

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix A



2024-2025 OCWCOG

Senior Services Advisory Council
(SSAC)

BENTON COUNTY

Lee Strandberg Terri Fackrell Vice Chair Holly Bollman
Corvallis, OR 97330 Corvallis, OR 97330 Corvallis, OR 97333
[Mimi Chen

Adair Village, OR 97330

LINCOLN COUNTY

Bill Turner
Waldport, OR 97394

LINN COUNTY

Mitzi Naucler, Chair Kay McDonald
Albany, OR 97322 Eugene, OR 97402

*

(*indicates Executive Committee)

Total number age 60 or over = 3

Total number minority = 1

Total number rural = 2

Total number family caregiver/older relative caregiver = 0
Total number self-identifying as a person with a disability = 0

186 Page 101
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix B



2024-2025 OCWCOG

Disability Services Advisory Council

(DSAC)
BENTON COUNTY

* *

Allison Hobgood, Vice Chair Suzanne Lazaro

Corvallis, OR 97330 Corvallis, OR
97330

LINCOLN COUNTY

*

Jan Molnar-Fitzgerald Chair Michelle Giammona
[Otis, OR 97368 Newport, OR 97365

LINN COUNTY
Richard Montgomery, Gena Sellers
Corvallis, OR 97330 Albany, OR 97322

(*indicates Executive Committee)

Total number age 60 or over = 3

Total number minority =0

Total number rural = 2

Total number family caregiver/older relative caregiver = 1
Total number self-identifying as a person with a disability = 1

187 Page 102
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix B



2025 OCWCOG

Board of Directors

BENTON COUNTY

*Charles Maughan

*Pat Malone (CHAIR) Vacant

Commissioner, Benton County Adair Village
Term Ends:

Mayor, Corvallis
Term Ends:

Jeanni Cuthberson Christopher McMorran
City of Monroe Mayor, Philomath
Term Ends: Term Ends:

LINCOLN COUNTY

Bonnie Peterson
*Claire Hall (VICE-CHAIR) Member, Confederated Tribes Debie Poland
Commissioner, Lincoln County of Siletz Indians Councilor, City of Depoe Bay
Term Ends: Term Ends: Term Ends:
Gil Sylvia
Kevin Hohnbaum Jan Kaplin Commissioner, Port of
Councilor, Lincoln City Mayor, Newport Newport
Term Ends: Term Ends: Term Ends:
*Rick Booth
Vacant Rod Cross Councilor, City of Waldport
City of Siletz Mayor, Toledo Term Ends:
Term Ends:
Vacant
City of Yachats
(*indicates Executive Committee)

188 Page 103
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix B



LINN COUNTY

*Sherrie Sprenger (Treasurer) *Alex Johnson, Il Vacant
Commissioner, Linn County Mayor, Albany Mayor, Brownsville
Term Ends: Term Ends:
Scott Cowan Mike Caughey Vacant
Mayor, City of Halsey Councilor, City of Harrisburg ~ Councilor, City of Lebanon
Term Ends: Term Ends:
Jeremy Romer Joseph Parsons Joshua Thorstad
Councilor, Millersburg Councilor, Sodaville Councilor, Sweet Home
Term Ends: Term Ends: Term Ends:
Loel Trulove Jr.
Councilor, Tangent
Term Ends:

(*indicates Executive Committee)

189 Page 104
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix B



Appendix C — Public Planning Process

The development of the OCWCOG Area Plan was a collaborative process that involved
gaining community input in a variety of ways and from multiple sectors across the region.
Listening sessions to get the perspective of residents and stakeholders, surveys,
roundtables, Council member and volunteer feedback, and information from line staff
doing the “boots on the ground” work, were all important parts of assessing the needs,
barriers, and gaps facing older adults and people with disabilities.

Community Partner Surveys - To gather input from community partners, a survey was
created and distributed electronically. Surveys were sent in batches, one batch to
community partners who work with shared consumers, and the other batches to three
groups — those that serve Latino Community members, those that serve LGBTQ
community members, and those that serve Tribal community members. All surveys
provided valuable suggestions for addressing service gaps and barriers faced by older
adults and people with disabilities in our community. The surveys sent to agencies that
serve minority communities focused specifically on understanding the main barriers or
issues those populations face when accessing services and benefits we manage. The
data collected also helped assess the level of communication between OCWCOG and
our community partners regarding services.

See attached Appendix C-1: Community Partner Survey language example.

Public Listening Sessions - Senior and Disability Services conducted three public listening
sessions in Linn, Benton, and Lincoln counties and one virtual listening session to
introduce recommendations for the 25-29 Area Plan focus areas to the community. E-
invites, Facebook announcements and flyers were distributed in our tri-county service
areas. The dates of these meetings were: Linn County January 17", Benton County
January 24", Lincoln January 27, Virtual February 27t.

See attached Appendix C-2: Flyer — for information shared about listening sessions.

190 Page 105
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix C



Community Partner Agency Survey

A priority for Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments over the next four years is to be more inclusive, engaged
with, and supportive of our community partner agencies who work with older adults, people with disabilities, and their
caregivers. As a partner agency we work with frequently, your input on how we could better support this population is
important. Please take a few minutes to fill out this short survey. Your time is greatly appreciated.

1. What is the name of the organization that you are answering for?

2. How often do you work/communicate with Senior and Disability Services about the needs of
an older adult or person with disability you are trying to find resources for?

O nDaily
O Weekly

Monthly

Never

O
O Rarely
O

3. Overall, how satisfied are you with the services you receive when you work/communicate with
our agency?

O Very satisfied
O Somewhat satisfied
Neutral

Very dissatisfied

O
O Somewhat dissatisfied
O

4. What could we have done to improve your experience?

191 Page 106
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix C



5. Do you think our organization effectively reaches older adults and people with disabilities in
need?

O Yes
O No
O Unsure

6. Do you believe our services meet the needs of the community partners who serve the same
individuals?

O Yes
O No
O Unsure

7. Do you feel knowledgeable about the services we provide?

O Very aware

O Somewhat aware

O Not aware

8. How do you typically learn about our programs and services? (can select multiple answers)

D Social media

D Word of mouth

Email

Events

Information and Referral workers from our agency

Other

O 0 004

9. Are there any resources or information you wish we provided that could enhance the work
you do?

192 Page 107
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix C



10. What are the issues facing older adults and people with disabilities, or services gaps in our
communities, that our agency should focus on over the next four years?

11. What is your name? (optional)

12. What is your email address? (optional)

This content is neither created nor endorsed by Microsoft. The data you submit will be sent to the form owner.

i Microsoft Forms

193 Page 108
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix C



Three opportunities
to attend:

January 17, 2025
1:30-3:30 PM
Albany Public Library
2450 14t Ave SE
Albany, OR 97322

January 24, 2025
1:30-3:30 PM
Corvallis Community
Center- Oak Room
2601 NW Tyler Ave
Corvallis OR 97330

January 27, 2025
1:30-3:30 PM

60+ Activity Center
20 SE 2nd Street
Newport, OR 97365

Light refreshments provided

OREGON CASCADES WEST

Council of
Governments

Senior and Disability Services
wants to hear from YOU!

Join us for an important community
gathering “Listening Session” where we
can learn together, share ideas, and
provide valuable feedback.

Your voice matters!

Why Attend?

* Learn: Discover how we can better
support older adults, people with
disabilities, and their caregivers.

e Share: Offer your thoughts, ideas, and
feedback on how we can improve our
services.

 Collaborate: Connect with community
partners and other consumers who share
your goals and concerns.

Our Commitment

Over the next four years, our agency is
focused on becoming more inclusive,
engaged with, and supportive of older adults,
people with disabilities, and their caregivers,
as well as the agencies that serve them in our
community.

194 Page 109
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix C



Appendix D — Final Update from 2021-2025 Area Plan

Because of the dedicated work of the Oregon Cascades West Council of
Governments staff, advocates, volunteers and leadership, we successfully
accomplished many of the goals and objectives outlined in OCWCOG’s 2021-2025
Area Plan. As part of our preparation for the 2025-2029 Area Plan, SDS is reflecting
on those accomplishments as well as identifying areas where improvement could
have been made, or we fell short of our goals. Thank you to the members of
OCWCOG’s Senior and Disability Advisory Councils who have been constant
advocates and cheerleaders during the very challenging last four years. Below are
some highlights of the work we have done in each of the Plan Focus Areas.

Information and Referral - ADRC Services

e Tabling events which came to a halt in the early years of the pandemic are back
in full swing in our region with staff on average going to 2-3 such activities
monthly.

e ADRC staff man these events taking brochures and providing content on how
to access information and Referral services.

e Many of these activities were aimed at reaching underserved communities and
populations such as Spanish Speakers (Festival Latino), LGBTQ people
(PRIDE Festivals), and in rural parts of the region.

e Additionally, we continue to share ADRC information with different community
groups across the three counties.

e We continued to advertise the ADRC over the radio, in print, and through social
media.

e The ADRC database is up to date with 100% of all 305 listings updated within
the last 12 months. Currently 1.3% (4 listings) need to be renewed. All of the
listings that need to be renewed are less than 1 month old.

o We are fully staffed with call center agents and now have 5 full-time call takers.

e Two out of 5 ADRC staff have become Inform USA certified with the other 3
actively preparing for the test.

e A virtual assistance station was set up in our Corvallis office so people who
walk into that location can talk to an ADRC agent virtually if that is their
preference rather than driving to Albany or calling.

e OCWCOG completed the CSSU assigned self-monitoring process related to
ADRC work in early 2024 and used it to assess ways to improve ADRC
functions moving forward.

195 Page 110
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix D



e We continue to try to figure out how to best use the No Wrong Door/ADRC
contract to support Information and Referral and capture as many Federal
Match dollars as possible.

Elder Rights and Legal Assistance

e The increased number of calls received by the APS screeners is a sign of the
success of the team in meeting the goal of increasing outreach and bringing
more awareness about abuse and neglect to our communities.

e We continue to contract with Legal Aid to support services for older adults and
people with disabilities in our counties. At an average rate of about 12% per
year of our allocated I1IB funding, we spend well over the 3% mandated by the
Older Americans Act.

e Self-monitoring of our Legal Services Programming was completed in early
2025.

e Legal Aid staff interacts with COG staff regularly providing information about
their program and our staff are excited to better understand the resource.

e A Legal Aid attorney is a member of our Advisory Council and is very active in
providing insight and support that shapes COG programming.

e APS recruitment and retention continues to be a struggle meaning our
bandwidth for supporting expanded elder justice initiatives has been difficult to
come by. We do continue to hope that we can do more locally around Elder
Justice efforts such as scam prevention moving forward.

e APS staff attend and are active participants in multidisciplinary teams in all
three counties.

e Despite a 19% increase in the number of calls reporting abuse and neglect,
and a 41% increase in facility investigations over the last 4 years, investigations
continue to happen in a thorough and timely way, with 99% of reports being
submitted within State required timelines.

Caregiver Resources

For Unpaid Caregivers:

e With the ending of public health restrictions, Family Caregiver Program staff
are excited to be out in the community again, attending events aimed at
supporting unpaid caregivers.

196 Page 111
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix D



e The team completed outreach to all FCG participants reminding them of funds
available and dispersed stipend funds to caregivers in the region.

e A survey of family caregiver participants is being developed to assess the
success of the program and set goals for the next Area Plan.

e Funds were provided to local agencies to teach Powerful Tools for Caregiver
and Savvy Caregiver class sessions across the three counties.

e Caregiver funds were provided to Tribal caregivers to go to the Native Caring
Conference held in April 2023.

For paid care providers:

e A second Employer Resource Connection Staff was hired at the agency. These
positions help support consumers who utilize Home Care Workers (HCW) to
meet their care needs, the skills to recruit, interview, hire, train, and potentially
terminate their care providers.

e A*“Application and Renewal Specialist” position has been created within our In-
Home Assistant team allowing Home Care Workers to have one point of
contact to access the status of their application or receive specialized support
related to the application process.

e Weekly “Home Care Worker Workshops” have been started in all three offices
aimed at supporting Home Care Workers in accessing benefits and
troubleshooting common errors when claiming time or mileage.

e Information about applying to be a HCW were supplied at all hiring events.

Health Promotion

e Over the last four years we have continued to provide financial support for
several Evidence Based Health Promotion Programs operated by a variety of
community partners across the three-county region.

e Requests for proposals were sought that supported underserved communities

including those living in rural communities, unhoused, Latino, and Tribal older
adults, non-English speakers, and LGBTQ individuals.

197 Page 112
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix D



e All llID Health Promotion funding was used to directly fund contracts with
providers and the money allocated for programming was all designated to
programming early in the biennium.

e Behavioral Activation class series were offered over the last two years focused
on reducing depression and loneliness by having participants set goals and
becoming more active in their community.

e OCWCOG continues to be an integral part of the Regional Health Education
HUB, a community collaborative which works to streamline referrals to
evidence-based curriculum and make health education programming more
sustainable.

Programs supported by the grants over the last four years were:

Agency
Albany Helping Hands
Albany Parks & Rec
Corvallis Comm Ctr— C3
Corvallis Day Time Drop-In Ctr
Dev NW

Grace Center

Program

Get That Van Moving

Engage, Explore, Connect Seniors

Fit & Strong and Walk With Ease

Senior Ctr. Assistance

Health & Financial Workshops

Financial Assistance & Shower Scholarship
Programs

Bingocize, Geri-Fit, Walk With Ease

Lebanon Senior Center

Lebanon Senior Center

iPad Program

Lumina Hospice

Powerful Tools for Caregivers

Lumina Hospice

Grief Education & Support Program

North End Senior Solutions

Savvy Caregiver, Matter of Balance

Newport 60+ Activity Center

Grand Pads/Hotspots

SHS Health Education Dept.

Tomando Control

Mid-Willamette Family YMCA

Better Bones & Balance

Native American Elders

e SDS continues to be involved and attend Meet and Greet events between Area
Agency on Aging and Title VII staff.

¢ Financial support was provided for Tribal Elder events such as the Elder Days
conference.

e Supporting staff from the Coos, Lower Umpqua, and Siuslaw Tribes in Lane
County in providing food for homebound Elders during the COVID 19 pandemic.

198 Page 113
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix D



¢ We have been working to develop relationships with the staff that lead the Tribal
Elders programs with the Confederated Tribes of the Siletz Indians. This work
has had a lot of stops and starts because of the frequent turnover of Tribal staff,
but we are excited to reestablished contact with the new Elders Coordinator and
have several meetings scheduled over the next couple of months over a variety
of issues.

¢ A dedicated staff that has a long-standing relationship with the Tribe (lifelong
Siletz resident) has become our designated point of contact for questions or
concerns related to our programming and how it serves Tribal Elders.

e OCWCOG staff were able to arrange a connection between Tribal Health Center
staff and the State contracting team. The idea of a Tribal Navigator embedded
with the Tribe was shared. An agreement has been signed, and the position is
being recruited! Success!

¢ OCWCOG was invited to present SDS program information at a meeting of
Tribal Elders.

e Family Caregiver funding was used to support Siletz caregivers who wanted to
attend the Native Caring conference.

o Staff were part of the planning committee for the Tribal Meet and Greet that took
place in Lincoln County last fall and OCWCOG sponsored a participant meal.

e The Siletz Meal site, which had been closed since COVID, experienced several
roadblocks to reopen but now is finally open again for community dining and
MOW delivery.

e Tribal and OCWCOG leadership met to discuss the idea of cooperatively
supporting the Elder Visitor and Senior Companion program. Ongoing talks are
scheduled.

e Gaining a more frequent audience with Tribal Elders remains difficult but
continues to be something we strive for.

Nutrition Services
e Two new program supervisors have been hired to oversee program operations

and administrative work for the Meals on Wheels Program ensuring excellence
and making sure all required program standards are met.

199 Page 114
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix D



The implementation of the Serv Tracker software is complete.

A volunteer recruitment and retention strategy has been developed, which
included developing a volunteer manual, guidelines for training, standards of
accountability, and better onboarding for all new volunteers.

A MOW volunteer survey was completed.

Volunteer appreciation is back on the docket in a more formal way after a hiatus
of several years because of COVID. This coming year we hope to have several
in-person volunteer appreciation events.

An audit of our volunteer database has been completed making sure that all
required steps in bringing on new volunteers have been accomplished including
catching up on formally updating the database for volunteers that have been
with the agency longer term and might have not had updated records.
Specifically, all volunteers have documentation of background checks updated
in the system.

A required RFP was completed with partners Lane Council of Governments and
Northwest Senior and Disability Services to seek a contractor for production of
our food for the MOW program.

The language in the food contract around deliverables were better defined to
hold the contractor to standards for service delivery and quality assurance.

Congregate dining has been reopened in eight of our eleven site locations to
some level, but volunteer shortages, construction issues, and staff coverage
issues have created a need for a slow roll out of congregate dining at some
sites.

The Corvallis Meal Site which was housed at the ELKS lodge in Corvallis has
been moved back to the Corvallis Community Center (C3) where it was housed
before a 2019 remodel of that building.

MOWAA grants were awarded to OCWCOG in support of the MOW Pet Food
program. The funds were used to create outreach videos about the program and
support the purchase of food.

200 Page 115
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix D



e The congregate dining program and MOW pet food program both went through
a major rebranding and naming effort this last year. Now known as Connections
Café and Paws and Claws, both programs have new logos for improved
outreach.

e We were awarded a grant by the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)
to support a reusable container pilot at our Corvallis MOW location.

e ARPA funds of almost $250,000 were secured to support infrastructure
improvements at all 11 congregate dining sites.

e Two rounds of shelf stable meals were purchased in FY 24-25 for MOW
consumers to eat in the case of program closures.

Financial Wellness

e OCWCOG hired two housing specific positions to help support older adults and
people with disabilities who were at risk of or were homeless, but ongoing
funding has been cut, and the positions will not be refilled. The relationships the
housing staff built with housing groups and agencies that support homeless
populations was invaluable. We will miss having the positions.

e Stand By Me — A financial empowerment program which uses volunteer
coaches to support participants in meeting their financial goals continues to
grow.

e A new OCWCOG Money Management Program Coordinator has been hired
and has slowly started to rebuild the consumer base which had been depleted
through COVID and staffing changes.

e A new streamlined relationship with local SSA staff helped in growing the
number of Rep Payee consumers.

201 Page 116
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix D



Appendix E - Final Updates on Service Equity Plan Accomplishments

At OCWCOG, we believe that working toward service equity is essential to ensuring we
provide the best possible support to older adults and people with disabilities in our
community. As an Area Agency on Aging, we are deeply committed to addressing the
unique needs of diverse populations, ensuring that all individuals—regardless of race,
ethnicity, socioeconomic status, or background—have equal access to the services and
resources they need. Our Service Equity Plan was created because equitable service
delivery is a cornerstone of our beliefs. We continuously review and refine this plan,
focusing on identifying disparities, eliminating barriers to access, and fostering an
inclusive environment where everyone’s voice is heard. Through ongoing collaboration,
data analysis, and feedback from those we serve, we strive to make meaningful
improvements and ensure that equity remains at the forefront of all our initiatives. This
plan is a living document, and we are committed to working tirelessly to uphold its
principles and enhance the quality of care we provide to our region and the consumers
we serve. Below are some highlights of the work we have done in the areas of service
equity:

e Acontractor was hired to support OCWCOG in implementing a DEI plan. The focus
was to use these experts to guide leadership and the DEI Committee as we launch
DEl initiatives and provide staff training across the agency.

e The original DEI contractor provided DEI training at the annual agency all staff
meetings in 2024.

e Alack of follow through from the original DEI contractor led to ending the original
relationship, but a new contract was obtained.

e The new contracting agency led DEI training at our 2025 all staff meeting — the
training focused a lot on microaggressions and implicit bias.

e They will be providing training to agency leadership in April 2025.
e Our internal DEI Committee is very engaged and active and has recently been
rebranded the CARE (Community, Awareness, Responsibility and Empathy)

Committee.

e The Committee has hosted DEI specific events at COG including a PRIDE
celebration and Juneteenth lunches where information was shared with staff.

e A newsletter is developed by the Committee to highlight and share information
about different cultural events and celebrations that happen monthly.

202 Page 117
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix E



OCWCOG attends tabling events/celebrations across the communities that are
focused on diverse communities — PRIDE celebrations in Linn and Lincoln
Counties and Festival Latinos are a couple of examples.

DEI was adopted as one of OCWCOG’s values.

A month of the year is dedicated to supporting the agency Value of DEI with toolkit
provided to supervisors to support messaging around the value.

HR hiring practices have been implemented to make sure job recruitments and
postings are designed to be inclusive in nature.

HR is assessing data about hires and comparing staff demographics with that of
the larger community to assess success in hiring workers that reflect the population
and region we serve.

Training has been provided on how to interview to avoid discrimination and bias in
hiring.

Signage around the agency has been assessed for being person centered,
inclusive, and trauma informed.

203 Page 118
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix E



Continuity of Operations
(COOP)

and

Emergency Protocols

adB .

OREGON CASCADES WEST

Council of
| Governments

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments
1400 Queen Ave., SE
Albany, OR 97322

Updated: 9/2023

204 Page 119
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Introduction

This document contains the Continuity of Operations (COOP) plan for
Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG). It is the
document containing the information needed to post-interruption decision-
making and the agency’s response to any disruptive or extended interruption
of the organization’s normal operations and services. This plan outlines an
action plan appropriate for our clients, employees, and visitors in the event
of an emergency. This plan identifies natural and man-made emergencies
that may impact our operations as well as the community. It details the
response procedures that should be followed in case of an emergency.

Purpose

The COOP plan is to be used as a guide whenever an event results in
prolonged disruption of services provided by OCWCOG. Some examples
include but are not limited to:

e Fire or other damage to the building

e Natural disasters such as earthquakes, flood or volcano

e Chemical Event

e Temporary loss of significant number of staff

e Damage or interruption to utilities, computer or telephone systems
Applicability and Scope

This Plan is based on a short-term (less than five business days) closure. If
closure is for an extended period of time, all functions will resume operation
as quickly as possible at a new and previously identified temporary long-term
location.

A copy of this Plan is to be maintained by all OCWCOG managers and at
each worksite. A backup copy of this Plan will be kept offsite by the Executive
Director, the Deputy Director, and the Program Directors.

All OCWCOG employees have received a copy of the OCWCOG Employee
Office Safety and Protection Guide. This guide is to assist employees in
dealing with the emergency at-hand and the safety of building occupants. If

205 Page 120
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



the building cannot be used, the OCWCOG Business Continuity Plan will be
used.

The succession of events in an emergency are not predictable, hence,
published support of operational plans will serve only as a guide and
checklist, and will require modification during an event to meet the
requirements of the emergency. Flexibility and rationality are keys to
successfully managing an emergency. Our organization stresses human
safety above material loss at all times.

The following people have been designated as the OCWCOG Continuity
Planning Team.

Continuity Planning Team

Andrea Turner Toledo 541-270-5735
Alicia Lucke Corvallis 541-609-8073
Ryan Schulze Albany 971-701-3120
Randi Moore Albany 541-990-5422
Jason Sele Albany 541-788-7353
Marit Nelson Albany 541-401-9094
Ryan Vogt Albany 503-269-7523

Guiding Principles and Assumptions

e Every incident will be different, both in severity and in length of impact.
The response needs to be flexible and meet the needs of the incident.

o Safety of staff and clients is the first goal, though efforts will be made
to minimize damage to property.

e Responses will be made in cooperation with local emergency
authorities and organizations according to the Linn-Benton Vulnerable

206 Page 121
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Populations Emergency Plan. Assistance will be available from outside
our tri-county area through mutual aid agreements with County, State
and Federal emergency services.

Documentation of the event and all steps taken, decisions made, and
funds expended are very important.

Every event is stressful on all employees. If the response is likely to
last more than a couple of days, plans should be made to rotate staff
to allow for periods of rest.

A major disaster event will likely affect the lives of many Linn, Benton
and Lincoln County agency employees limiting, or preventing, them
from performing shelter and care activities.

A major disaster will likely result in loss of utilities, communication
systems, and transportation systems making evacuation to mass care
facilities difficult and may limit which mass care facilities can be used.

Experince has shown that a high percentage of evacuees will seek
lodging from friends or relatives rather than go to facilities during minor
events or localized conditions.

Additional services, including the care of special needs groups and
crisis counceling, will be required from our agency.

Many residents, especially those with special medical needs, may
asssume there will be local resources available to rescue them.
Medically-fragile clinets may not have access or transporation to
regular services such as dialysis, oxygen or chemotherapy.

Patients who normally receive home helathcare services may need to
be accompanied by a caregiver to a shelter. In such cases, the
caregiver should be transferred with the evacuee and permitted to
remain with that person as the caregiver is able.

207 Page 122
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



SECTION

Activation of Plan 1
Decision Process

The Executive Director, or successor if the Executive Director is not
available, will make the decision whether or not to implement the COOP.
Communication of decisions will flow from the Executive Director to the
Program Directors. Program Directors will be responsible for communicating
to their unit Managers or designated staff and on down to their assigned staff.
Section 2 of this Plan further describes the agency communication protocol.

Orders of Succession

Succession for the Agency will take place in the event the Executive Director
is unavailable, debilitated, or incapable of performing their legally authorized
duties, roles, and responsibilities.

Marit Nelson, Finance Director

Randi Moore, Senior and Disability Services Director

Ryan Schulze, Human Resources

208 Page 123
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Succession of each Department for the purpose of continuing operations is
as follows:

PRIMARY
PROGRAM STAFF
PERSON

FIRST BACKUP SECOND BACK UP

PERSON PERSON

22?\1?(:;& Disability Randi Moore Rachel Sine Lauren Fontanarosa
CED Jaclyn Disney | Britny Chandler | Emma Chavez Sosa
Tech Services Jason Sele Jacob Blinn Laura South
Human Resources Ryan Schulze Jesus Jara Reina Avila
Finance Marit Nelson Brett Tieszen

Each Program Director will also have a succession plan for each office. The
Program Directors will communicate this plan with their Unit Management
Team.

Employees are encouraged to have individual and family emergency plans.
Being prepared themselves will keep them better equipped to help others in
the event of an emergency. It is recommended to keep a five-day kit, stocked
with food, water, blankets and other supplies.

209 Page 124
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



SECTION

2

Communications

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments is registered with the Linn-
Benton ALERT Emergency Notification System and with the Reverse 9-1-1
alert system in Lincoln County. If an event has been reported, the Executive
Director will contact the appropriate county’s Emergency Management
program through the Sheriff’s office to verify. A list of Emergency Resources
can be found in the Appendices of this document.

Once the event has been verified, the following communications plan will be
used:

Employees

During an event, we will assess which means of communication are still
available to us and use the means closest in speed and form to the means
that we have used in the past to communicate with the staff.

All OCWCOG managers, including the Facilities Maintenance Coordinator
and the IT Manager, are required to maintain a cell phone for emergency
contact purposes. Human Resources (HR) provides an updated emergency
after-hours contact list to each person required to maintain a cell phone.

The Human Resources Manager will also provide an updated employee
contact list to unit managers on a monthly basis.

Communication decisions will flow from the Executive Director to the
Program Directors. Program Directors will be responsible for communicating
to their unit Managers or designated staff and on down to their assigned staff.

The Executive Director will serve as the Public Relations Officer at an
emergency scene. Only the Public Relations Officer (or a representative
designated by the Executive Director) will provide statement to media
personnel. Not all employees will have all of the pertinent information;
therefore, employees will be instructed not to release any information to
media personnel, and to provide “no comment” when approached for
information by any member of the media.

210 Page 125
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



The on-site Supervisors have been designated as Building Evacuation
Supervisors. The Evacuation Supervisors will assist employees as needed
during an evacuation and will take a head count of all employees in the
building at the time.

External internet-based communications will be posted by HR or Technology
Services staff. OCWCOG is registered with FlashAlert News Wire, which
notifies all television, radio stations, and newspapers within the
Albany/Corvallis, Eugene/Roseburg, and Portland/Salem (includes Lincoln
City and Newport) of any business continuity information that needs to be
communicated to OCWCOG employees. The HR Manager is responsible for
providing the necessary information to FlashAlert News Wire. If the HR
Manager is not available, another assigned OCWCOG Continuity Planning
Team member will contact FlashAlert.

If phone service to the affected worksite has not been obstructed, voicemail
instructions will be recorded on the following Staff Information Lines:

Albany/Corvallis Staff Line 1-541-924-8434
1-888-777-5958
Toledo Staff Line 1-541-336-2289
1-800-354-1095

211 Page 126
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



If an event should result in a building closure, the following chart illustrates
the agency flow of communication.

Agency Flow of Communication

4 )

The Executive Director is notified of an event that would result
in building closure and event is verified

\_ J
- ~N Executive Director crafts
message to communicate
Executive Director contacts all Program Directors and the (may coordinate with
Board Chair of building closure directors) and records
voice mail message for
\_ J staff phone line
4 )

Program Directors notify their managers and/or their direct

staff of building closure Human Resources Manager

h4

Program Directors and/or assigned staff notify others who may posts message on web page
have immediate business with CWCOG, e.g. meeting attendees
\_ Y, Executive Director provides

message to local media

Managers contact their direct staff of building closure

4 )

Staff keep updated via news media, COG website and staff line
voice mail

212 Page 127
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Communications to OCWCOG clients/customers and other people we do
business with is as follows:

Clients/Customers

In the event that any of the OCWCOG buildings are closed to the public,
information will be posted on the external website by HR, Communications,
or Technology Services staff. Information will also be communicated to the
public via FlashAlert News Wire, which notifies all television, radio stations,
and newspapers within the OCWCOG service areas. The HR Manager, in
coordination with appropriate department Directors, will be responsible for
posting information on FlashAlert News Wire.

If feasible, information and instructions for our consumers will be posted by
the OCWCOG Primary Responders on the outside doors of each affected
worksite.

Shared Resource Organizations

In the event that any of the OCWCOG buildings are closed to the public
and/or business services suffer interruption, other agencies should be
notified and kept informed. The appropriate Program Directors, or assigned
staff, will be responsible for communicating the status of OCWCOG
operations with them. Shared resource organizations are found in the
Appendices of this document.

213 Page 128
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



SECTION

Disaster Detection and Determination 3

Should there be an event that would potentially cause any of the COG
buildings to be inaccessible, a primary responder will be responsible for
assessing the building and reporting to the Executive Director. Designated
Primary Responders are as follows:

Albany Building: Facilities Maintenance Coordinator and/or assigned
back-up

Toledo Building: Senior & Disability Services Program Manager and/or
assigned back-up

Corvallis Building: Senior and Disability Services Director and/or assigned
back-up

Each Primary Responder will have an assigned backup should they be
unavailable to assess their assigned building.

Each building has a Vendor Reference Manual that will provide contact
information of building contractors. A list of primary vendor contacts is
provided in the Appendices of this document.

Should an event happen, that could potentially compromise any of the
OCWCOG facilities, the Executive Director will verify the event and then
contact the appropriate Primary Responder for that building. The Primary
Responder will assess the building using an assessment check-off list to
determine damage and/or safety concerns and report back to the Executive
Director.

If the building is found safe to occupy, staff will follow the Communication
Plan outlined in Section 1 of this manual.

If the building is not safe to occupy, staff and tenants will be notified per the
Communication Plan. The Primary Responder and/or the Facilities
Maintenance Coordinator will confer with the Finance Director regarding
insurance coverage. The Facilities Maintenance Coordinator will contact the
insurance company to formulate a plan of action to mobilize cleanup and

214 Page 129
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



detail. A copy of City County Insurance Services’ Claim Procedure can be
found in the Appendices of this document. The Facilities Maintenance
Coordinator will notify the appropriate vendors, and employees and building
tenants who have the expertise needed to regain building operations.

The following flow chart illustrates detection and determination.

215 Page 130
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



DISASTER DETECTION AND DETERMINATION FLOW CHART

Executive Director
verifies an event

L]

Executive Director
notifies 1% responder

1%t Responder assesses
building and reports
findings back to the

Executive Director

Building is NOT

1

[}

1
I safe to occupy ‘
N _ _ S o I

Follow
Communication
Plan

Confer with Finance
Director regarding
insurance coverage

x

Call insurance and

formulate a plan of
action

T

Follow
Communication
Plan

Mobilize cleanup
and detail

216

assessment
including
employees or
tenants with special
knowledge

Page 131

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F




Types of Hazards

Electrial Fire Hazards

Electrical system failures and the misuse of electrical equipment are the
leading causes of workplace fires. Fires can result from loose ground
connections, wiring with frayed insulation, or overloaded fuses, circuits,
motors or outlets.

To prevent electrical fires, employees should:

Replace worn wires.

Use appropriately rated fuses.

Do not use extension cords as substitue for wiring improvements.
Use only aproved esxtension cords.

Check wiring in hazardous locations where the risk of fire is especially
high.

Check electrical equiptment to ensure it is properly grounded or double
insulated.

Ensure adequate spacing while performing maintenance.

Do not overload curcuits with office equiptment.

Turn off nonessential electrical equiptment at the end of each workday.
Keep storage areas and walkways clear.

Do not let trash and recycling accumulate.

General Fire Prevention and Procedures

Fire prevention is everyone’s responsibility. Unsafe practices shall not be
tolerated. The following safe practices are required of all staff members.

Flammables and combustibles will not be stored near heaters,
electrical appliances or other potential sources of ignition.

217 Page 132
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



e Smoking is prohibited in public places and places of employent, which
means smoking is prohibited in all OCWCOG buidings and within fifty
(50) feet of a service line that extends out of doors.

e Do not block potential escape routes.

e Any gasoline, kerosene or cleaning solvents which must be stored
inside must be stored in an approved container with identifying
information readily visible.

Administrators shall present basic fire prevention training to all employees
upon employment, and shall maintain documetation of the training. Portable
extinguishers shall be maintained in fully charged and operable condition.
Maintenance staff will provide upkeep of fire alarms and sprinkler systems
throughout our facilites. All persons in their respective buildings need to know
how to get out of the building in the event of a fire or other emergency. Fire
exits should be clearly marked, identifiable and continually up kept by
maintenance staff. In the event of an emergency, stairs should be used as
preference to elevators.

Medical Emergencies

Major mecial emergencies can include an array of conditions such as a fall,
burns, choking, heart attack, poisoning, severe bleeding or stroke.

How to respond:
e Quickly assess emergency situation.
e Check for any additional immediate danger.
e Seek professional medical help as soon as possible.
¢ Avoid moving an injured person unless absolutely necessary.
e Wait until medical help arrives.

e Do not provide first aid or CPR unless you have been trained.

218 Page 133
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Natural Disasters

Hurricane

High winds, flooding and flying debris resulting from hurricanes can be
extremely dangerous. Hurricanes typically affect coastal areas such as
Lincoln County, but can also inflict damage far inland. A hurricane watch is
issued when threat hurricane conditions are expected within 24-36 hours. A
hurricane warning is issued when hurricane conditions are expected within
24 hours or less. The hurricane season typically lasts from July through
November.

How to Respond:

1.

It is essential that all employees stay indoors throughout the entire
hurricane. During the peak of the storm for maximun protection, it is
suggested that employees close doors and remain In hallways and/or
spaces farthest from windows.

. Employees should remain away from dangerous areas, such as glass

windows.

Do not attempt to open windows or doors to see what is happening
outside.

Employees should report all accidents, inuuries, broken windows, or
excessive water to a supervisor.

Telephone calls should be made only in case of emergency.

Keep in mind that everything is calm when the eye of the strom passes
overhead. Do not venture outside, as the second half of the storm will
follow shortly.

Do not use fire stairs to go to an adjacent floor where the elevator will be
shut off. Do not go outside.

219 Page 134
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Tsunami

A tsunami can cause major damage and loss of life along coastal areas, such
as Lincoln County. Traveling at speeds of up to 500 miles per hour, a tsunami
wave can be among the most powerful destructive forces on Earth. These
waves typically occur as a result of earthquakes giving little or no warning for
nearby shorelines.

How to Respond:

1. Listen to broadcasts that keep citizens up to date of potential tsunami
situations. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration weather
radios are especailly helpful in sending out immediate warnings and
instructions. Local news stations are typically quick to respond and get
the message out to the people in their listening area.

2. Listen carefully to instructions and follow them in order to remain as safe
as possible until the all clear has been issued for your area.

3. Move away from the shoreline and seek higher ground and stay there.
Tsunamis are not a single wave, but are instead a series of waves that
are unpredictable. Do not return to low ground until the all clear signal has
been given.

Earthquake

One of the most destructive phenomena of nature is an earthquake. An
earthquake is a sudden, rapid shaking of the Earth, caused by the breaking
and shifting of subterranean rock as it relases strain that has accumulated
over a long period. This is followed by aftershocks.

How to Respond:
1. React quickly, but stay calm.

2. Move away from windows. Duck and cover or stand securely in a doorway
to avoid falling debris.

3. Do not use elevators or stairs until identified as safe.

4. Expect fire alarms and sprinklers to activate.

220 Page 135
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Flood

Floods are the most common hazard for our tri-county area. Flooding can
happen gradually or in an instant. Flash floods usually occur within a few
minutes or hours of excessive rainfall or sudden rush of water held by an ice
jam. Flash floods often have a dangerous wall of roaring water carrying
rocks, mud and other debris. Overland flooding, the most common type of
flooding, typically occurs when waterways such as rivers or streams overflow
their banks as a result of rainwater. It can also occur when rainfall or
snowmelt exceeds the capacity of underground pipes, or the capacity of
streets and drains designed to carry flood water away from urban areas.

How to Respond:

1. Turn off main switches or valves if instructed to do so. Disconnect
electrical appliances. Do not touch electrical equipment if you are wet or
standing in water.

2. Keep a safe distance from flooded water. Avoid walking through moving
water. Any amount of flooded water can cause a fall. If you have to walk
through water, walk where the water is not moving. Use a stick to check
the firmness of the ground in front of you.

3. Do not drive into flooded areas. If floodwaters rise around your car,
abandon the car and move to higher ground if you can do so safely. You
and the vehicle can be swept away quickly.

4. Do not camp or park your vehicle along streams, rivers, or creeks,
particularly during threatening conditions.

Severe Winter Storm

A winder storm watch means severe weather is possible. A winter storm
warning signals that severe winter weather is expected. A blizzrd warning
signals severe weather with substantial winds is expected. A Travelor’s
Advisory means that conditions may make driving unsafe. In some instances
during extreme weather or other emergency conditions OCWCOG may close
operations. SDS will notify employees if evacuation is necessary.

221 Page 136
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Bomb Threat

Anyone who recieves a bomb threat should adhere to the following
procedures in the order shown.

1.

© N o O

The person receiving the threat should remain calm and attempt to obtain
as much information as possible from the caller.

. Call 911. Give your name, location and telephone number. Inform the

responder of the situation, reporting the exact words of the threat
including information you may have as to the location of the threat, time
of the threat and time you received the call. Emergency personnel will
handle the evacuation if necessary upon their arrival.

Do not evacuate the building and do not sound the alarm, but wait for
further instruction. Authorities will be responsible for necessary
evacuation of buildings.

If you should spot something our of the normal that appears suspicious,
report it to your supervisor. Under no circumstances should you touch,
tamper with, or move objects that look out of place or confront persons
acting suspicious.

Immedicately cease the use of all wireless transmission equipment.
Record conversation if at all possible.
If the buiding is evacuated, move as far from the building as possible.

Keep the street, fire landings, hydrants and walkways clear to emergency
vehicles and crews.

Do not return to the building until told to do so by emergency personell.

222 Page 137
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



SECTION

A

Essential functions

Essential functions are those organizational functions and activities that must
be continued under any and all circumstances.

OCWCOG has identified the following functions as essential and are those
that cannot suffer interruption for more than 12 hours.

Priority Essential Functions

1

Case Management

MoW

In-home client health and safety check

Medical transportation through Ride Line

2
3
4
5

Adult Protective Services

Each program has established protocols for emergency situations.

Technology Services

In the event the network has been compromised, the following protocol will
be used in order to retain network services as quickly as possible:

The first priority for Technology Services is to establish phone
communications followed by remote access to the agency network.
Secondary tasks will involve restoring agency critical services such as the
Transportation Brokerage, and Oregon Access.

Photos of the server room equipment and its location are included as a
part of this Plan. Should emergency personnel be able to access the
building, the IT Manager, or designee, will remove critical equipment,
such as hard drives and backup tapes, if feasible.

223 Page 138
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



e The State Department of Human Services (DHS) will be contacted to
allow staff to access Oregon Access and other State programs from
alternate locations.

A list of pertinent Technology Services Vendor information is provided in the

Appendices of this document.

Telephones/Voice Mail

All phone lines can be forwarded to cell phones or other locations where a
telephone line exists. Teams/3CX Phone lines can be forwarded by
individual personnel immediately from the online 3CX or Teams apps as long
as access to those cloud services still function. Fax lines can be adjusted by
Technology Services staff with support from the phone provider. The
published numbers are:

Albany: 541-967-8720 (GA), 541-967-8630 (SDS), 541-967-8551 (CED)
Corvallis: Same as Albany

Toledo: 541-336-2289

Ride Line: 541-753-2277, 541-924-8738, 541-812-2584
RSVP — 541-812-0849, 541-574-3721

ADRC - 541-812-2580

APS Screeners — 541-924-8418

VSO - 541-368-7100

Eligibility Information — 541-574-3712, 541-812-2001
Tech Support — 541-924-8401

Trainers — 541-924-4542

Staff Emergency Line — 541-924-8434

Shared CM Intake — 541-714-5800

HR — 541-574-3734

224 Page 139
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Computer and Remote Access

All staff have access to Microsoft 365 apps and shared files and have been
set up with VPN access to the agency network. In the event the building(s)
is not accessible, and the network has not been compromised, all staff with
remote access can access emails and critical files and information stored on
the network from their home or another location.

Computer connectivity priorities have been established as follows:

Priority Program

1 Ride Line

Senior and Disability Services

ADRC

General Administration

2
3
4 Veteran’s Services
5
6

LMS (Lending)

In-Home Client Health and Safety Check

A list of the most vulnerable of OCWCOG’s clients is updated quarterly. This
list consists of individuals who will not be able to function without aid during
an emergency. This list is distributed to each of OCWCOG’s managers in a
sealed envelope to open only in the case of an emergency. Copies are also
kept in a safe at each office location.

Senior Meals

Meal Sites are equipped with non-perishable foods for use when adverse
weather or other emergencies prevent timely delivery of hot meals.

Meals on Wheels recipients are provided with emergency meal boxes
stocked with non-perishable foods. These are to be used in the event of an
emergency if volunteers cannot safely deliver hot meals.

225 Page 140
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



SECTION

5

VITAL RECORDS MANAGEMENT

Critical records of the agency have been identified in order for the

continuation of business.

Records required for business success, legal

reasons, regulatory agency, and/or to support recovery efforts are listed to
the extent possible. How records are stored and how they may be accessed

are as follows:

Federal Records

Form of

Vital File, Record Pre- R
Record or B positioned Carried to up_at
at Alternate  Alternate Third
Database hardcopy, . . .
. Location Location Location
electronic)
Program
Management
Receipt of Fed
Funds
Federal Grants Electronic Feds
CFDA Numbers Electronic
SBA Loans CWFS
USDA/RDF
133&4
EDA/RLF LMS &
Auditors
EEOC Reports Electronic Department
of Labor
1-9’s Hard copy

226 Page 141
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Emergency Operations Records

Form of

Vital File, Record Fre- Bl ek
positioned at Carried to up at
Record or (e.g., .
Alternate Alternate Third
Database hardcopy, . . .
. Location Location Location
electronic)
Emergency
Continuity of Hard copy All Program
. and .
Operations Plan electronic Directors
(COOP)
Staff contact Program
. Hard copy .
and assignment Directors and
. ) and X
information : Management
electronic
Team
Orders of Hard co
succession and and Py Included in
delegations of . COOP
. electronic
authority
Agency Barker
Insurance Hard copy Uerlings &
Information CIS
Policy,
procedural and Hard copy
and
systems :
electronic
manuals
List of credit
card holders to Electronic US Bank
purchase
needed supplies
227 Page 142

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F




Rights and Interest Records

Vital File,
Record or
Database

Form of
Record

(e.g.,
hardcopy,
electronic)

Pre-
positioned
at Alternate
Location

Hand
Carried to
Alternate
Location

Backed
up at
Third

Location

Agency Bylaws | Hard copy &
electronic
Articles of Hard copy
Agreement and
electronic
Articles of Hard copy in
Incorporation fire proof file
cabinet
Board Hard copy
Resolutions and
electronic
State & Federal | Hard copy in
Employer fireproof safe
Identification
Number
Authorization
Audit Reports Hard copy
and DVD in
fire proof
safe
Adopted Electronic
Budgets
Payroll and Electronic NetSuite
Accounts
Receivable
Personnel Files | Hard Copies
Client Records Electronic State of
Oregon DHS

228

Page 143

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



Form of

Vital File, Record Pre- T
Record or (e positioned Carried to up at
G- at Alternate  Alternate Third
Database hardcopy, . . .
. Location Location Location
electronic)
COG Inventory Hard copy
and
electronic
Titles, deeds, Hard copies
and contracts in fire proof
safe

229 Page 144
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



SECTION

6

COORP Planning Responsibilities

All OCWCOG managers are designated as Emergency Relocation Team
(ERT) personnel. The team members are responsible for ensuring that the
elements of this Plan are activated and followed by providing leadership in a
calm manner to enable the continuation of mission critical functions.

OCWCOG recognizes the importance of taking care of family first in order to
be available to then serve the agency. Employees must be sure that their
family is safe and secure prior to reporting to work. Employees should
develop a personal “go kit” that includes the items their families will need if
they have to evacuate or shelter in place. As well, employees should have
an office “go kit” that includes the employee’s contact information.

The following table reflects COOP responsibilities for the agency:

Responsibility | Position

Update COOP plan Executive Director, Program Directors, and

annually. HR Manager

Update telephone rosters HR Manager

monthly.

Review status of vital files, | Tech Services Director, Finance Director,

records, and databases. other Program Directors as appropriate

Conduct alert and HR Manager in coordination with the

notification tests. Program Directors

Develop and lead COOP HR Manager

training.

Plan COOP exercises. HR Manager in coordination with the
Program Directors

230 Page 145
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



SECTION

/

Test, Training, and Exercises

Training will be provided to all OCWCOG managers, and key personnel, in
order to ensure consistent application of the Plan, when a crisis occurs, for
continuity of operations.

- The Continuity Planning Team and key personnel will test the Plan to
confirm whether or not procedures, processes, and systems function as
intended.

- Managers will train their staff to ensure that all personnel know what to
do, how to do it, and when it should be done during an emergency.

Designated managers will complete an After-Action Report regarding any
emergency incidents. The Continuity Planning Team will review and analyze
the data from the After-Action Reports to determine if there are any areas of
improvement needed for the OCWCOG Business Continuity Plan.

COOP Plan Maintenance

Our Continuity Planning Team will meet annually to review this document,
Continuity of Operations and Emergency Protocol, for necessary updates
and revisions. Key evacuation routes, roster and telephone information, as
well as maps and room/building designations of alternate locations will be
updated as changes occur.

231 Page 146
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F



EMERGENCY RESOURCES

Linn and Benton County

AGENCY

PHONE

Linn Co. Sheriff
Emergency Management

541-967-3901

Benton C. Sheriff
Emergency Management

541-766-6864

Linn County Public Health
Albany

Lebanon

Sweet Home

541-967-3888
541-451-5932
541-367-3888

American Red Cross

541-926-1543

Lincoln County

AGENCY

CONTACT PERSON

Lincoln Co. Sheriff
Emergency Management

541-265-0651

American Red Cross

541-265-7182

Reverse 9-1-1 9-1-1
State of Oregon
AGENCY CONTACT PERSON

DHS Public Health Division

971-673-1222

232 Page 147
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F




Radio Stations

STATION PHONE NUMBER CITY RADIO DIAL
541-917-0212 early am 990AM/1240AM
KRKT 541-926-8628 office 1340AM
FAX 541-928-1261 Albany 106.3FM/99.9FM
KSHO 541-926-8683 920AM
KGAL FAX 541-451-5429 Albany 1580AM
KHPE 541-926-2431 107.9FM
KWIL FAX 541-926-3925 Albany 790AM
800-922-3682 89.7FM
KLCC 541-463-6000 Eugene
KBCH 541-994-2181 Lincoln City 1400 AM
KNPT 1310 AM
KYTE 541-265-2266 South Lincoln Co. | 102.7 FM
KFIR 541-367-5115-Steve Sweet Home 720 AM
(after 4:30am)
541-563-5100
KORC FAX 541-563-5116
Email: Waldport 820 AM

bet8@korcam820.com

233

Page 148

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix F




Appendix G — Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments Conflict of Interest
Policy

Purpose

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG) is committed to ensuring
that the activities of agency staff reflect service to the mission of the agency and the
highest ethical standards. The Human Resources (HR) office engages with staff to ensure
that agency business, the use of agency resources, and staff roles outside the agency do
not present a conflict of interest. OCWCOG HR ensures that any conflict is resolved in a
way that will not impact the business or services OCWCOG provides, or the perception
or reputation of the agency.

Description

This policy describes the circumstances under which agency staff are responsible for
evaluating their activities or relationships outside OCWCOG for the possibility of personal
gain or influence using OCWCOG resources or information.

Applicability

This policy applies to all OCWCOG staff including employees, volunteers, trainees and
interns. As keepers of the public trust, all employees have a responsibility to comply with
agency policies, administrative rule, and state and federal law. The agency takes this
responsibility seriously and failure to fulfill this responsibility is not treated lightly.
Employees who fail to comply with agency policy, administrative rule, or state and federal
law may face progressive discipline, up to and including dismissal.

Policy

1. Itis a conflict of interest for OCWCOG staff to:

a. Use information or resources accessed through their employment for personal
gain, whether their own or others.

b. Engage in personal activities or roles that could reflect negatively on
OCWCOG.

2. OCWCAOG staff shall report any potential conflict of interest to HR using the Conflict-
of-Interest Declaration Form.

3. Conflicts of interest may occur through relationships with any individual, including:
a. OCWCOG service recipients or their family members.

b. Vendors, providers, or contractors.

234 Page 149
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix G



b. Co-workers or other professional associates.

c. Participation or membership in community groups, boards or professional
associations.

d. Family or other personal relationships.

4. The appropriate OCWCOG authority, as determined by the Executive Director, shall
review and make a determination about potential conflicts of interest that result from
any outside relationships or opportunities that involve OCWCOG staff or business,
including:

a. Personal or professional relationships.

b. OCWCOG service recipients or their families.
c. Non-OCWCOG employment.

d. Board or commission memberships.

e. Expert witness activities.

f. Commercial gain.

5. OCWCOG staff shall not use their positions to:

a. Obtain favors or other personal or financial benefit.

b. Grant favors or unwarranted benefits.

6. OCWCOG staff should not establish personal relationships with individual service
recipients to whom the staff member has case responsibility or provides services.

7. OCWCOG staff shall receive approval from HR before providing services that could
create a conflict of interest with their employment responsibilities, including:

a. Working with service recipients, or the service recipient’s families, authorized
representatives, or payees with whom the staff member has or has had personal
or family relationships.

b. Developing personal relationships outside of OCWCOG with service recipients,
their families, authorized representatives, or payees with whom they have or
have had personal or family relationships.

c. Accepting secondary employment by an agency that contracts with OCWCOG.

235 Page 150
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix G



d. Working for agency service recipients.
8. OCWCOG staff shall receive approval from HR before receiving compensation
(financial or other) from public or private agencies, businesses, individuals, or
organizations. Staff shall not:

a. Be compensated for work that is considered part of their agency job.

b. Use OCWCOG equipment or copyrighted material obtained with public funds
for activities related to outside employment.

9. OCWCOG staff working for compensation outside their agency employment
(moonlighting) shall not accept employment that:

a. Interferes with performance of their agency job duties.
b. Reflects negatively on the agencies.

c. Involve unethical practices that could impact their ability to perform their agency
job duties.

10.0CWCOG staff shall receive approval from HR before participating as a member of
any public or private board or commission not required by employment. HR shall
ensure that:
a. Membership does not conflict with OCWCOG job duties.

b. Staff provide a statement to the board or commission that the membership
position does not represent OCWCOG.

11.0CWCOG staff shall receive approval from HR before providing any expert witness
testimony outside their assigned job duties if the testimony is related to their assigned
job duties.

12.Staff may accept compensation for expert testimony, speaking engagements, or
activities outside their job duties if:

a. Their preparation for and presentation of the testimony are entirely on their own
time.

b. They use no OCWCOG resources in their preparation and participation

c. They make clear that their preparation and participation are not part of their job
duties or as an employee of OCWCOG.

236 Page 151
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix G



13.0CWCOG staff shall not solicit money or other gifts related to the performance of their
duties.

14.0CWCOG staff shall consult with HR when gifts or honoraria are being offered.

a. Staff may retain honoraria only if their preparation for and participation in the
activities for which the honoraria are offered are entirely on their own time, no
OCWCOG resources are used in preparation and presentation, and staff make
clear that their preparation and participation are not as employees of
OCWCOG.

b. Staff shall not accept gifts related to the performance of their job duties and shall
report to HR offers of gifts, gratuities, or favors related to the performance of
their job duties.

c. Staff shall not accept gifts unless the gifts are unrelated to their OCWCOG
duties.

15.0CWCOG staff shall not use information obtained through their employment for
personal gain. Staff shall not:

a. Sell, buy, trade, negotiate, or accept any services or items from service
recipients.

b. Knowingly conduct or negotiate business matters with former consumers.

16.0CWCOG staff who are uncertain about whether alternative employment,
relationships, opportunities or gifts may impact their ability to perform their job
performance or responsibilities and create a conflict of interest shall contact their
supervisor and request a determination from their appointing authority.

References ORS 25.260 ORS 244 OAR 137-055-1140 and 137-055-1145 The Public
Officials Guide; Forms referenced Conflict of Interest Declaration

237 Page 152
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix G



PV NY|  Senior & Disability Services N

1400 Queen Ave SE - Suite 206 * Albany, OR 97322 aaa
(541) 967-8630 * (800) 638-0510 « TTY (541) 924-8402 /

Council of
Governments

S

Date

Name

Address

This is to confirm that on , your Oregon Project Independence service will be:

O Denied
O Closed

The reason for this action is being taken:

O Your care needs do not meet program guidelines.

O You have not hired a homecare worker.

O You have not paid your monthly service contribution.
O Other:

Case Manager (name and phone number) Date

If you have any questions regarding this notice or you feel that this action was taken in error, you
may appeal the decision by filing a grievance within ten (10) business days of the date of this
notice to the Senior & Disability Services Program Manager:

Lauen Fontanarosa
(541)248-5441
Ifontanarosa@ocwcog.org

The Program Manager will schedule a meeting with you within ten (10) business days of
receiving your grievance. You and your representative, if any, will be notified of the date, time,
and location of this meeting. Your rights will be set forth at the meeting per the agency
grievance procedure.

If you contest the action taken above to deny or terminate your service, you will continue to
receive OPI services until the outcome of your formal grievance is known.

MEMBER GOVERNMENTS — COUNTIES: Benton, Lincoln and Linn CITIES: Adair Village, Albany, Brownsville, Corvallis, Depoe Bay,

Halsey, Harrisburg, Lebanon, Lincoln City, Millersburg, Monroe, Newport, Philomath, Scio, Siletz, Sweet Home, Tangent, Toledo, Waldport,

Yachats OTHER: Confederated Tribes of Siletz, Port of Newport and Port of Toledo

238 Page 153
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix H


mailto:lfontanarosa@ocwcog.org

Appendix | — OPI Service Reduction/Closure Grievance Procedure

1. If service hours for an OPI consumer are reduced or closed, and the
consumer disagrees with the action, they have the right to present
information about their case to the agency.

2. Consumers must request a grievance review within 10 days of receiving
written notice of a decrease or closure in OPI service hours. If they do not
request a grievance review during that period, they have forfeited their
opportunity to do so.

3. Consumers have the right to present their information in person, with legal
counsel, to the Program Director of Senior & Disability Services, before
services are terminated. The consumer’s case will remain open until final
determination is made.

4. The agency decision, although informal, must state the reasoning, facts
and rules upon which the decision maker at the grievance review relied.

5. Service hour reduction/closure can proceed once the grievance review is
completed and the denial upheld.

6. If, after the grievance process, the consumer still disagrees with the local
agency'’s decision, the consumer has the right to request an Administrative
Review by the State Aging and People With Disabilities (APD) Community
Services and Supports Division (CSSU).

7. In the Administrative Review, CSSU will review the following issues:

e Whether Cascades West Senior Services’ service priorities are
established in policy, are consistently applied and do not contradict
State statute/rule.

e Whether service determination is individualized.

e Whether the consumer has been informed of the agency’s service
priorities, grievance policies and right to participate in a grievance
review.

e The notification process was complete and timely; and

e The consumer has been offered the opportunity to explore alternative
services.

239 Page 154
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix |



Appendix J — Partner Memorandums of Understanding

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments is a type B Medicaid Transfer Agency
foregoing appendix H, Partner Memorandum of Understanding.

240 Page 155
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix J



(@)

Appendix K — Statement of Assurances and Verification of Intent

For the period of July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2029, the Oregon Cascades West Council
of Governments (OCWCOG), Senior and Disability Services (SDS) accepts the
responsibility to administer this Area Plan in accordance with all requirements of the Older
Americans Act (OAA) as amended in 2020 (P.L. 116-131) and related state law and policy.
Through the Area Plan, OCWCOG, SDS shall promote the development of a
comprehensive and coordinated system of services to meet the needs of older individuals
and individuals with disabilities and serve as the advocacy and focal point for these groups
in the Planning and Service Area. The OCWCOG, SDS assures that it will:

Comply with all applicable state and federal laws, regulations, policies and contract
requirements relating to activities carried out under the Area Plan.

OAA Section 306, Area Plans

(@) [Each area agency on aging designated under section 305(a)(2)(A) shall, in order to
be approved by the State agency, prepare and develop an area plan for a planning and
service area for a two-, three-, or four-year period determined by the State agency, with
such annual adjustments as may be necessary. Each such plan shall be based upon a
uniform format for area plans within the State prepared in accordance with section
307(a)(1). Each such plan shall—

provide, through a comprehensive and coordinated system, for supportive services,
nutrition services, and, where appropriate, for the establishment, maintenance,
modernization, or construction of multipurpose senior centers (including a plan to use the
skills and services of older individuals in paid and unpaid work, including multigenerational
and older individual to older individual work), within the planning and service area covered
by the plan, including determining the extent of need for supportive services, nutrition
services, and multipurpose senior centers in such area (taking into consideration, among
other things, the number of older individuals with low incomes residing in such area, the
number of older individuals who have greatest economic need (with particular attention to
low-income older individuals, including low-income minority older individuals, older
individuals with limited English proficiency, and older individuals residing in rural areas)
residing in such area, the number of older individuals who have greatest social need (with
particular attention to low-income older individuals, including low-income minority older
individuals, older individuals with limited English proficiency, and older individuals residing
in rural areas) residing in such area, the number of older individuals at risk for institutional
placement residing in such area, and the number of older individuals who are Indians
residing in such area, and the efforts of voluntary organizations in the community),
evaluating the effectiveness of the use of resources in meeting such need, and entering
into agreements with providers of supportive services, nutrition services, or multipurpose
senior centers in such area, for the provision of such services or centers to meet such
need,

provide assurances that an adequate proportion, as required under section
307(a)(2), of the amount allotted for part B to the planning and service area will be
expended for the delivery of each of the following categories of services—

241 Page 156
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix K



(A) services associated with access to services (transportation, health services
(including mental and behavioral health services), outreach, information and
assistance (which may include information and assistance to consumers on
availability of services under part B and how to receive benefits under and participate
in publicly supported programs for which the consumer may be eligible) and case
management services);

(B) in-home services, including supportive services for families of older individuals
with Alzheimer's disease and related disorders with neurological and organic brain
dysfunction; and

(C) legal assistance;

and assurances that the area agency on aging will report annually to the State
agency in detail the amount of funds expended for each such category during the
fiscal year most recently concluded;

(3) (A) designate, where feasible, a focal point for comprehensive service delivery in each
community, giving special consideration to designating multipurpose senior centers
(including multipurpose senior centers operated by organizations referred to in
paragraph (6)(C)) as such focal point; and
(B) specify, in grants, contracts, and agreements implementing the plan, the identity of
each focal point so designated;

(4) (A)(i)(1) provide assurances that the area agency on aging will—
(aa) set specific objectives, consistent with State policy, for providing services
to older individuals with greatest economic need, older individuals with greatest
social need, and older individuals at risk for institutional placement;
(bb) include specific objectives for providing services to low-income minority older
individuals, older individuals with limited English proficiency, and older individuals
residing in rural areas; and

(1) include proposed methods to achieve the objectives described in items (aa) and (bb)
of sub-clause (I);

(i) provide assurances that the area agency on aging will include in each
agreement made with a provider of any service under this title, a requirement that
such provider will—
(1) specify how the provider intends to satisfy the service needs of low-income
minority individuals, older individuals with limited English proficiency, and older
individuals residing in rural areas in the area served by the provider;
(INto the maximum extent feasible, provide services to low-income minority
individuals, older individuals with limited English proficiency, and older individuals
residing in rural areas in accordance with their need for such services; and
(1) meet specific objectives established by the area agency on aging, for
providing services to low-income minority individuals, older individuals with limited
English proficiency, and older individuals residing in rural areas within the planning
and service area; and

(iii) with respect to the fiscal year preceding the fiscal year for which such plan

242 Page 157
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix K



(6)

is prepared —
() identify the number of low-income minority older individuals in the planning and
service area;
() describe the methods used to satisfy the service needs of such
minority older individuals; and
(lll) provide information on the extent to which the area agency on aging met
the objectives described in clause (i).

(B) provide assurances that the area agency on aging will use outreach efforts that
will—
(i) identify individuals eligible for assistance under this Act, with special emphasis
on—
(I) older individuals residing in rural areas;

() older individuals with greatest economic need (with particular attention to
low-income minority individuals and older individuals residing in rural areas);

(Ill) older individuals with greatest social need (with particular attention to low-income
minority individuals and older individuals residing in rural areas);

(IV) older individuals with severe disabilities;

(V) older individuals with limited English proficiency;

(VI) older individuals with Alzheimer's disease and related disorders with
neurological and organic brain dysfunction (and the caretakers of such individuals);
and

(VIl)older individuals at risk for institutional placement, specifically including
survivors of the Holocaust; and

(i) inform the older individuals referred to in sub-clauses (l) through (VII) of clause
(i), and the caretakers of such individuals, of the availability of such assistance; and
(C) contain an assurance that the area agency on aging will ensure that each activity
undertaken by the agency, including planning, advocacy, and systems development, will
include a focus on the needs of low-income minority older individuals and older

individuals residing in rural areas.

provide assurances that the area agency on aging will coordinate planning, identification,
assessment of needs, and provision of services for older individuals with disabilities, with
particular attention to individuals with severe disabilities, and individuals at risk for
institutional placement, with agencies that develop or provide services for individuals with
disabilities;

provide that the area agency on aging will—

(A) take into account in connection with matters of general policy arising in the
development and administration of the area plan, the views of recipients of services
under such plan;

(B) serve as the advocate and focal point for older individuals within the community
by (in cooperation with agencies, organizations, and individuals participating in
activities under the plan) monitoring, evaluating, and commenting upon all policies,
programs, hearings, levies, and community actions which will affect older individuals;
(C) (i) where possible, enter into arrangements with organizations providing day care
services for children, assistance to older individuals caring for relatives who are

243 Page 158
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix K



children, and respite for families, so as to provide opportunities for older individuals
to aid or assist on a voluntary basis in the delivery of such services to children, adults,
and families;
(i) if possible, regarding the provision of services under this title, enter into
arrangements and coordinate with organizations that have a proven record of
providing services to older individuals, that—
(I) were officially designated as community action agencies or community action
programs under section 210 of the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.
2790) for fiscal year 1981, and did not lose the designation as a result of failure to
comply with such Act; or
(I1) came into existence during fiscal year 1982 as direct successors in interest to
such community action agencies or community action programs;
and that meet the requirements under section 676B of the Community Services Block Grant
Act; and
(i) make use of trained volunteers in providing direct services delivered to older
individuals and individuals with disabilities needing such services and, if possible,
work in coordination with organizations that have experience in providing training,
placement, and stipends for volunteers or participants (such as organizations carrying
out Federal service programs administered by the Corporation for National and
Community Service), in community service settings;
(D) establish an advisory council consisting of older individuals (including minority
individuals and older individuals residing in rural areas) who are participants or who are
eligible to participate in programs assisted under this Act, family caregivers of such
individuals, representatives of older individuals, service providers, representatives of the
business community, local elected officials, providers of veterans’ health care (if
appropriate), and the general public, to advise continuously the area agency on aging
on all matters relating to the development of the area plan, the administration of the plan
and operations conducted under the plan;
(E) establish effective and efficient procedures for coordination of—
(i) entities conducting programs that receive assistance under this Act within the
planning and service area served by the agency; and
(i) entities conducting other Federal programs for older individuals at the local
level, with particular emphasis on entities conducting programs described in section
203(b), within the area;

(F) in coordination with the State agency and with the State agency responsible for
mental and behavioral health services, increase public awareness of mental health
disorders, remove barriers to diagnosis and treatment, and coordinate mental and
behavioral health services (including mental health screenings) provided with funds
expended by the area agency on aging with mental and behavioral health services
provided by community health centers and by other public agencies and nonprofit
private organizations;

(G) if there is a significant population of older individuals who are Indians in the
planning and service area of the area agency on aging, the area agency on aging shall
conduct outreach activities to identify such individuals in such area and shall inform
such individuals of the availability of assistance under this Act;

(H) in coordination with the State agency and with the State agency responsible for
elder abuse prevention services, increase public awareness of elder abuse, neglect,
and exploitation, and remove barriers to education, prevention, investigation, and

244 Page 159
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix K



(8)

treatment of elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation, as appropriate; and

() to the extent feasible, coordinate with the State agency to disseminate information
about the State assistive technology entity and access to assistive technology options for
serving older individuals;

provide that the area agency on aging shall, consistent with this section, facilitate the
areawide development and implementation of a comprehensive, coordinated system for
providing long-term care in home and community-based settings, in a manner
responsive to the needs and preferences of older individuals and their family caregivers,
by—
(A) collaborating, coordinating activities, and consulting with other local public and
private agencies and organizations responsible for administering programs, benéefits,
and services related to providing long-term care;
(B) conducting analyses and making recommendations with respect to strategies for
modifying the local system of long-term care to better—

(i) respond to the needs and preferences of older individuals and family

caregivers;

(i) facilitate the provision, by service providers, of long-term care in home and

community-based settings; and

(iii) target services to older individuals at risk for institutional placement, to

permit such individuals to remain in home and community-based settings;

(C) implementing, through the agency or service providers, evidence- based
programs to assist older individuals and their family caregivers in learning about and
making behavioral changes intended to reduce the risk of injury, disease, and disability
among older individuals; and
(D) providing for the availability and distribution (through public education campaigns,
Aging and Disability Resource Centers, the area agency on aging itself, and other
appropriate means) of information relating to—

(i) the need to plan in advance for long-term care; and

(i) the full range of available public and private long-term care (including integrated

long-term care) programs, options, service providers, and resources;

provide that case management services provided under this title through the area
agency on aging will—
(A) not duplicate case management services provided through other Federal and
State programs;
(B) be coordinated with services described in subparagraph (A); and
(C) be provided by a public agency or a nonprofit private agency that—
(i) gives each older individual seeking services under this title a list of agencies that
provide similar services within the jurisdiction of the area agency on aging;
(i) gives each individual described in clause (i) a statement specifying that the
individual has a right to make an independent choice of service providers and
documents receipt by such individual of such statement;
(i) has case managers acting as agents for the individuals receiving the services
and not as promoters for the agency providing such services; or
(iv) is located in a rural area and obtains a waiver of the requirements described in
clauses (i) through (iii);

245 Page 160
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix K



(9) (A) provide assurances that the area agency on aging, in carrying out the State Long-
Term Care Ombudsman program under section 307(a)(9), will expend not less than the
total amount of funds appropriated under this Act and expended by the agency in fiscal
year 2019 in carrying out such a program under this title;

(B) funds made available to the area agency on aging pursuant to section 712 shall be
used to supplement and not supplant other Federal, State, and local funds expended to
support activities described in section 712;

(10) provide a grievance procedure for older individuals who are dissatisfied with
or denied services under this title;

(11) provide information and assurances concerning services to older individuals who
are Native Americans (referred to in this paragraph as "older Native Americans"),
including—
(A) information concerning whether there is a significant population of older Native
Americans in the planning and service area and if so, an assurance that the area agency
on aging will pursue activities, including outreach, to increase access of those older
Native Americans to programs and benefits provided under this title;
(B) an assurance that the area agency on aging will, to the maximum extent
practicable, coordinate the services the agency provides under this title with services
provided under title VI; and
(C) an assurance that the area agency on aging will make services under the area
plan available, to the same extent as such services are available to older individuals
within the planning and service area, to older Native Americans;

(12) provide that the area agency on aging will establish procedures for coordination of
services with entities conducting other Federal or federally assisted programs for older
individuals at the local level, with particular emphasis on entities conducting programs
described in section 203(b) within the planning and service area.

(13) provide assurances that the area agency on aging will—
(A) maintain the integrity and public purpose of services provided, and service
providers, under this title in all contractual and commercial relationships;
(B) disclose to the Assistant Secretary and the State agency—
(i) the identity of each nongovernmental entity with which such agency has
a contract or commercial relationship relating to providing any service to older
individuals; and
(i) the nature of such contract or such relationship;
(C) demonstrate that a loss or diminution in the quantity or quality of the services
provided, or to be provided, under this title by such agency has not resulted and will not
result from such contract or such relationship;

(D) demonstrate that the quantity or quality of the services to be provided under this
title by such agency will be enhanced as a result of such contract or such relationship;
and

(E) on the request of the Assistant Secretary or the State, for the purpose of
monitoring compliance with this Act (including conducting an audit), disclose all sources
and expenditures of funds such agency receives or expends to provide services to older
individuals;

246 Page 161
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix K



(14) provide assurances that preference in receiving services under this title will not be

(15)

given by the area agency on aging to particular older individuals as a result of a
contract or commercial relationship that is not carried out to implement this title;

provide assurances that funds received under this title will be used—

(A) to provide benefits and services to older individuals, giving priority to older individuals
identified in paragraph (4)(A)(i); and

(B) in compliance with the assurances specified in paragraph (13) and the limitations
specified in section 212;

(16) provide, to the extent feasible, for the furnishing of services under this Act, consistent with

self-directed care;

(17) include information detailing how the area agency on aging will coordinate activities, and

develop long-range emergency preparedness plans, with local and State emergency
response agencies, relief organizations, local and State governments, and any other
institutions that have responsibility for disaster relief service delivery;

(18) provide assurances that the area agency on aging will collect data to determine—

(A) the services that are needed by older individuals whose needs were the focus of all
centers funded under title 1V in fiscal year 2019; and

(B) the effectiveness of the programs, policies, and services provided by such area
agency on aging in assisting such individuals; and

(19) provide assurances that the area agency on aging will use outreach efforts that will identify

individuals eligible for assistance under this Act, with special emphasis on those individuals
whose needs were the focus of all centers funded under title 1V in fiscal year 2019.

Section 306 (e)
An area agency on aging may not require any provider of legal assistance under this title
to reveal any information that is protected by the attorney- client privilege.

The further assures that it will:

With respect to legal assistance —

(A)
(i) enter into contracts with providers of legal assistance which can demonstrate
the experience or capacity to deliver legal assistance;
(i) include in any such contract provisions to assure that any recipient of funds under
division (i) will be subject to specific restrictions and regulations promulgated under
the Legal Services Corporation Act (other than restrictions and regulations governing
eligibility for legal assistance under such Act and governing membership of local
governing boards) as determined appropriate by the Assistant Secretary; and
(iii) attempt to involve the private bar in legal assistance activities authorized under
this title, including groups within the private bar furnishing services to older individuals
on a pro bono and reduced fee basis;

(B) assure that no legal assistance will be furnished unless the grantee administers a

program designed to provide legal assistance to older individuals with social or

economic need and has agreed, if the grantee is not a Legal Services Corporation

247 Page 162
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix K



project grantee, to coordinate its services with existing Legal Services Corporation
projects in the planning and service area in order to concentrate the use of funds
provided under this title on individuals with the greatest such need; and the area agency
on aging makes a finding, after assessment, pursuant to standards for service
promulgated by the Assistant Secretary, that any grantee selected is the entity best able
to provide the particular services.

(C) give priority to legal assistance related to income, health care, long-term care,
nutrition, housing, utilities, protective services, defense of guardianship, abuse,
neglect, and age discrimination.

With respect to services for the prevention of abuse of older individuals—
(A) when carrying out such services will conduct a program consistent with relevant
State law and coordinated with existing State adult protective service activities for—

(i) public education to identify and prevent abuse of older individuals;
(i) active participation of older individuals participating in programs under the OAA
through outreach, conferences, and referral of such individuals to other social service
agencies or sources of assistance where appropriate and consented to by the parties
to be referred; and
(iii) referral of complaints to law enforcement or public protective service
agencies where appropriate;
(B) will not permit involuntary or coerced participation in the program of services
described in this paragraph by alleged victims, abusers, or their households; and
(C) all information gathered in the course of receiving reports and making referrals
shall remain confidential unless all parties to the complaint consent in writing to the
release of such information, except that such information may be released to a law
enforcement or public protective service agency.

If a substantial number of the older individuals residing in the planning and service area
are of limited English-speaking ability, the area agency on aging for each such planning
and service area is required—
(A) to utilize in the delivery of outreach services under OAA section 306(a)(2)(A), the
services of workers who are fluent in the language spoken by a predominant number
of such older individuals who are of limited English-speaking ability; and
(B) to designate an individual employed by the area agency on aging, or available to
such area agency on aging on a full-time basis, whose responsibilities will include—
(i) taking such action as may be appropriate to assure that counseling assistance is
made available to such older individuals who are of limited English-speaking ability in
order to assist such older individuals in participating in programs and receiving
assistance under the OAA; and
(i) providing guidance to individuals engaged in the delivery of supportive
services under the area plan involved to enable such individuals to be aware of
cultural sensitivities and to take into account effectively linguistic and cultural
differences.

Conduct efforts to facilitate the coordination of community-based, long- term care
services, pursuant to OAA section 306(a)(7), for older individuals who—

(A) reside at home and are at risk of institutionalization because of limitations on
their ability to function independently;

248 Page 163
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix K



(B) are patients in hospitals and are at risk of prolonged
institutionalization; or

(C) are patients in long-term care facilities, but who can return to their homes if
community-based services are provided to them.

Obtain input from the public and approval from the AAA Advisory Council on the
development, implementation and administration of the Area Plan through a public
process, which should include, at a minimum, a public hearing prior to submission of
the Area Plan to ODHS. The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments
(OCWCOG), Senior and Disability Services (SDS) shall publicize the hearing(s) through
legal notice, mailings, advertisements in newspapers, and other methods determined
by the AAA to be most effective in informing the public, service providers, advocacy
groups, etc.

Date Director, OCWCOG, S&DS and CSP
Date Legal Contractor Authority
Title
249 Page 164

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Appendix K



SERVICE MATRIX and DELIVERY METHOD

Instructions: Indicate all services provided, method of service delivery and funding
source. (The list below is sorted alphabetically by service.)

\/ #5 Adult Day Care
Funding Source: {/] OAA [/ OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[/l Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-
profit" agency): ae ente o A ult ay evies 980 pueAve ovalis R97330

\/l #20-2 Advocacy
Funding Source: {/] OAA [ JOPI [_]Other Cash Funds
[_] Contracted /] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

|| #9 Assisted Transportation
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

Ql #16/16a Caregiver Case Management
Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_] Contracted [ A Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

250 Page 165
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment A




[ ] #70-2a/70-2b Caregiver Counseling
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ _]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted [ ] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-
profit” agency):

\/] #15/15a Caregiver Information Services/Information and Referral
Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ]OPI [_] Other Cash Funds
[ Contracted {/] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

(/] #30-5/30-5a Caregiver Respite
Funding Source: {/] OAA [_JOPI [ ] Other Cash Funds

{/] Contracted [ ] Self-provided
Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-
profit” agency): Grace Center for Adult Day Services, 980 NW Spruce Ave, Corvallis, OR 97330

|| #73/73a Caregiver Self-Directed Care
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

Ql #30-7/30-7a Caregiver Supplemental Services
Funding Source: \/ OAA [ JOPI [_] Other Cash Funds

{/] Contracted /] Self-provided
Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-
profit” agency): Assue n epen en e 3125 olbyAve te  veett A98201 o poit

251 Page 166
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment A




/] #30-6/30-6a Caregiver Support Groups
Funding Source: {/] OAA [ JOPI [_]Other Cash Funds
{/] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”

agency): Lumina Hospice & Palliative Care, 720 SW 4th St., Corvallis, OR 97330
ae ente o Ault ay evies 980 pueAve ovallis R97330

{/] #70-9/70-9a Caregiver Training
Funding Source: {/]OAA [ _]OPI [_]Other Cash Funds
{/] Contracted [ A Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-
profit” agency): Lumina Hospice & Palliative Care, 720 SW 4th St., Corvallis, OR 97330

{/] #6 Case Management
Funding Source: h/] OAA {/]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_| Contracted {/] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

|_]#3 Chore (by agency)
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

[ ] #3a Chore (by HCW) Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [_] Other Cash Funds

{/] #7 Congregate Meals
Funding Source: {/] OAA [ JOPI [_] Other Cash Funds
\/ Contracted {/] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-
profit” agency): R o  unity Meals 0 742992 Atlanta A 30374 o poit

252 Page 167
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment A




[ ]#80-4 Consumable Services
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ _]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted [ ] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

{/] #50-1 Elderly Abuse Prevention (50-1 Guardianship/Conservatorship; 50-3
Elder Abuse Awareness & Prevention; 50-4 Crime Prevention/Home Safety; 50-
5LTCO)

Funding Source: §/] OAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds

[ ] Contracted {/] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

|_]#40-4 Health Promotion: Evidence-Based (Access)
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds

[ ] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is
“for-profit” agency):

/ #40-2 Health Promotion: Evidence-Based (40-2 Physical Activity and
Falls Prevention; 40-4 Mental Health Screening and Referral; 71
Chronic Disease Prevention, Management/Education)

Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ] OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds

/| Contracted [ ] Self-provided
Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”

agency): Mi ila ette alley M A 3201 aii |Iv. Albany R 97321 u ina ospi e
720 4t t. owvallis R97333 ebanon enio t. 80 an ent t ebanon R97355 o
poit owvallis o unity ente 2601 yle Ave owvallis e on 97330 o poit

253 Page 168

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment A




\/] #40-3 Health Promotion: Non-Evidence-Based (Access) (40-3 & 40-4)
Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds

{/] Contracted [ ] Self-provided
Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-
profit” agency): ebanon enio t. 80 an ent t ebanon R97355 o poit

{/] #40-5 Health Promotion: Non-Evidence-Based (In-Home) (40-5 & 40-8)
Funding Source: {/] OAA [/ OPI [_] Other Cash Funds
{/] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency): Assured Independence, 3125 Colby Ave Ste B, Everett, WA 98201-for profit

/| #4 Home Delivered Meals
Funding Source: [/ OAA [ JOPI [_]Other Cash Funds
{/] Contracted {/] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-

profit” agency): Trio Community Health, PO Box 7153 Salem, OR 97303 "for profit". OCWCOG operates
meal sites.

[ | #30-1 Home Repair/Modification
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

\/ #2 Homemaker (by agency)
Funding Source: [ JOAA [/ OPI [_] Other Cash Funds
\/ Contracted [ ] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-
profit” agency): Addus Health Care Inc., 2300 Warrenville Rd., Ste. 100, Downers Grove, IL 60515 "for
profit". New Horizons In Home Care, 3125 Chad Dr., Ste 290, Eugene, OR 97408 "for profit"

\/ #2a Homemaker (by HCW)  Funding Source: [ JOAA [ AOPI [ _]Other Cash

Funds

254 Page 169
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment A




{/] #13 Information & Assistance
Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_] Contracted {/] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

[_]#60-5 Interpreting/Translation
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

EI #11 Legal Assistance (50-1 Guardianship/Conservatorship; 50-3 Elder
Abuse Awareness & Prevention; 50-4 Crime Prevention/Home Safety; 50-5
LTCO)

Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ]OPI [_] Other Cash Funds

(/] Contracted [ ] Self-provided
Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency): Legal Aid Services of Oregon, 433 4th Ave SW, Albany, OR 97321

[_]#8 Nutrition Counseling
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

\/l #12 Nutrition Education
Funding Source: /] OAA [_JOPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_| Contracted /] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

255 Page 170
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment A




{/] #70-2 Options Counseling
Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ]OPI [_] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted {/] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

{/] #900 Other — Computer Technology Expense
Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_] Contracted /] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

Ql #60-1 Other Services (60-1 Recreation; 70-8 Fee Based CM; 80-5 Money
Management; 80-6 Center Renovation/Acquisition)

Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ]OPI [_] Other Cash Funds

{/] Contracted  {/] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency): Albany a s Re eation 333 oa albin t Albany R 97321

[ ] #70-8 Other Services - Fee-based Case Management - Access
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ _]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted [ ] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

\/] #901 Other (specify)
Funding Source: {/] OAA {/]OPI [_] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted {/] Self-provided - purchased fans for consumers during heatwave

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

256 Page 171
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment A




A/ #14 Outreach (14 Outreach; 70-5 Newsletter; 70-10 Public
Outreach/Education)

Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds

[_] Contracted [/] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

\/] #1 Personal Care (by agency)
Funding Source: [ ]OAA [/ OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds [ ] Other (describe):
\/] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-

profit” agency): Addus Healthcare, 2300 Warrrenville Rd., Ste. 100, Downers Grove, IL 60515 "for profit".
New Horizons, 3125 Chad Dr., Ste 290, Eugene, OR 97408 "for profit".

(/] #1a Personal Care (by HCW)
Funding Source: [_]OAA [/ OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds [_] Other (describe):

| ]#20-3 Program Coordination & Development
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

[ ] #60-3 Reassurance
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ _]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted [ ] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

257 Page 172
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment A




[_]#30-4 Respite Care - Other (llIB/OPI)
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ _]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted [ ] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-
profit” agency):

[ ] #72 Self-Directed Care
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

{/] #80-1 Senior Center Assistance
Funding Source: {/] OAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
{/] Contracted [ _] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-
profit” agency): ovalis ayti e opin ente 530 4t t ovalis R97333

[ | #10 Transportation
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ ]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[_] Contracted [_] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

[ ]#60-4 Volunteer Services
Funding Source: [ JOAA [ _]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds
[ ] Contracted [ ] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”
agency):

258 Page 173
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment A




[_]#90-1 Volunteer Services (In-Home)

Funding Source: [ JOAA [ _]OPI [ ] Other Cash Funds

[ ] Contracted [ ] Self-provided

Contractor name and address (List all if multiple contractors and note if contractor is “for-profit”

agency):

259

Page 174
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment A

10



REQUEST to PROVIDE REDUCED MEALS

|CSSUuseonly | Approved [ |Y[ |N Date: CSSU Initials:
Date: 5/26/2025 | AAA: Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments
Contact Name: Scott Harper Tel: 541-924-8455 x238
Email: sharper@ocwcog.org Contract# 160434

Please submit as part of the AAA Area Plan. (If submitting between plans,
prior to a planned reduction in meals, submit to the CSSU at
SUA.Email@odhsoha.oregon.gov and reference Nutrition Approval in subject
line)

Request for approval for a AAA nutrition program to offer meals less than five
days/week in a county must be submitted for approval by the CSSU with each
new Area Plan, or prior to a reduction in meals that occurs during an existing
approved Area Plan.

Congregate Nutrition Services OAA Section 331(1): Five or more days a week
(except in a rural area where such frequency is not feasible and a lesser
frequency is approved by the State agency), provide at least one hot or other
appropriate meal per day and any additional meals which the recipient of a grant
or contract under this subpart may elect to provide.

Home-Delivered Nutrition Services OAA Section 336(1): Five or more days a
week (except in a rural area where such frequency is not feasible and a lesser
frequency is approved by the State agency), at least one home delivered meal per
day, which may consist of hot, cold, frozen, dried, canned, or fresh foods, and
supplemental foods and any additional meals that the recipient of a grant or
contract under this subpart may elect to provide.

Please complete the following for each county where OAA meals are offered less
than 5 days/week:

Last updated: 1-18-24
260 Page 175
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment B



County: Lincoln
Average number of older adults currently being served -

500 Summer St NE, MS E-12 «Salem OR 97301

congregate: 185 (average monthly served)
home-delivered: 222 (average monthly served)

Proposed days and location(s) for meals to be provided:

Waldport, Newport, Toledo/Siletz, and Lincoln City sites will be open on
Monday, Wednesday, and Friday. For Tuesday and Thursday,
participants will receive a frozen meal.

Please provide rationale for request: Current service area in Lincoln
County includes very rural homes that we are delivering too. Due to

limited funding and a small volunteer pool, we are unable to facilitate
having the four sites open more than three days per week.

Last updated: 1-18-24

261

© .3 ODHS/APD COMMUNITY SERVICES & SUPPORTS UNIT

Page 176

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment B



Meal Site

Corvallis
Corvallis Community Center

2601 NW Tyler Ave, Corvallis OR 97330

Ph: 541-223-1005

Benton County

Service Days for Additional

HDM’s

M-F
10:30 am — 12:30 pm

Services

Provided

Shelf Stable

Lincoln County

Average
Monthly
Participation
HDM's &

Congregate
3506 HDM’s

Days of Operation &
Serving Times

Congregate Dining
M-F

57 Congregate Serves at 12:00

Meal Sit Service Days for Additional Average
eal sites HDM’s Services Monthly Days of Operation &
Provided Participation Serving Times
HDM's &
Congregate
Lincoln City M, W, F Shelf Stable | 2872 HDM’s Congregate Dining
Lincoln City Community Center 10:30 am — 12:30 pm Wednesday Only
2150 NE Oar Place 25 Congregate Serves at 12:00
Lincoln City, OR 97367
Ph: 541-994-7731
Newport M, W, F Shelf Stable, | 1747 HDM'’s Congregate Dining
Newport 60+ Activity Center 10:30 am — 12:30 pm | Congregate M, W, F
20 SE 2nd Street Pickup 144 Congregate Serves at 12:00
Newport, OR 97365
Ph: 541-574-0669
Siletz T&Th Shelf Stable | 527 HDM’s Congregate Dining
Confederated Tribes of Siletz 10:30 am — 12:30 pm T&TH
Indian Community Center 3 Congregate Serves at 12:00
402 Government Hill
Siletz, OR 97390
Ph: 541-812-2591

262

Page 177
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment C



Toledo M&W Shelf Stable | 494 HDM'’s Congregate Dining
Trinity Methodist Church 10:30 am — 12:30 pm Friday only

383 NE Beech Street 129 Congregate Serves at 12:00
Toledo, OR 97391

Ph: 541-812-2591

Waldport M, W, F Shelf Stable | 1261 HDM'’s Congregate Dining

South County Community Center

265 Hemlock Street
Waldport, OR 97394
Ph: 541-563-8796

Meal Sites

10:30 am — 12:30 pm

Linn County

Service Days for Additional

HDM’s

Services
Provided

75 Congregate

Average
Monthly
Participation
HDM's &

M, W, F
Serves at 12:00

Days of Operation &
Serving Times

Congregate
Albany M-F Shelf Stable, | 4918 HDM'’s Congregate Dining
Riverfront Community Center 10:30 am — 12:30 pm | Congregate- Wednesday only
489 Water Avenue, NW Pickup 76 Congregate Serves at 12:00
Albany, OR 97321
Ph: 541-967-7647
Brownsville T&Th Shelf Stable | 513 HDM'’s Congregate Dining
Brownsville Christian Church 10:30 am — 12:30 pm Tuesday only
117 N Main Street 40 Congregate Serves at 12:00
Brownsville, OR 97327
Ph: 541-466-5015
Lebanon M-F Shelf Stable, | 2481 HDM'’s Congregate Dining
Lebanon Senior Center 10:30 am — 12:30 pm | Congregate M-F
80 Tangent Street Pickup 310 Congregate Serves at 12:00
Lebanon, OR 97355
Ph: 541-451-1139
Mill City T&Th Shelf Stable | 327 HDM'’s Congregate Dining
Presbyterian Church 10:30 am — 12:30 pm T&TH
236 W Broadway 268 Congregate Serves at 12:00
Mill City, OR 97360
Ph: 503-897-2204

263

Page 178
2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment C




Sweet Home

Sweet Home Senior Center
880 18th Street

Sweet Home, OR 97386
Ph: 541-367-8843

M, T, F
10:30 am — 12:30 pm

Shelf Stable

2472 HDM'’s

96 Congregate

Congregate Dining
M, T, F
Serves at 12:00

264

Page 179

2025-2029 OCWCOG SDS Area Plan, Attachment C




To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
overnments services to meet individual and community needs.
G t i t t individual and it d

Community and Economic Development
OCWCOG Board Updates

July 17, 2025

Introduction to the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department:

CED is a diverse department with a wide range of programs, projects, and goals. Currently
the CED department has 32 staff. Recently our department saw the transition out of our
Director, Jaclyn Disney. In the interim, Britny will continue to lead Ride Line, and Matt will
continue to support planning. For our director’s role, Paul Egbert, new Agency Director for
OCWCOG, has stepped in to oversee our department in addition to overseeing the Cascades
West Agency. CED’s primary focus areas cover: Cascades West Business Lending,
Cascades West Ride Line, Transportation Planning, GIS Services, Community/ Economic

Development Planning, and Grant Writing.

Cascades West Business Lending:

e A new loan was approved for 8 Second Strong, LLC, the western apparel company.

e The SBA 504 loan to the chiropractor to purchase a building in Newport was ultimately
declined by the bank and we followed suit.

e Two SBA 504 prospects are still active in the underwriting stage, diesel and auto
mechanic in Philomath building a larger shop and the veterinarian in Corvallis
purchasing the building they currently lease.

e A few smaller loan prospects are in various stages of review.

» Resubmitted EDA FY2025 Disaster Supplemental Funding for CWBL: $216,290
request, $72,576 match, total $288,866.

o Two small loan programs were paid off and closed. They both carried a debt service
and had no outstanding loans in them earning revenue for the programs. We are

considering our options for the remaining funds.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9" Steet 203 North Main Steet
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
265



Cascades West Ride Line:
o Ride Line is currently subcontracted with 23 driving companies with 169 active
vehicles in use.
o As of June 2025, Ride Line has 174 certified drivers.

Transportation Planning:

« Signed agreements to distribute more than $1 million in grant funds for local roads,
bike paths, and trails

« Began work on the 2047 Regional Transportation Plan which will guide transportation
investments over the next 20 years

» We were awarded $100,000 to invest in safety micro projects across the region

« LBCC Breaking ground on Mobility Hub. Construction should be completed this
summer. The OSU Mobility Hub project is experiencing some complications with

regard to the City of Corvallis development code, which is being addressed.

Community and Economic Development Planning:
o Submitted the draft Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy for Linn, Benton,
Lincoln and Lane counties for public comment.
« Five-year Strategy document that identifies projects and programs
e Synchronized with State and Federal ED guidelines
o Opens the region for EDA funding opportunities
o The Coastal CWEDD Meeting was a success and members attending in person
received a tour of the Oregon Coast Aquarium.
Grant Writing:

Oregon Cascades West Innovation Hub

The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments is the lead entity and fiscal agent for
the Cascades West Innovation Hub, one of nine Oregon Innovation Hubs. Two outreach and
community engagement events were held to support science and technology traded sector
companies who are poised and ready to do national and international business. The first
event, a Biotechnology Showcase was held on April 16th at the Western University of Health
Sciences campus in Lebanon. The event was sponsored by the Regional Accelerator &
Innovation Network (RAIN) Catalysts, the Oregon Biotechnology Consortium, and Willamette
Innovators Network. Over 77 attendees from higher education, private and public sectors,
and SDBCs learned about biotechnology commercialization and collaborated with how to
strengthen the local talent pipeline for this sector. The second, a Simulation and Outreach
event was held on April 29th on the University of Oregon Eugene campus. The purposes of
the event were to strengthen stakeholder partnerships, engage service providers and

266



businesses, and to test the system of local concierges. The event was coordinated by
Collaborative Economic Development Oregon and attended by 73 participants from 48
organizations. Beginning July 1, 2025, the Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments

will transition its role as the lead entity and fiscal agent to the RAIN.

OCWCOG CED Grant Support Services newsletter has been updated with a fresh look and

format.

The CED department provides grant services and support for member jurisdictions. They
include prospecting for private, State, and Federal grant funding to meet jurisdiction needs,
project scoping and scaling, preparing and writing grant applications, grant administration,
and project management. The following table represents grant activities between March 20

and June 30, 2025.

March 20 to June 30, 2025

Type

Funder/Program

Grant Request

Match (Cash and/or
In-Kind)

Total Project Cost

Status

Land Use and Housing

City of Lebanon, Champion
Mill Redevelopment

Parks and Recreation

City of Tangent, Bass Estate
Community Pavilion

City of Tangent, Master Parks
Update

City of Lincoln City, Schooner
Creek Discovery Park

Business Development

OCWCOG, Cascades West
Business Lending

Transportation
Cities of Lincoln City,
Newport, Depoe Bay, Toledo,
and Waldport, and the Siletz
Tribe; Planning and
Demonstration

OCWCOG, Innovative
Mobility Program

Business Oregon/Housing
Infrastructure Support Fund
(Sewer and Road Access
Planning)

Oregon Parks/Local
Government Grant
Program/Small Grant (New
Covered Shelter)

Oregon Parks/Local
Government Grant Program,
Planning Grant (Update the
City's Master Parks Plan)
Community Project Funding,
Congresswoman Val Hoyle
(Funds to Complete Phase lIl,
Sports Complex)

EDA/FY 2025 Disaster
Supplemental Funding
(Marketing, Outreach, and
Rebrand)

FHWA/Safe Streets and
Roads for All (New Safety
Action Plan)

ODOT/Innovative Mobility
Program (Planning and
Community Engagement)

S 100,000

S 100,000

S 32,000

S 500,000

S 216,290

$ 387,383

$ 89,004

$ 40,000

S 8,000

S 5,000,000

S 75,576

S 99,360

S 10,187

S 100,000

$ 140,000

$ 40,000

S 5,500,000

S 291,866

S 496,743

S 99,191

Funded

Decision Pending

Decision Pending

Not Funded

Decision Pending

Decision Pending

Funded

267




To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.

Technology Services
Board Updates

July 17, 2025

COG Intranet Site

An Intranet subcommittee has been established and has conducted an initial meeting to
discuss the timeline, stakeholders, site content, and subsequent steps for the creation of the
COG Intranet. The development of the site is already underway.

COG Website

The reconstruction of the COG website is a forthcoming project. We have consulted with the
vendor responsible for the CSC website, with the possibility of engaging them for the COG
site as well. This initiative aims to align the web presence of both agencies and facilitate
mutual link-sharing. The project is scheduled to commence in the fall.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9" Steet 203 North Main Steet
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391
Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org

268



To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive

Governments services to meet individual and community needs.

Office of Human Resources
Board of Directors Memo

July 17, 2025

HR staff continue to work diligently in support of agency daily work and strategic initiatives.
We have a full team presently and are continuing to learn and grow from one another as the

team congeals. Some highlights in the last two months include:

Staffing Updates:
¢ Organizational Training & Development Specialist has been filled by Vanessa Rusch. In
her short time here Vanessa has dove in head first and made immediate impacts in

rollout out the Dayforce Development Module

Program Outcomes:
o Dayforce Development Module training completed, agency staff are active in the system
e Employee Policy Handbook review work in process

e Collective Bargaining with SEIU has begun

On the Horizon:
e Support to Agency Director initiatives around everyday development throughout the
agency including
o Management Development Advisory Council

o Management Peer Groups

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9" Steet 203 North Main Steet
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391
Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org

269



To promote a thriving region through service,

VISION o . .
connectivity, and innovation.

OREGON CASCADES WEST

Council of
Governments

We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
services to meet individual and community needs.

MISSION

Senior, Disability, and Community Services Programs
Board of Director Updates

July 17, 2025

Grant Updates:

One Hundred Who Care Award

OCWCOG’s Stand By Me-OR, a free financial coaching program, was recently named by 100
Who Care Linn County as its 2025 Q2 donation winner. Stand By Me-OR is entering its 6™ year
of operations, and currently has 13 trained coaches in Linn County, including coaches at KidCo
Head Start, Young Roots Oregon, Strengthening Rural Families, Casa Latinos Unidos-Colonia
Paz, as well as several retired AmeriCorps Seniors volunteers. OCWCOG is thankful for the
donation, which will support our volunteer coaches as well as two free workshops for Linn
County this Fall.

Pictured below: OCWCOG staff along with donors from the 100 Who Care Linn County group:

z3- 100 WHO cARE
- ALLIANCE

Linn County, Albany Date: (E 075

» reze OCW SSE-Sh \b B ]
“hes Avwgnd Six,k\\wm\m{‘g )

oo
Dollars

e N T

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office

1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201
Albany, OR 97322

Phone 541.967.8630

1121 NW 9t Steet
Corvallis, OR 97330

Fax 541-967-6123
270

203 North Main Steet
Toledo, OR 97391

www.ocwcog.org



Program Changes:

Improving Access and Accuracy in Long-Term Care Eligibility

In the fall of 2024, the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) network raised concerns to State
leadership regarding the financial eligibility system—known as the ONE system—and its
unintended impact on Long-Term Care (LTC) recipients. While the State’s “no wrong door”
approach was designed to increase access by allowing individuals to engage with multiple
State offices or virtual call centers, it inadvertently created barriers for LTC applicants. These
included inconsistent customer service and inaccurate eligibility determinations.

Recognizing the urgency of these issues, local AAA offices—who manage the majority of LTC
cases statewide—formally reached out to Oregon Eligibility Partnership (OEP) leadership. We
expressed our deep concerns about the current LTC application process and advocated for the
development of a more streamlined, accurate, and person-centered pathway for our
consumers.

In response, OEP leadership launched a collaborative workgroup titled Eligibility for
Vulnerable Populations (EVP). This group brings together representatives from State Aging
and People with Disabilities (APD), OEP, and AAA offices to identify and implement
improvements that benefit all vulnerable Oregonians, including those receiving APD,
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (I/DD), and Behavioral Health services.

Over the past several months, the EVP workgroup has focused on enhancing notices, refining
office procedures, and recommending system upgrades to simplify the application process and
improve the overall experience for new LTC applicants.

Notably, several system improvements have already been implemented. One of the most
significant changes—set to launch this month—is the introduction of “soft-case ownership”.
This model assigns each LTC application to a single, specially trained Eligibility Worker who
will manage the case from intake through final determination. By reducing the number of staff
involved in each case, this approach minimizes errors, improves timeliness, and ensures
continuity and accountability throughout the process.

The EVP workgroup continues to meet regularly, offering recommendations for further system
enhancements and communication strategies. Our shared goal remains clear: to reduce
barriers, improve accuracy, and deliver compassionate, high-quality service to those who rely
on us.

Community Events:

Popular Radio Show Visits Newport to Talk About Aging in Rural Communities

On June 10th, 2025, Oregon Public Broadcasting’s “Think Out Loud” made a trip to Lincon
County to discuss aging in rural coastal communities. The event was held at the Newport 60+
Activity Center and taped in front of a live audience. Host Dave Miller, interviewed panel
members about healthy aging — the social connections and habits that can help people thrive
as they get older, as well as the programs and policies communities should consider as their
populations age.

271


https://www.opb.org/article/2025/01/29/oregon-residents-are-getting-older-how-can-the-state-prepare/

The panel included - Jan Molnar Fitzgerald, the executive director of North End Senior
Solutions, which includes an adult day service. Helen Beaman the older adult behavioral health
specialist for Lincoln and Tillamook counties. Randi Moore, the director of Senior, Disability,
and Community Services Programs for the Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments.
And Debby Rhein volunteers for some of the council’s programs, including as a Senior
Companion and Foster Grandparent.

A recording of the program can be found here:
https://www.opb.org/article/2025/06/19/how-communities-on-the-oregon-coast-can-help-
support-healthy-aging/

Documentary Focusing on Senior Homelessness Crisis Shared in Public Screening
OCWCOG’s Community Services Program and Senior and Disability Services teamed up in
May during Older Americans Month to host both an in-person and virtual screening of No Place
to Grow Old, a powerful documentary that delves into the growing crisis of senior homelessness
in Portland. This film, directed by Davey Schaupp and produced by partners at Humans for
Housing, explores the systemic challenges and deeply personal stories of a generation aging
into homelessness. A total of 33 participants viewed the film and discussed the impact of
homelessness and resources available in our Linn-Benton-Lincoln region. If you are interested
in viewing the film/scheduling a screening go to: https://www.noplacetogrowold.com/.

Celebrating Older Americans Month in Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties!

ADRC Specialist Rachelle Godinho, OAA Case Manager Carrie Campora, and APS Supervisor
Garilynn Cameron Provided Information at a Community event at the Lebanon Senior Center

272


https://www.northenders.org/
https://www.northenders.org/
https://oregonbhi.org/find-a-behavioral-health-specialist/tillamook-lincoln-counties/
https://www.ocwcog.org/seniors-disability/
https://www.ocwcog.org/seniors-disability/
https://www.ocwcog.org/community-services-programs/senior-companion-program/
https://www.ocwcog.org/community-services-programs/senior-companion-program/
https://www.ocwcog.org/community-services-programs/foster/
https://www.opb.org/article/2025/06/19/how-communities-on-the-oregon-coast-can-help-support-healthy-aging/
https://www.opb.org/article/2025/06/19/how-communities-on-the-oregon-coast-can-help-support-healthy-aging/
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.noplacetogrowold.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7CRMoore%40ocwcog.org%7C8351ec7e0a7e4238bd1008ddb597ca28%7Ccf8f0babb5d547ad9a0339ec05c04fbc%7C1%7C0%7C638866385795859138%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=B8M66dZMpoC3PrYH4iWNmoGFlKe%2Fr3Yu%2BunTLp9aFa8%3D&reserved=0

To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
overnments services to meet individual and community needs.
G t i t t individual and it d

Cascades West Area Commission on

Transportation
Subcommittee Updates for the COG Board

July 17, 2025
CWACT Meeting Summary:

The CWACT Full Commission hosted a Hybrid Meeting at the Port of Newport
Commissioners’ meeting room on Thursday, June 26, 2025. The Full Commission Members
in attendance discussed the minutes of the previous meetings, and the Port of Newport
Commissioner provided a welcome to Lincoln County overview.

Members also received two presentations. The first presentation covered the Newport City
Center Revitalization Plan. Anna Laukea shared this update from the city of Newport
regarding the revitalization plan. The purpose of the plan is to develop land use policies,
regulations, financial incentives, and to support reinvestment in Newport’s city center.
Another purpose of the plan is to identify transportation solutions that compliment proposed
land use policies to promote mixed use development to create a live-work environment where
residents have convenient access to employment and essential services. The second
presentation provided an overview of an update on all of region two. This presentation was
prepared by Savannah Crawford who could not attend. ODOT Staff Christine Hildebrant took
questions from the ACT members to bring back to Savannah for answers. ODOT Staff also
shared and update with CWACT members regarding the Capital Investment Plan (CIP)
Strategy.

CWACT members from Linn County also caucused to select their replacement executive
committee member. This new member will serve in the vacant role previously held by Jackie
Montague. Other business discussed at the June CWACT Full Commission Meeting included
planning of the 2026 workplan, the July 318t OTC Meeting presentation, CED Director
Transition, and the cancellation of August 28, 2025, CWACT Full Commission Meeting.

With recent budget changes, OCWCOG will no longer be contracted with ODOT to staff the
Cascades West ACT, ODOT will be taking on that role. More information to come on this
item, please contact Christine Hildebrant for further questions -
(christine.d.hildebrant@odot.oregon.qov). As per the request of the members in
attendance, the August meeting remains on the schedule, this meeting may be cancelled
closer to time if new information regarding the budget and legislative session does not come
available. Meeting information and agenda packets are available on the CWACT website
here: Cascades West Commission on Transportation | OCWCOG.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9t Steet 203 North Main Steet
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
273


mailto:christine.d.hildebrant@odot.oregon.gov
https://www.ocwcog.org/transportation/cwact/

To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
overnments services to meet individual and community needs.
G t i t t individual and it d

Cascades West Economic Development District
Subcommittee Updates to the COG Board

July 17, 2025

June CWEDD Meeting Summary:

At the June CWEDD Board Meeting, held at Oregon Coast Aquarium in Newport, members

discussed The CEDS 2025-2030 Update which includes the CWEDD CEDS Scope of Work,
CEDS Strategy Committee, and the Draft CEDS which will be released for the 30-day public
comment period soon. Additionally, members discussed a SWOT Analysis Survey that had

been sent out at the prior March meeting.

Members received presentations from the new Agency Director, Paul Egbert at OCWCOG,
and the Oregon Coast Community College President Marshall Roache. Egbert discussed the
Agency’s new impact report and gave an introduction to the board members in attendance.
Roache shared an update from the Oregon Coast Advanced technology and Trades Center
which included development of a new facility and new curriculum. New courses will be
offered around Aquaculture technician, Maritime Technician, and bachelor’s in nursing, along
with a few others.

Members received updates from the CEDS working groups such as the Broadband Action
Team (BAT), The Cascades West Regional Consortium (CWRC), Early Childhood Education,
Rural Economic Alliance (REAL), Lane Economic Committee (LEC), and a Blue Economy
update from the Economic Development Alliance of Lincoln County (EDALC).

The group received a tour of the facility after the regularly scheduled meeting. Other business
that was discussed included a House Bill 3395 funding update, Career Technical Education
(CTE) Lane County Update, and the announcement of Transition from the Former CED
Director Jaclyn Disney who left the agency effective June 12, 2025. CWEDD’s Regional
project list, Executive Committee Updates, and Regionally significant jurisdictional updates
from all member jurisdictions.

The next regularly scheduled CWEDD Board Meeting is set for Thursday, September 11,
2025, at 9:00am. This meeting will be hybrid, and the in-person location will be at the Benton
Count Kalapuya Meeting Room in Corvallis. Members of the public and interested parties are
welcome and encouraged to attend any CWEDD Board meetings either in person or virtually
via Microsoft Teams. Meeting information and agenda packets are available on the CWEDD
website here: Cascades West Economic Development District | OCWCOG.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9t Steet 203 North Main Steet
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
274


https://www.ocwcog.org/economic-development/cascades-west-economic-development-district/

Project and Task Updates:

e The priority project for CWEDD is the 2025-2030 Comprehensive Economic
Development Strategy (CEDS) update. Staff are in the process of releasing the Draft
CEDS out for public comment. A draft version of the CEDS is available on the CWEDD
Website, comments can be emailed to Lead Planning staff Corum Ketchum at
cketchum@ocwcog.org.

275


mailto:cketchum@ocwcog.org

adi

To promote a thriving region through service,

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.

Senior & Disability Services Advisory Councils

Board Updates

July 8, 2025

On Tuesday, June 3, 2025 the Senior Services Advisory Council (SSAC) and Disability

Services Advisory Council (DSAC) met where they approved membership renewals and

elected officers for the 2025-27 term. They also received updates and heard from:

Introduction of Agency Director Paul Egbert:

e Agency Director Egbert introduced himself and provided his career history to the Councils

and each Council member provided an introduction of themselves.

Care Planning Committee (CPC):

e The Care Planning Committee met on May 6, 2025 with the theme of the meeting

covering emergency preparedness. They heard from:

O

@)

@)

CPC Chair Kay McDonald.

Lincoln County Public Health (LCPH) Specialist Marianne Seifert.

LCPH Emergency Preparedness and Response Coordinator Danial Norton, who
spent 23 years in the US Coast Guard focused on emergency preparedness.
Benton County Climate and Health Coordinator John Pegg who has an extensive

background in emergency management as well as a prior fire paramedic.

o Program Director Randi Moore.
= Topics covered included but not limited to:
+ Lincoln and Benton Counties Adaptation Plan.
% Creation of the Emergency Preparedness Bingo Cards, Name that Hazard
game, and the Block Captain System.
+« ldentifying the risks for the area.
«» Supplies — Valley vs Coastal
Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9t Steet 203 North Main Steet
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org

276



+ The difference between emergency preparedness and resiliency.
« OCWCOG distribution of emergency go kits and the different levels of
training regarding the kits.

For more information please see the May Care Planning Meeting Minutes.

Meals on Wheels (MOW):

MOW is trying to revive the Meals on Wheels Advisory Committee (MOVAC) which is a
required committee that was disbanded during COVID made up of volunteers who act as
liaisons between the MOW program and the communities they serve.

Recruitment is underway for MOVAC Community Advisor positions from each community
that serves meals. Community Advisors would be well connected in their community and

familiar with the MOW program.

Issues and Advocacy Committee (IAC):

Focus was on Federal funding with aging and disability programs.

IAC Chair Lazaro proposed that OCWCOG puts forth the recommendation to our
statewide advocacy organization, Oregon Association of Area Agencies on Aging and
Disabilities (O4AD), to help lead in creating profiles of potential people who would be
affected by decreased funding in many of the Federal aging programs. These profiles

would them be used as a marketing tool for advocacy.

Program Director Moore gave Program Updates on:

e Federal Funding.
e 2025-29 Area Plan:

o The State sent the 2025-29 Area Plan back with minor changes that included
setting time frames on the Area Plan goals and language on how SDS would reach
more underserved consumers. The changes were made and sent back to the
State.

For more detailed information please see the June Joint SSAC-DSAC Meeting Minutes.

277



	01 Cover Sheet for BOD Meeting
	02 DRAFT BOD Agenda 7.17.2025
	OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AGENDA
	An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 192.660.


	03 DRAFT Meeting Minutes 5.15.2025
	OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING MINUTES
	An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 192.660.


	03a 2025-06 YTD All Funds
	04a Memo to Board About Renewals
	04b Naomi Hirsch - Redacted DSAC Application_Redacted
	05a 2025-07 Finance Policy Update
	05b FINANCIAL POLICIES 2025-05REV
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES
	General Purpose
	Authority

	FINANCE and ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES
	Authority
	Procedure

	EXPENDITURE LIMITS
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure
	Check Signing
	Issuing Checks
	Special Check Requests
	Monthly Payments
	Loan Fund Disbursements (Lending Department)

	ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Billing)
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	ANNUAL BUDGET AND WORK PROGRAM
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	AUDIT
	Policy
	Auditor Selection Process

	BANK ACCOUNTS
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedures

	BANKING PROCEDURES
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedures

	CASH RECEIPTS
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	BUILDING
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	CONTRACTS
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	COPY MACHINES
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	INDIRECT COST PLAN
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	INSURANCE
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	INVENTORY/ASSETS
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	PAYROLL
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	POSTAGE
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	PURCHASING
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	TRAVEL EXPENSE
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	VENDOR CHARGE ACCOUNTS
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure

	AGENCY CREDIT CARD ACCOUNTS
	Policy
	Authority
	Procedure


	05c 2025-07 Puchasing and Contracts Memo
	05d Purchasing and Contracts Policy 2025
	OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENT
	Purchasing & Contracts Policy

	1. ADMINISTRATION
	c. Attorney General’s Rules Applicable

	2. DEFINITIONS
	3. PROCUREMENT PROCESS
	a. Commencement of the Procurement Process.
	b. Documentation.
	c. Procurement Types.
	i. Qualified Rehabilitation Facility Program is a non-profit rehabilitation organization employing individuals with disabilities.
	1. Small Procurement.
	2. Intermediate Procurement.
	3. Competitive Sealed Proposals or Competitive Sealed Bidding.
	iv. Other Procurement Procedures
	4. Non-DiscrimnatoryDiscriminatory Affirmative Step Policy


	06 1_WEBSITE_VERS_FINAL-STATE-APPROVED-AREA-PLAN-25-29
	A.1_ Introduction.pdf
	About Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG)
	Governance
	Core Programs
	Senior and Disability Services (SDS)
	Community Services Programs (CSP)


	B.1_Populaton Profile.pdf
	 Caregiver Training and Retention: With the increasing complexity of needs among older adults and individuals with disabilities, there is a pressing need for a well-trained caregiver workforce. This includes unpaid family caregivers as well as paid h...
	Prioritizing Outreach and Services for High-Risk and Economically Disadvantaged Older Adults
	Identifying High-Risk Populations

	Methods to Meet the Needs of Minority Older Adults
	Culturally Competent Outreach and Engagement
	Expanding Access to Services in Underserved Areas
	Enhancing Economic and Social Support Programs
	Strengthening Protections Against Exploitation


	B.2_Target Populations.pdf
	Engagement Strategies Moving Forward

	z. Appendix K_Assurance Verification Intent.pdf
	Appendix K – Statement of Assurances and Verification of Intent
	For the period of July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2029, the Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG), Senior and Disability Services (SDS) accepts the responsibility to administer this Area Plan in accordance with all requirements of the Ol...
	OAA Section 306, Area Plans


	08a 25-07-17 CED Program Updates
	08b Technology Services BOD 7.17.25
	08c COG Board HR Memo.7.25
	08d BOARD REPORT 7-2025
	09a 25-07-17 CWACT Subcommittee Update Memo
	09c 25-07-17 Subcommittee Updates for the COG Board_CWEDD
	09e June COG Board Update



